
  www.greenwoodmn.com

 

 

 
 
 

AGENDA 
Greenwood City Council Meeting 
 

Wednesday, January 6, 2016 
20225 Cottagewood Road, Deephaven, MN 55331  
 
The public is invited to speak when items come up on the agenda (comments are limited to 3 minutes). The public may speak regarding other 
items during Matters from the Floor (see below). Agenda times are approximate. 
 

7:00pm  1. CALL TO ORDER  |  ROLL CALL  |  APPROVE REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
 

7:00pm  2.   CONSENT AGENDA 
Council members may remove consent agenda items for discussion. Removed items will be put under Other Business. 
 

A. Approve: 12-02-15 City Council Worksession Minutes 
B. Approve: 12-02-15 City Council Meeting Minutes 
C. Approve: 12-02-15 City Council Closed Session Minutes 
D. Approve: November Cash Summary Report 
E. Approve: November Certificates of Deposit Report 
F. Approve: December Verifieds, Check Register, Electronic Fund Transfers 
G. Approve: January Payroll Register 
H. Approve: 2nd Reading Ord 250, Amending City Code Sections 300.07 & 600.7 Regarding 

Building Permits and Simple Subdivisions  
 

7:05pm  3.   MATTERS FROM THE FLOOR 
This is an opportunity for the public to address the council regarding matters not on the agenda. The council will not 
engage in discussion or take action on items presented at this time. However, the council may ask for clarification and 
may include items on a future agenda. Comments are limited to 3 minutes.  

 

7:10pm  4.   PRESENTATIONS, REPORTS, GUESTS, AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 
A. Greenwood Night at the Old Log Theatre, 7:30pm, Friday 01-22-16 

 

7:10pm  5.   PUBLIC HEARINGS 
A. None 
 

7:10pm  6.   PLANNING & ZONING ITEMS 
A. Consider: Res 14-15 Findings for Hardcover Variance Request and Res 15-15 Findings for 

Grading Conditional Use Permit Request, Mary McQuinn, 5025 Covington Street 
B. Consider: Dining Patio Conditional Use Permit Request, Excelsior Entertainment (Old Log 

Theatre), 5185 Meadville Street 
C. 2nd Reading: Ord 245, Regarding Accessory Structures and Uses and Res 03-16, Summary 

of Ord 245 for Publication 
D. 1st Reading: Ord 249 Security Deposits & Agreements 
E. 1st Reading: Ord 251 Amending Chapter 11 Regarding City Forester, Hazard Trees, 

Variance Standards for Impervious Surface Regulations and Mailing Lists 
F. Discuss: Variance Practical Difficulty Standards 

 

8:45pm  7.   UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
A. None 

 

8:45pm  8.   NEW BUSINESS 
A. Discuss: Drafts of Drainage & Utility Easement Agreements 
B. Consider: Res 04-16 Approving Sale of the Southshore Center to Shorewood 
C. Consider: Res 01-16 Setting City Dates for 2016 
D. Consider: Res 02-16 2016 City Appointments & Assignments 

 

9:15pm  9.   OTHER BUSINESS 
A. None   

 

9:15pm  10.  COUNCIL REPORTS 
A. Cook: Planning Commission, Parks, Sewer Study, St. Alban’s Bay Bridge  
B. Fletcher: Lake Minnetonka Communications Commission, Fire 
C. Kind: Police, Administration, Mayors’ Meetings, Website 
D. Quam: Roads & Sewers, Minnetonka Community Education 
E. Roy: Lake Minnetonka Conservation District, St. Alban’s Bay Lake Improvement District  

 

9:40pm  11. ADJOURNMENT 
 

9:45pm  CLOSED SESSION for attorney-client privilege to discuss Shorewood’s partition action lawsuit  
   regarding the Southshore Center.  
 



  www.greenwoodmn.com

	  

	  

Agenda Number: 2 

 

 
 
 

Agenda Item: Consent Agenda 
 
Summary: The consent agenda typically includes the most recent council minutes, cash summary report, verifieds report, 
electronic fund transfers, and check registers. The consent agenda also may include the 2nd reading of ordinances that 
were approved unanimously by the council at the 1st reading. Council members may remove consent agenda items for 
further discussion. Removed items will be placed under Other Business on the agenda. 
 
Council Action: Required. Possible motion … 
 

1. I move the council approves the consent agenda items as presented. 
 



12-02-15 Greenwood City Council Worksession Minutes   |   Page 1 of 1 

 
 
 
MINUTES 
Greenwood City Council Worksession 
 

Wednesday, December 2, 2015 
20225 Cottagewood Road, Deephaven, MN 55331  
 

 

 
1.  CALL TO ORDER  |  ROLL CALL  |  APPROVE AGENDA 
 
 Mayor Kind called the meeting to order at 6:15pm. 

Members Present: Mayor Kind; Councilmembers Bill Cook, Tom Fletcher, Bob Quam, and Rob Roy  
Others Present: City Attorney Mark Kelly, City Zoning Administrator Dale Cooney 

 
Motion by Kind to approve the agenda. Second by Fletcher. Motion passed 5-0. 

 
2.   DISCUSS UPDATE OF ORDINANCE 245 REGARDING ACCESSORY STRUCTURES 
 

The council discussed the 11-16-15 draft of the ordinance which included revisions based on the 11-10-15 discussion 
and the city attorney's recommendations. Based on the discussion, the following changes will be made to the 
ordinance for the 2nd reading: 
 

A. Revise definition of Fire Pit. 
B. Add definition of Driveway Monument. 
C. Add Driveway Monuments to Secondary Accessory Structure table. 
D. Delete Swimming Beaches from list of Primary Accessory Uses. 
E. Fix numbering of sections. 
F. Change "Not Allowed" to "180 feet" for Theater with Attached Restaurant Primary Accessory Structures. 
G. Pergolas Arbors, and Trellises changes: change height to 12 feet maximum, add "footprint" to maximum 

square foot sentence, delete sentences about maximum linear feet, state that trellises are allowed on a code-
compliant fence. 

H. Change Eaves and Gutters paragraph to language provided by Fletcher. 
I. Change "shall" to "may" in Standards for Driveways and Parking Pads paragraph. 

 
3.   ADJOURNMENT 

 
 Motion by Roy to adjourn the worksession at 6:56pm. Second by Fletcher. Motion passed 5-0. 



12-02-15 Greenwood City Council Meeting Minutes   |   Page 1 of 4 

MINUTES 
Greenwood City Council Meeting 
 

Wednesday, December 2, 2015 
20225 Cottagewood Road, Deephaven, MN 55331  
 
1. CALL TO ORDER  |  ROLL CALL  |  APPROVE AGENDA 

 

 Mayor Kind called the meeting to order at 7pm. 
Members Present: Mayor Kind; Councilmembers Bill Cook, Tom Fletcher, Bob Quam, Rob Roy 
Others Present: City Zoning Administrator Dale Cooney, City Attorney Mark Kelly 

 

Motion by Kind to approve the agenda. Second by Cook. Motion passed 5-0. 
  
2. CONSENT AGENDA 

 

A. Approve: 11-04-15 City Council Worksession Minutes 
B. Approve: 11-04-15 City Council Meeting Minutes 
C. Approve: 11-04-15 City Council Closed Session Minutes 
D. Approve: October Cash Summary Report 
E. Approve: October Certificates of Deposit Report 
F. Approve: November Verifieds, Check Register, Electronic Fund Transfers 
G. Approve: December Payroll Register 
H. Approve: 2nd Reading, Ord 248, Amendment to Allow Waiving of 2nd Readings  
I. Approve: 2016 License Applications 
J. Approve: 2015 Recycling Report Showing October Household Participation 
 

Motion by Kind to approve the consent agenda. Second by Quam. Motion passed 5-0. 
K.  

3.   MATTERS FROM THE FLOOR 
 

No one spoke during matters from the floor. 
 

4.   PRESENTATIONS, REPORTS, GUESTS, AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 

A. City Attorney: Simple Subdivisions Overview  
 

No council action was taken. 
 

5.   PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

A. Public Hearing: Request for Simple Subdivision, Nathan Raich, 21200 Mtka Blvd 
Consider: Res 23-15, Findings for Simple Subdivision Request, Nathan Raich, 21200 Mtka Blvd 

 

Motion by Quam to open the public hearing. Second by Cook. Motion passed 5-0. 
 

Gerald Mike Brown, 4920 Lodge Lane: Spoke against the subdivision and presented a petition with 53 signatures 
stating, “We the undersigned, are in strong opposition to the proposed subdivision of 21200 Minnetonka 
Boulevard due to the impact on the unique topography of the area, the adverse impact on adjoining property 
owners, the short notice that was provided, and that the proposal does not provide satisfactory ingress and 
egress. Also serious concern regarding grading and erosion control, erosion and runoff. And that no grading 
proposal or tree plan has been submitted.” A copy of the petition is on file at the city. 
 

John Rauth, 4910 Woods Court: Spoke against the subdivision. Questioned whether the applicant had the 
authority to bring an application to the city. Noted that city ordinance 1140.80 subd 7 states that no simple 
subdivision shall be approved by the city council except on condition that all significant trees and all trees to be 
cut down in excess of what is allowed for new construction shall be replaced in accordance with the tree 
replacement schedule. Asked that the city council require a right-of-way encroachment agreement before 
considering the subdivision. 
 

Gary VanCleeve, attorney representing adjacent property owners: Spoke against the subdivision. Stated that 
1928 documents show the Crestwood Lane right-of-way is owned by the adjacent property owners who hold the 
underlying fee title, that the land is held in trust by the city specifically for the use as a public street, that any other 
use would be a “taking.” He stated that the property owners will be requesting a vacation of the Crestwood Lane 
right-of-way.  
 



12-02-15 Greenwood City Council Meeting Minutes   |   Page 2 of 4 

Mary Jean McGregor, 21170 Minnetonka Blvd: Stated that contrary to staff's presentation, she never has been 
approached by the developer regarding potential purchase of her property. 
 

Jim Johnson, attorney representing the applicant: Spoke in favor of the subdivision. Stated that Nathan Raich is 
authorized to bring the application to the city and can get corrected documentation if needed. Asked for proof of 
the abutting property owners granting the easement for the right-of-way in 1928.  
 

Motion by Roy to close the public hearing. Second by Cook. Motion passed 5-0. 
 

Motion by Fletcher that the city council denies the simple subdivision request of Nathan Raich to 
subdivide 21200 Minnetonka Boulevard into two separate parcels as identified on the submitted surveys, 
because Parcel B does not abut upon a public street or upon an existing easement or a private street that 
provides satisfactory ingress and egress. Second by Cook. Motion passed 5-0. 

 
6.   UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

A. Consider: Res 14-15, Findings for Hardcover Variance Request and Res 15-15, Findings for Grading 
Conditional Use Permit Request, Mary McQuinn, 5025 Covington Street 

 

Al McQuinn, 5025 Covington Street: Husband of the property owner. Spoke in favor of the requests. Stated that 
the front yard is steep and a sidewalk in that location would be very dangerous for anyone of any age. Stated that 
he has experience with private / public partnerships in Edina where the results were excellent. Stated that he 
would personally make sure the proposed park drainage mitigation plans were done right. 
 

Mary Jetland, 4940 Meadville Street: Daughter of the property owner. Spoke in favor of the requests. Stated that 
as a Greenwood taxpayer she would hope that the city would be open to private / public partnerships. 

 

Motion by Fletcher that the city council (1) accepts the planning commissions recommendation and 
adopts resolutions 14-15 and 15-15, findings for denial of the variance and grading conditional use permit 
applications for Mary McQuinn, 5025 Covington Street as written, (2) directs the city attorney research 
and bring options to the city council regarding temporary license agreements. Second by Cook. Motion 
failed 2-3 with Kind, Quam, and Roy opposing. 
 

Motion by Roy that the city council (1) approves the variance and grading conditional use permit requests 
as presented by Mary McQuinn, 5025 Covington Street, (2) directs staff to draft findings for approval 
based on the following: a U-shaped driveway is a reasonable use for a residential property, the steep 
front yard is a pedestrian safety hazard unique to the property, (3) directs the findings for approval be 
placed on the 01-06-15 city council agenda for approval. Second by Quam. Motion passed 3-2 with 
Councilmembers Fletcher and Cook opposing. 

 
B. 2nd Reading: Ord 245, Regarding Accessory Structures and Uses  

and Res 18-15, Summary of Ord 245 for Publication 
 

Motion by Fletcher to continue the 2nd reading of ordinance 245 to the January 6, 2016 city council 
meeting. Second by Cook. Motion passed 5-0. 

 
C. 2nd Reading: Ord 247, Amending Municipal Watercraft Ordinance  

and Res 22-15 Summary of Ord 247 for Publication 
 

Motion by Fletcher that the city council approves the 2nd reading of ordinance 247 amending the 
municipal watercraft ordinance. Second by Roy. Motion passed 5-0. 

 
7.   NEW BUSINESS 
 

A. Consider: Res 26-15, Findings for Variance Request, Joel Davis and Heather Garibaldi-Davis, 21795 
Mtka Blvd 

 

Motion by Cook that the city council accepts the planning commissions recommendation and adopts 
resolution 26-15 findings for approval of the variance request from Joel Davis and Heather Garibaldi-
Davis, 21795 Mtka Blvd, as written. Second by Quam. Motion passed 4-1 with Fletcher opposing. 

 
B. Consider: Res 24-15, Final 2016 Tax Levy and Res 25-15 Final 2016 Budget 

 

Motion by Roy that the council adopts resolution 24-15 approving the 2016 tax levy in the amount of 
$642,490 to be collected in 2016 and directs the city clerk to send the information to Hennepin County. 
Second by Quam. Motion passed 5-0. 
 

 



12-02-15 Greenwood City Council Meeting Minutes   |   Page 3 of 4 

Motion by Fletcher that the council adopts resolution 25-15 approving the 2016 general fund budget in the 
amount of $782,015. Second by Cook. Motion passed 5-0. 

C. Consider: 2015 Budget Line Item Adjustments, Fund Transfers, and Year-End Contributions  
 

Motion by Fletcher that the council approves the following line item adjustments to the 2015 budget 
EXPENSES: 

 

General Fund 
Code Number Line Item Title 

Original 
2015 Budget 

Amount 
12-02-15 
Amount CHANGE 

101-42400-308 Zoning Administration 3,500 10,000 6,500 

101-42400-310 Building Inspections  28,290 60,790 32,500 

TOTAL      39,000 
 

AND the following line item adjustments to the 2015 budget REVENUES:  
 

General Fund 
Code Number Line Item Title 

Original 
2015 Budget 

Amount 
12-02-15 
Amount CHANGE 

101-34103 Zoning / Subdivisions / Variances 5,000 8,000 3,000 

101-34304 Load Limit Fees 4,000 11,000 7,000 

101-32210 Building Permits  36,000 65,000 29,000 

TOTAL      39,000 
 

Second by Kind. Motion passed 5-0. 
 
Motion by Fletcher that the council approves the following 2015 fund transfers: 

 

a. $3,470 from 605-49300-721 Marina Fund Transfer  
to 101-39200 General Fund for Administrative Expense Reimbursement 

b. $12,500 from 605-49300-720 Marina Fund Transfer  
to 101-39201 General Fund 

c. $10,090 from 602-43200-720 Sewer Fund Transfer  
to 101-39202 General Fund for Administrative Expense Reimbursement 

d. $2,302 from 502-43200-720 Stormwater Fund Transfer  
to 101-39203 General Fund for Administrative Expense Reimbursement 

e. $30,000 from 101-49000-500 General Fund Bridge Transfer  
to 403-39200 Bridge Fund 

f. $10,000 from 101-43200-500 General Fund Major Road Improvement  
to 404-36230 Road Improvement Fund 

 

Second by Kind. Motion passed 5-0. 
 

D. 1st Reading: Ord 250, Amending City Code Sections 300.07 & 600.7 Regarding Building Permits and 
Simple Subdivisions  

 

Motion by Fletcher that the city council approves the 1st reading of ordinance 250 as written. Second by 
Cook. Motion passed 5-0. 

 
E. Discuss: Ord 251 Amending Chapter 11 Regarding City Forester, Hazard Trees, Variance Standards 

for Impervious Surface Regulations and Application Procedure for Mailing Lists 
 

Motion by Fletcher that the city council directs the planning commission to hold a public hearing, review, 
and make a recommendation regarding ordinance 251 as written. Second by Cook. Motion passed 5-0. 

 
8. OTHER BUSINESS 
 

A. Ash Trees 
 

Motion by Fletcher that the city council authorizes the following the following next steps regarding 
Emerald Ash Borer: 
 

(a) City Forester Manuel Jordan will conduct a quick inventory of ash trees in Shuman Woods Park.   



12-02-15 Greenwood City Council Meeting Minutes   |   Page 4 of 4 

(b) Manuel will mark ash trees for removal if they are "weak specimens" located close to a public street / 
trail / play area or have the potential to interfere with utility lines. Otherwise, ash trees on public 
property will become habitat for wildlife. 

(c) An article about EAB will be included in the next city newsletter and will direct property owners to 
consult with a certified arborist to determine options for privately-owned trees. 

 

 Second by Cook. Motion passed 5-0. 
 

B. St. Alban's Bay Lake Improvement District   
 

Motion by Kind that the city council accepts the St. Alban's Bay Lake Improvement District (SABLID) 
Board's recommendation and approves Mike Bogen and Bill Slattery as the fiduciary agents for the 
SABLID subject to securing a $75,000 bond for each of them. Second by Roy. Motion passed 5-0. 

 
9.  COUNCIL REPORTS 
 

A. Cook: Planning Commission, Parks, Sewer Study, St. Alban’s Bay Bridge  
B. Fletcher: Lake Minnetonka Communications Commission, Fire 
C. Kind: Police, Administration, Mayors’ Meetings, Website 
D. Quam: Roads & Sewers, Minnetonka Community Education 
E. Roy: Lake Minnetonka Conservation District, St. Alban’s Bay Lake Improvement District  

 

No council action was taken.  
 

10. ADJOURNMENT 
 

Motion by Fletcher to adjourn the meeting at 9:42pm. Second by Cook. Motion passed 5-0. 
 
This document is intended to meet statutory requirements for city council meeting minutes. A video recording was made of the meeting, 
which provides a verbatim account of what transpired. The video recording is available for viewing on LMCC TV channel 8 for 1 month, 
at www.lmcc-tv.org for 1 year, and on DVD at the city office (permanent archive).  



12-02-15 Greenwood City Council Closed Session Minutes   |   Page 1 of 1 

 
 
 
MINUTES 
Greenwood City Council Closed Session 
 

Wednesday, December 2, 2015 
20225 Cottagewood Road, Deephaven, MN 55331  
 

 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER  |  ROLL CALL  |  APPROVE AGENDA 

 

 Mayor Kind convened the closed session at 9:50pm with the following statement: 
 

I now convene a closed session of the Greenwood city council pursuant to Minn. Stat. 13D.05 Subd. 3(b) for 
for attorney-client privilege to discuss Shorewood’s partition action lawsuit regarding the Southshore Center. 

 

Members Present: Mayor Kind; Councilmembers Bill Cook, Tom Fletcher, Bob Quam, Rob Roy 
Others Present: City Attorney Mark Kelly 

  
2.  CLOSED SESSION 

 

The city council went into closed session. Per state law, the session was not audio recorded and will not be 
made public. 

 
3. ADJOURNMENT 
 

Motion by Roy that the city council ends the closed session at 9pm. Second by Cook. Motion passed 5-0. 
 



Variance with Variance with 
Month 2014 2015 Prior Month Prior Year
January $973,698 $1,100,038 -$65,893 $126,340
February $976,134 $1,125,995 $25,957 $149,861
March $942,468 $1,105,199 -$20,796 $162,731
April $878,040 $1,041,296 -$63,903 $163,256
May $879 272 $1 025 022 $16 274 $145 750

$0

$200,000

$400,000

$600,000

$800,000

$1,000,000

$1,200,000

$1,400,000

City of Greenwood
Monthly Cash Summary

2014

2015

May $879,272 $1,025,022 -$16,274 $145,750
June $808,884 $986,189 -$38,833 $177,305
July $1,029,060 $1,234,400 $248,211 $205,340
August $1,013,814 $1,207,294 -$27,106 $193,480
September $960,083 $1,061,011 -$146,283 $100,928
October $872,707 $845,408 -$215,603 -$27,299
November $871,871 $831,317 -$14,091 -$40,554
December $1,165,931 $0 -$831,317 -$1,165,931

Bridgewater Bank Money Market $174,427
Bridgewater Bank Checking $19,747
Beacon Bank CD $407,259
Beacon Bank Money Market $224,546
Beacon Bank Checking $5,338

$831,317
ALLOCATION BY FUND
General Fund $212,217
Special Project Fund $0
General Fund Designated for Parks $22,685
Bridge Capital Project Fund $147,173
Road Improvement Fund $50,000
Stormwater Fund ($1,567)
Sewer Enterprise Fund $349,489
Marina Enterprise Fund $51,320

$831,317



GREENWOOD CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT

Report Date: 11/30/2015

Acct # Bank Date Term Maturity Rate Amount
101-10410 Beacon Bank 11/06/14 13 month 12/06/15 0.70% 61,443.92$       
101-10407 Beacon Bank 01/04/15 13 month 02/04/16 0.70% 61,883.00$       
101-10408 Beacon Bank 04/05/15 13 month 05/05/16 0.70% 61,450.84$       
101-10411 Beacon Bank 06/22/15 13 month 07/22/16 0.60% 80,420.62$       
101-10409 Beacon Bank 08/05/15 13 month 09/05/16 0.60% 61,452.53$       
101-10412 Beacon Bank 10/22/15 13 month 11/22/16 0.60% 80,608.33$       

TOTAL 407,259.24$     

CITY COUNCIL POLICY: 09-03-14 Motion by Roy to authorize the administrative committee to open CDs with a maximum initial maturity of

25 months with a combined maximum total CD balance of $500,000 at Beacon Bank or Bridgewater Bank. Second by Cook. Motion passed 5-0.



M = Manual Check, V = Void Check  

 
CITY OF GREENWOOD Check Register - Summary Report Page:     1 

Dec 28, 2015  12:02pm 
Check Issue Date(s): 12/01/2015 - 12/31/2015  

 
Per Date Check No Vendor No Payee Check GL Acct Amount

12/15 12/08/2015 12177 Information Only Check  V101-20100 .00 
12/15 12/08/2015 12178 9 CITY OF DEEPHAVEN 101-20100 6,540.56 
12/15 12/08/2015 12179 594 CITY OF EXCELSIOR 602-20100 3,717.05 
12/15 12/08/2015 12180 822 ECM PUBLISHERS INC 101-20100 89.36 
12/15 12/08/2015 12181 68 GOPHER STATE ONE CALL 602-20100 69.70 
12/15 12/08/2015 12182 75 HENNEPIN COUNTY TREASURER 101-20100 72.63 
12/15 12/08/2015 12183 784 HERITAGE SHADE TREE CONSULT 101-20100 262.50 
12/15 12/08/2015 12184 861 HOFF, BARRY & KOZAR, P.A. 101-20100 426.70 
12/15 12/08/2015 12185 3 KELLY LAW OFFICES 101-20100 4,306.25 
12/15 12/08/2015 12186 99 LAKE MTKA CONSERVATION DISTRIC 101-20100 1,640.00 
12/15 12/08/2015 12187 26 LEAGUE OF MN CITIES 101-20100 833.00 
12/15 12/08/2015 12188 255 LMC INSURANCE TRUST 101-20100 4,941.00 
12/15 12/08/2015 12189 105 METRO COUNCIL ENVIRO SERVICES 602-20100 3,203.41 
12/15 12/08/2015 12190 38 SO LAKE MINNETONKA POLICE DEPT 101-20100 15,586.42 
12/15 12/08/2015 12191 862 SUBURBAN ELECTRIC 101-20100 32.00 
12/15 12/08/2015 12192 745 Vintage Waste Systems 101-20100 1,628.25 
12/15 12/08/2015 12193 145 XCEL ENERGY 602-20100 205.29 
12/15 12/28/2015 12194 51 BOLTON & MENK, INC. 101-20100 2,478.00 
12/15 12/28/2015 12195 822 ECM PUBLISHERS INC 101-20100 156.39 
12/15 12/28/2015 12196 581 EMERY'S TREE SERVICE, INC. 101-20100 3,250.00 
12/15 12/28/2015 12197 145 XCEL ENERGY 101-20100 374.95 

          Totals: 49,813.46 

           Dated: ______________________________________________________

           Mayor: ______________________________________________________

  City Council: ______________________________________________________

                       ______________________________________________________

                       ______________________________________________________

                       ______________________________________________________

                       ______________________________________________________

                       ______________________________________________________

City Recorder: ______________________________________________________



 

 
CITY OF GREENWOOD Payment Approval Report - for Council Approval Page:     1 

Input Date(s): 12/01/2015 - 12/31/2015 Dec 28, 2015  12:00pm 
 

Vendor Vendor Name Invoice No Description Inv Date Net Inv Amt

BOLTON & MENK, INC.
0185055 11/30/201551 BOLTON & MENK, INC. 2014 MS4 ADMN 108.00 
0185056 11/30/20152015 DEVELOPMENT REVIEW 204.00 
0185057 11/30/20152015 MISC ENGINEERING 2,166.00 

          Total BOLTON & MENK, INC. 2,478.00 

CITY OF DEEPHAVEN
NOV 2015 12/01/20159 CITY OF DEEPHAVEN Clerk Services 2,747.20 

ZONING 948.29 
INT'L PROP MNGMT CODE BOOK 54.70 
RENT & EQUIPMENT 487.45 
Postage 65.49 
COPIES 310.60 
SEWER 358.48 
SNOW PLOWING/SANDING/SALT 179.24 
WEED/TREE/MOWING 358.48 
PARK MAINTENANCE 179.24 
STORM SEWERS 851.39 

          Total CITY OF DEEPHAVEN 6,540.56 

CITY OF EXCELSIOR
00201413 11/18/2015594 CITY OF EXCELSIOR 4th qtr joint sanitary sewer use 3,717.05 

          Total CITY OF EXCELSIOR 3,717.05 

ECM PUBLISHERS INC
273052 11/05/2015822 ECM PUBLISHERS INC LEGAL NOTICE 44.68 
278393 11/19/2015LEGAL NOTICE 44.68 
282936 12/03/2015LEGAL NOTICE 55.85 
282937 12/03/2015LEGAL NOTICE 50.27 
282938 12/03/2015LEGAL NOTICE 50.27 

          Total ECM PUBLISHERS INC 245.75 

EMERY'S TREE SERVICE, INC.
20401 12/04/2015581 EMERY'S TREE SERVICE, INC. TREE MAINTENANCE 3,250.00 

          Total EMERY'S TREE SERVICE, INC. 3,250.00 

GOPHER STATE ONE CALL
149554 11/30/201568 GOPHER STATE ONE CALL Gopher State calls 69.70 

          Total GOPHER STATE ONE CALL 69.70 

HENNEPIN COUNTY TREASURER
113015 11/30/201575 HENNEPIN COUNTY TREASURE TRUTH IN TAX NOTICES 72.63 

          Total HENNEPIN COUNTY TREASURER 72.63 

HERITAGE SHADE TREE CONSULT 
5512 11/24/2015784 HERITAGE SHADE TREE CONSU URBAN FORESTRY CONSULTING 262.50 

          Total HERITAGE SHADE TREE CONSULT 262.50 

HOFF, BARRY & KOZAR, P.A.
12628 11/30/2015861 HOFF, BARRY & KOZAR, P.A. SO SHORE COMM CNTR 426.70 



 

 
CITY OF GREENWOOD Payment Approval Report - for Council Approval Page:     2 

Input Date(s): 12/01/2015 - 12/31/2015 Dec 28, 2015  12:00pm 
 

Vendor Vendor Name Invoice No Description Inv Date Net Inv Amt

          Total HOFF, BARRY & KOZAR, P.A. 426.70 

KELLY LAW OFFICES
6387 12/01/20153 KELLY LAW OFFICES GENERAL LEGAL 4,306.25 

          Total KELLY LAW OFFICES 4,306.25 

LAKE MTKA CONSERVATION DISTRIC
4TH QTR 2015 09/29/201599 LAKE MTKA CONSERVATION DI 4th Qtr. LMCD Levy 1,640.00 

          Total LAKE MTKA CONSERVATION DISTRIC 1,640.00 

LEAGUE OF MN CITIES
220946 12/01/201526 LEAGUE OF MN CITIES Membership Dues 2015-2016 833.00 

          Total LEAGUE OF MN CITIES 833.00 

LMC INSURANCE TRUST
51465 11/17/2015255 LMC INSURANCE TRUST Municipality Insurance 4,941.00 

          Total LMC INSURANCE TRUST 4,941.00 

METRO COUNCIL ENVIRO SERVICES
0001050144 12/02/2015105 METRO COUNCIL ENVIRO SERV Monthly wastewater Charge 3,203.41 

          Total METRO COUNCIL ENVIRO SERVICES 3,203.41 

SO LAKE MINNETONKA POLICE DEPT
DEC 2015 12/01/201538 SO LAKE MINNETONKA POLICE OPERATING BUDGET 15,586.42 

          Total SO LAKE MINNETONKA POLICE DEPT 15,586.42 

SUBURBAN ELECTRIC
120215 12/02/2015862 SUBURBAN ELECTRIC ELECTRICAL PERMIT REFUND 32.00 

          Total SUBURBAN ELECTRIC 32.00 

Vintage Waste Systems
112015 11/20/2015745 Vintage Waste Systems City Recycling Contract 1,628.25 

          Total Vintage Waste Systems 1,628.25 

XCEL ENERGY
112515 11/25/2015145 XCEL ENERGY SIREN 3.54 

4925 MEADVILLE STREET * 8.50 
LIFT STATION #1 40.39 
LIFT STATION #2 31.48 
LIFT STATION #3 29.27 
LIFT STATION #4 28.21 
LIFT STATION #6 63.90 

113015 11/30/2015Street Lights * 366.51 
Sleepy Hollow Road * 8.44 

          Total XCEL ENERGY 580.24 



 

 
CITY OF GREENWOOD Payment Approval Report - for Council Approval Page:     3 

Input Date(s): 12/01/2015 - 12/31/2015 Dec 28, 2015  12:00pm 
 

Total Paid: 49,813.46 
Total Unpaid:  -     

Grand Total: 49,813.46 



 

 
CITY OF GREENWOOD Check Register Page:     1 

Pay Period Date(s): 12/02/2015 to 01/01/2016 Dec 28, 2015  12:02pm 
 

Pay Per Check Check Description GL Amount
Date Jrnl Date Number Payee Emp No Account

01/01/16 PC 01/04/16 1041601 COOK, WILLIAM B. 37 001-10100 184.70 
01/01/16 PC 01/04/16 1041602 Fletcher, Thomas M 33 001-10100 84.70 
01/01/16 PC 01/04/16 1041603 Kind, Debra J. 34 001-10100 277.05 
01/01/16 PC 01/04/16 1041604 Quam, Robert 32 001-10100 184.70 
01/01/16 PC 01/04/16 1041605 ROY, ROBERT J. 38 001-10100 184.70 

          Grand Totals: 915.85 



12-26-15 Greenwood Ordinance 250   |   Page 1 of 1 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 250 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF GREENWOOD, MINNESOTA AMENDING GREENWOOD ORDINANCE CODE 
SECTIONS 300.07 AND 600.7 REGARDING BUILDING PERMITS AND SIMPLE SUBDIVISIONS 

 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GREENWOOD, MINNESOTA DOES ORDAIN: 
 

SECTION 1. 
Greenwood ordinance code section 300 Building Codes is amended to add the following section:  
 

“Section 300.07. Building Permit Required. 
 

No person, shall undertake a construction project that requires a permit by the Minnesota State Building Code without a 
valid building permit issued by the city. No permit may be issued unless the zoning administrator has determined that the 
proposed construction project complies with the zoning code and / or the applicant has obtained the necessary variance 
and / or conditional use permit as may be required.” 

 
SECTION 2. 
Greenwood ordinance code section 600.07 Simple Subdivision is amended to read as follows:  
 

“Section 600.07. Simple Subdivision.   
 

Portions of a lot may be severed for the purpose of accretion onto neighboring parcels, provided the severed portion does 
not make the balance of the remaining lot a nonconforming lot; and provided: 
 

1.  The size of the newly-created lots conform to the minimum requirements of the zoning ordinance; 
2.  Each lot abuts upon a public street open for travel or upon an existing easement or a private street access that is 

determined by the city council as providing satisfactory ingress and egress; 
3.  The subdivision will not lend itself to future subdivision for the creation of additional properties within the applicable 

zone; 
4.  If a smaller piece has been severed for accretion onto a neighboring parcel, the severed portion shall not cause the 

hardcover to exceed the maximum allowed on the property to which it is accreted; 
5.  The remainder lot (after a smaller piece is acreted onto a neighboring parcel) shall be zoning code and shoreland 

management district code compliant in matters of location of accessory structures, hard cover maximums, and 
sideyard setbacks relative to both principal and accessory structures; and 

6.  The city may impose such additional conditions as it deems necessary and appropriate for public safety, health, and 
welfare, including requiring the applicant to enter into an encroachment agreement, easement agreement, or 
developer’s agreement with the city, in form meeting the approval of the city attorney.  

 

A dimensional map of such subdivision must be filed with the city clerk before the division is submitted to the council for 
approval. A fee set by the city council and recorded in chapter 5 of this code book, together with actual costs of 
publication of notice, provided that any other fees required under the section 600 et seq shall be paid by the applicant as 
set by the city code, as well as payment for all sewer hookup charges which might be due. The subdivider shall conform 
with all other applicable requirements of section 600 et seq including public right-of-way and easement dedication that 
may be required.  
 

As further limitation to the authorized simple subdivision, no such division shall be approved if there is any provision or 
authorization as a result of the division to allow and permit by easement access to Lake Minnetonka from off-shore lake 
lots; should there be a desire to provide such access, the subdivider shall be required to plat the property pursuant to the 
terms of section 600.10 et seq and apart from the provisions of this section governing simple subdivision.” 

 
SECTION 3. 
Effective Date. This ordinance shall be effective upon publication according to law. 
 

Enacted by the city council of Greenwood, Minnesota this ___ day of _____________, 2016. 
 

____ AYES ____ NAYS 
 

CITY OF GREENWOOD 
 
By: _____________________________________  
Debra J. Kind, Mayor  
 
Attest: __________________________________ 
Dana Young, City Clerk 
 

First reading: December 2, 2015 
Second reading: _____, 2016 
Publication: _____, 2016 



  www.greenwoodmn.com

	

 Agenda Number: 6A 

Agenda Date: 01-06-16 

Prepared by Deb Kind 
 

 
 

 

Agenda Item: Res 14-15, Findings for Hardcover Variance Request and Res 15-15, Findings for Grading Conditional Use 
Permit Request, Mary McQuinn, 5025 Covington Street 
 
Summary:	At the 12-02-15 city council meeting, the city council approved the following motion: 
 

Motion by Roy that the city council (1) approves the variance and grading conditional use permit requests as 
presented by Mary McQuinn, 5025 Covington Street, (2) directs staff to draft findings for approval based on the 
following: a U-shaped driveway is a reasonable use for a residential property, the steep front yard is a pedestrian 
safety hazard unique to the property, (3) directs the findings for approval be placed on the 01-06-15 city council 
agenda for approval. Second by Quam. Motion passed 3-2 with Councilmembers Fletcher and Cook opposing. 
  
The findings for approval are enclosed in the 01-06-16 council packet. 
 
Key Dates: Application complete: August 21, 2015 

Notice of Public Hearing published: September 3, 2015 
Planning Commission Public Hearing: September 16, 2015 
City Council Consideration: October 7, 2015 
60-Day Deadline: October 20, 2015 
City Council Consideration: December 2, 2015 
120-Day Deadline: December 18, 2015 
City Council Adopts Findings: January 06, 2016 

 
Council Action: The city council must adopt the findings for the variance and CUPs that were approved on 12-02-15. 
Suggested motions … 

 
1. I move the city council adopts resolution 14-15, findings approving the Hardcover Variance Request and resolution 

15-15, findings approving the Grading Conditional Use Permit Request, for Mary McQuinn, 5025 Covington Street. 
 

2. I move the city council adopts resolution 14-15, findings approving the Hardcover Variance Request and resolution 
15-15, findings approving the Grading Conditional Use Permit Request, for Mary McQuinn, 5025 Covington Street 
with the following revisions: ____________________________. 

 
Note: MN statute 15.99 requires a council decision within 60 days. The council may approve or modify a request based on verbal findings of fact and the 
applicant may proceed with their project. However, if the council denies the request, the council must state in writing the reasons for denial at the time 
that it denies the request. The council may extend the 60-day time limit by providing written notice to the applicant including the reason for the extension 
and its anticipated length (may not exceed 60 additional days unless approved by the applicant in writing).  



 

Greenwood Resolution 14-15   |   Page 1 of 3 
 

RESOLUTION NO 14-15 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GREENWOOD, MINNESOTA  
ACTING AS THE BOARD OF APPEALS & ADJUSTMENTS 

 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

APPROVING 
 

IN RE: The application of Dale Gustafson, representing Mary McQuinn of 5025 Covington Street,  
for a variance to Greenwood ordinance code section 1176.04(3)(3)(a) to exceed the maximum allowable 

impervious surface area by 5.1% in order to construct a second driveway. 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
WHEREAS, Mary McQuinn is the owner of property commonly known as 5025 Covington Street, Greenwood, Minnesota 
55331 (PID No. 26-117-23-24-0032); and 
 
WHEREAS, application was made for variance to section 1176.04(3)(3)(a) to permit construction of a second driveway 
that would exceed the maximum allowable impervious surface area by 5.1%; and 
 
WHEREAS, notice of a public hearing was published, notice given to neighboring property owners, and a public hearing 
was held before the planning commission to consider the application; and 
 
WHEREAS, public comment was taken at the public hearing before the planning commission on September 16, 2015; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the city council of the city of Greenwood has received the staff report, the recommendation of the planning 
commission, and considered the application, the comments of the applicant and the comments of the public. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, the city council of the city of Greenwood, Minnesota acting as the Board of Appeals & Adjustments 
does hereby make the following: 
 

FINDINGS OF FACT 
 

1. That the real property located at 5025 Covington Street, Greenwood, Minnesota 55331 (PID No. 26-117-23-24-0032) 
is a single-family lot of record located within the R1A district. 

2. The applicant proposes to construct a second driveway that exceeds the maximum allowable impervious surface 
area. 

3. Greenwood ordinance code section 1176.04(3)(3)(a) states, “Impervious surface coverage in all residential districts as 
expressed as a percentage of the lot area, shall not exceed 30%”  

4. The applicant proposes to have a total impervious surface area of 35.1% and seeks a variance to exceed the 
maximum allowable impervious surface area by 5.1%. 

5. Greenwood ordinance section 1155.10, subd 4, 5 & 6 states: 

“Subd. 4. Practical Difficulties Standard. “Practical difficulties,” as used in connection with the granting of a variance, 
means: 
 

(a) that the property owner proposes to use the property in a reasonable manner not permitted by the zoning 
ordinance; 

(b) the plight of the landowner is due to circumstances unique to the property and not created by the landowner; 
(c) and the variance, if granted, will not alter the essential character of the locality 
 
Economic considerations alone shall not constitute practical difficulties.  
 
Subd. 5. Findings. The board, in considering all requests for a variance, shall adopt findings addressing the following 
questions: 
 

(a) Is the variance in harmony with the purposes and intent of the ordinance? 
(b) Is the variance consistent with the comprehensive plan? 
(c) Does the proposal put property to use in a reasonable manner? 
(d) Are there unique circumstances to the property not created by the landowner? 
(e) Will the variance, if granted, alter the essential character of the locality? 



 

Greenwood Resolution 14-15   |   Page 2 of 3 
 

 
Subd. 6. Practical Difficulties Considerations. When determining reasonable manner or essential character, the board 
will consider, but will not be limited to, the following: 
 

(a) Impair an adequate supply of light and air to adjacent property.  
(b) Unreasonably increase the congestion in the public street.  
(c) Increase the danger of fire or endanger the public safety.  
(d) Unreasonably diminish or impair established property values within the neighborhood or in any way be contrary to 

the intent of this ordinance.” 
 

6. The applicant asserts that the proposed variance request complies with the practical difficulties standards in 
Greenwood ordinance section 1155.10, subd 4, 5, & 6. 
 

7. The planning commission discussed the variance request and on a 5-0 vote recommended the council deny the 
application of application of Dale Gustafson, representing Mary McQuinn of 5025 Covington Street, for variances to 
Greenwood ordinance code section 1176.04(3)(3)(a) to exceed the maximum allowable impervious surface area by 
5.1% in order to construct a second driveway, as presented. The proposal does not meet the practical difficulties 
standards outlined in section 1155.10(4) in that the plight of the landowner-applicant is not due to circumstances 
unique to the property and is created by the landowner because previously approved plans currently allow for 
adequate driveway access for the property while also remaining under the allowable impervious surface area. 
 

8. Based on the foregoing, the city council determined that the variance request complies with the practical difficulties 
standards in Greenwood ordinance section 1155.10, subd 4, 5, & 6 because: 

 
(a) The variance will be in harmony and keeping with the spirit and intent of the zoning ordinance because the 

purpose and intent of the ordinance is to allow the orderly development and redevelopment of property within the 
city and when the ordinance standards cannot be met, it outlines the procedures to vary from these standards. 
The applicant is seeking to vary from the impervious surface standards in order to complete second driveway to 
help mitigate the steep front yard and related pedestrian hazards of the property.  

(b) The variance will be consistent with the comprehensive plan’s guiding use for the subject property in the 
applicable zoning because of the character of the proposed use is consistent with the applicable zoning.  

(c) Though the property owner's proposed manner of use of the property is not permitted by the zoning ordinance 
without a variance, the proposed manner of use is reasonable because it maintains the single family nature of the 
property at a scope and scale consistent with the zoning standards.  

(d) The plight of the landowner-applicant is due to circumstances unique to the property and not created by the 
landowner because the property has a steep front yard that makes safe pedestrian access difficult.  

(e) The variance will not alter the essential character of the locality, because the proposed expansion would remain 
consistent with the scope and scale of the surrounding properties.  

(f) The variance will not: 
i. Impair an adequate supply of light and air to adjacent property; 
ii. Unreasonably increase the congestion in the public street; 
iii. Increase the danger of fire or endanger the public safety; or 
iv. Unreasonably diminish or impair established property values within the neighborhood or in any way be 

contrary to the intent of this ordinance. 
 
9.   And the city council has determined that the following conditions should be imposed on the variance grant: 
 

(a) The project must be completed according to the specifications and design requirements in the submitted plans. 
(b) The submitted Greenwood Park stormwater improvement plans to increase the holding capacity of the pond by 

4,723 cubic feet must be completed as submitted, with oversight of the City Engineer and with all associated 
expenses paid by the homeowner 

(c) A certified copy of this resolution shall be filed by the applicants with the Hennepin County Register of Titles and 
proof of filing provided to the city of Greenwood before any permits may issue or the project commence. 

 
 

 

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 
 

Based upon the foregoing findings of fact, the city council acting as the Board of Appeals & Adjustments makes the 
following conclusions of law: 
 



 

Greenwood Resolution 14-15   |   Page 3 of 3 
 

The applicant has made an adequate demonstration of facts meeting the standards of section 1155.10 necessary for the 
grant of a variance and therefore a variance to section 1176.04(3)(3)(a) to exceed the maximum allowable impervious 
surface area by 5.1% shall be granted. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the city council of the city of Greenwood, Minnesota acting as the Board of 
Appeals & Adjustments: 
 
That the application of Dale Gustafson, representing Mary McQuinn of 5025 Covington Street, Greenwood, Minnesota 
55331 (PID No. 26-117-23-24-0032) for a variance to section 1176.04(3)(3)(a) to exceed the exceed the maximum 
allowable impervious surface area by 5.1% is APPROVED with the following conditions: 
 

(a) The project must be completed according to the specifications and design requirements in the submitted plans. 
(b) The submitted Greenwood Park stormwater improvement plans to increase the holding capacity of the pond by 

4,723 cubic feet must be completed as submitted, with oversight of the City Engineer and with all associated 
expenses paid by the homeowner 

(c) A certified copy of this resolution shall be filed by the applicants with the Hennepin County Register of Titles and 
proof of filing provided to the city of Greenwood before any permits may issue or the project commence. 

 
 
 
PASSED this 2nd day of December, 2015 by the city council of the city of Greenwood, Minnesota acting as the Board of 
Appeals & Adjustments for the city of Greenwood, Minnesota. 
 
 
3 AYES   2 NAYS  
 
CITY OF GREENWOOD 
 
By: _____________________________________  
Debra J. Kind, Mayor  
 
 
Attest: __________________________________ 
Dana Young, City Clerk 
 



Greenwood Resolution 15-15   |   Page 1 of 3 
 

RESOLUTION NO 15-15 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GREENWOOD, MINNESOTA  
ACTING AS THE BOARD OF APPEALS & ADJUSTMENTS 

_________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

APPROVING 
 

In Re: Application of Dale Gustafson, representing Mary McQuinn of 5025 Covington Street,  
for a conditional use permit under Greenwood ordinance code section 1140.19(2) and 1150.20 to permit grading 

or site / lot topography alterations involving more than 200 square feet of surface area,  
and involving more than 20 cubic yards of material. 

_________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 
WHEREAS, Mary McQuinn is the owner of property commonly known as 5025 Covington Street, Greenwood, Minnesota 
55331 (PID No. 26-117-23-24-0032) in conformance with Greenwood ordinance code sections 1140.19(2) and 1150.20 
has made application for a conditional use permit (CUP); and 
 
WHEREAS, the applicant proposes to regrade the property in order to accommodate a second driveway; and 
 
WHEREAS, notice of a public hearing was published, notice given to neighboring property owners, and a public hearing 
was held before the planning commission to consider the application; and 
 
WHEREAS, public comment was taken at the public hearing before the planning commission on September 16, 2015; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the city council of the city of Greenwood has received the staff report, the recommendation of the planning 
commission, and considered the application, the comments of the applicant, and the comments of the public. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, the city council of the city of Greenwood, Minnesota acting as the Board of Appeals & Adjustments 
does hereby make the following: 
 

FINDINGS OF FACT 
 

1. That the real property located at 5025 Covington Street, Greenwood, Minnesota 55331 (PID No. 26-117-23-24-0032) 
is a single-family lot of record located within the R1A district. 
 

2. Pursuant to Greenwood ordinance code 1140.19(2), the property owner proposes to regrade the property in order to 
accommodate a second driveway which would require grading or altering site / lot topography involving more than 200 
square feet of surface area, and involving more than 20 cubic yards of material, which requires the property owner to 
apply for a CUP.   
 

3. Pursuant to Greenwood ordinance code section 1150.20, subd. 3, Conditional Use Permits (general regulations), the 
city council may impose such conditions and safeguards upon the property benefitted by a CUP as may be necessary 
to maintain compatibility with other properties in the neighborhood.   
 

4. Greenwood ordinance section 1150.20, subd 1 states: 
 

“Subd. 1. The planning commission shall make findings and recommendations to the city council. The council may 
then authorize a conditional use by resolution provided the evidence presented is such as to establish: 

 

(a) That the proposed use will comply with the regulations specified in this ordinance for the district in which the 
proposed use is to be located. 

(b) That the use is one of the conditional uses permitted for the district in which it is to be located. 
(c) The use will not be detrimental to or endanger the public health, safety, comfort, convenience or general welfare 

of the neighborhood or city. 
(d) The use will be harmonious with the objectives of the comp plan. 
(e) The use will not be hazardous or disturbing to existing or future neighboring uses. 



Greenwood Resolution 15-15   |   Page 2 of 3 
 

(f) The use will be served adequately by essential public facilities and services, including streets, police and fire 
protection, drainage structures, refuse disposal, sewer, schools, or will be served adequately by such facilities 
and services provided by the persons or agencies responsible for the establishment of the proposed use. 

(g) The use will not create excessive additional requirements at public cost for public facilities and services and will 
not be detrimental to the economic welfare of the community. 

(h) The use will not involve uses, activities, processes, materials, equipment, and conditions of operation that will be 
detrimental to any persons, property or the general welfare because of excessive production of traffic, noise, 
smoke, fumes, glare or odors. 

(i) The use will have vehicular approaches to the property that do not create traffic congestion or interfere with traffic 
on surrounding public thoroughfares. 

(j) The use will not result in the destruction, loss or damage of a natural, scenic or historic feature of major 
importance. 

(k) The use will not depreciate surrounding property values.” 
 
6. The applicant asserts that the proposed CUP request complies with CUP standards in Greenwood ordinance section 

1150.20, subd 1. 
 

7. The planning commission discussed the CUP request and on a 5-0 vote recommended denial because the proposed 
CUP request does not comply with the CUP standards in Greenwood ordinance section 1150.20, subd 1, because: 
 
(a) Absent the associated variance, the interest in the public health, safety, comfort, convenience and general welfare 

of the neighborhood are not being met because the proposed changes will unnecessarily alter the topography of 
the property.  
 

8. Based on the foregoing, the city council determined that the proposed CUP request complies with the CUP standards 
in Greenwood ordinance section 1150.20, subd 1, because: 
 
(a) That the proposed use will comply with the regulations specified in this ordinance for the district in which the 

proposed use is to be located. 
(b) That the use is one of the conditional uses permitted for the district in which it is to be located. 
(c) The use will not be detrimental to or endanger the public health, safety, comfort, convenience or general welfare 

of the neighborhood or city. 
(d) The use will be harmonious with the objectives of the comp plan. 
(e) The use will not be hazardous or disturbing to existing or future neighboring uses. 
(f) The use will be served adequately by essential public facilities and services, including streets, police and fire 

protection, drainage structures, refuse disposal, sewer, schools, or will be served adequately by such facilities 
and services provided by the persons or agencies responsible for the establishment of the proposed use. 

(g) The use will not create excessive additional requirements at public cost for public facilities and services and will 
not be detrimental to the economic welfare of the community. 

(h) The use will not involve uses, activities, processes, materials, equipment, and conditions of operation that will be 
detrimental to any persons, property or the general welfare because of excessive production of traffic, noise, 
smoke, fumes, glare or odors. 

(i) The use will have vehicular approaches to the property that do not create traffic congestion or interfere with traffic 
on surrounding public thoroughfares. 

(j) The use will not result in the destruction, loss or damage of a natural, scenic or historic feature of major 
importance. 

(k) The use will not depreciate surrounding property values. 
 
9.  The city council determined that the following reasonable and necessary conditions relating to the present request are 

made a condition of approval: 
 

(a) The project must be completed according to the specifications and design requirements in the submitted plans. 
(b) A certified copy of this resolution shall be filed by the applicants with the Hennepin County Register of Titles and 

proof of filing provided to the city of Greenwood before any permits may issue or the project commence. 
 
  
 

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 
 

Based upon the foregoing findings of fact, the city council acting as the Board of Appeals & Adjustments makes the 
following conclusions of law: 



Greenwood Resolution 15-15   |   Page 3 of 3 
 

1. The applicant has made an adequate demonstration of facts meeting the standards of sections 1140.19(2) and 
1150.20 necessary for the granting of a CUP.  
 

2. The CUP requested is reasonable and should be granted on the following conditions: 
 

(c) The project must be completed according to the specifications and design requirements in the submitted plans. 
(d) A certified copy of this resolution shall be filed by the applicants with the Hennepin County Register of Titles and 

proof of filing provided to the city of Greenwood before any permits may issue or the project commence. 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the city council of the city of Greenwood, Minnesota acting as the Board of 
Appeals & Adjustments that the city of Greenwood does hereby approve a Conditional Use Permit to the applicant for the 
subject property to regrade the property in order to accommodate a second driveway which would require grading or 
altering site / lot topography involving more than 200 square feet of surface area, and involving more than 20 cubic yards 
of material. 
 
PASSED this 2nd day of December, 2015 by the city council of the city of Greenwood, Minnesota acting as the Board of 
Appeals & Adjustments for the city of Greenwood, Minnesota. 
 
3 AYES 2 NAYS  
 
CITY OF GREENWOOD 
 
By: _____________________________________  
Debra J. Kind, Mayor  
 
Attest: __________________________________ 
Dana Young, City Clerk 



  www.greenwoodmn.com

	
	

Agenda Number: 6B 

Agenda Date: 01-06-16 
Prepared by Dale Cooney 

 
 

Agenda Item: Dining Patio Conditional Use Permit, Excelsior Entertainment (Old Log Theatre), 5185 Meadville Street 
 
Summary:  Copies of the application materials are attached for the City Council’s reference. Notice of the public hearing 
was published in the Sun Sailor newspaper on December 3, 2015. The Planning Commission held the public hearing at 
their December 16, 2015 meeting. The Planning Commission considered public comment, applicant’s comments, 
application materials, staff report, and city code conditional use permit criteria (section 1150.20) when making their 
recommendation to the city council. The City Council must address city code sections 1123.40 and 1150.20 pertaining to 
conditional use permits (see the potential motions below).  
 

Excelsior Entertainment, LLC is proposing to add outdoor dining space to their existing restaurant operation at the Old 
Log Theater. The 670 square foot dining patio would increase the restaurant capacity by 32 dining seats. The proposal 
also accounts for the 4 parking stalls to meet the City of Greenwood’s parking requirements. The proposal requires a 
conditional use permit under City Code Section 1123.30. The staff report that follows addresses only the proposed 
expansion of the business, since the remainder of the business currently operates as a lawful use under Section 1123.25 
of the City Zoning Ordinance. 
 

Section 1123.30, Subd. 1 of the Zoning Ordinance states: “Subject to the rights granted property owners under Minnesota 
statute 462.357 Subd.1e (a), which provides, in part, that ‘any nonconformity, including the lawful use or occupation of 
land or premises existing at the time of the adoption of an additional control under this chapter, may be continued, 
including through repair, replacement, restoration, maintenance, or improvement, but not including expansion,’ any one or 
more the following events related to the ‘Theater with Attached Restaurant’ property commonly known as the Old Log 
Theater, 5185 Meadville Street, Greenwood, Minnesota, (Hennepin County PID numbers 26-117-23-31-0028, 26-117-23-
31-0036, and 26-117-23-34-0001) shall require a conditional use permit be first obtained:  
     

(A) Request for a building permit or zoning approval for physical expansion of any existing building or the addition of 
impervious surface to said property beyond what existed as of the adoption of this control. 

(B) Any change to the manner of use of said property as authorized in section 1123.25, subd. 2.” 
 
Proposed Outdoor Dining Patio: The addition of a dining patio would expand the capacity of the restaurant by 32 dining 
seats. The proposed patio is an at-grade paver patio. No structural expansion is proposed. Outdoor dining activity would 
occur daily during warm weather and will not extend beyond the current hours of operation of 8 am to 11 pm, or until 
midnight for special events. In conversations with the applicant’s representative, Sue Theimer, the role of the patio is to 
keep the restaurant competitive during the warmer months of the year when diners prefer restaurants with an outdoor 
dining option. The expectation is that the patio will stabilize the restaurant business by not losing customers to nearby 
outdoor dining establishments. 
 

The City Council may evaluate if a more restrictive set of house would be required for the outdoor dining area. Section 
820.55, Subd 4(b) of the City Ordinances states “Hours for Outdoor Service. The council may designate the hours of 
service different from those stated herein elsewhere for any accessory location serving food or liquor outside of the 
principal structure on any licensed premise.” 
 

The submitted plan shows eight lounge chairs beyond the patio area. Staff would recommend that no food or drink service 
take place in this area, but would not restrict diners who have purchased a drink elsewhere from using the lounge chairs 
(similar to the procedure that historically has taken place for lounge seating outside the front entrance). 
 

The closest residential lot line to the patio would be approximately 320 feet away. Possible impacts from the outdoor 
dining patio might include noise, odor, light, and associated traffic. Section 1140.55 of the Zoning Code outlines the city 
requirements for noise, odors, vibrations, smoke, and fumes. In addition to any conditions placed upon the conditional use 
permit, the property will need to adhere to the requirements of Section 1140.55. 
 

Noise: The potential for increased noise could impact the surrounding residential properties. Unlike a bar or a pub, the 
upscale dining at the Old Log Theater is unlikely to attract a crowd that would generate significant level of noise. Staff 
believes that the standards addressed in Section 1140.55, Subd. 1 are an adequate regulatory enforcement mechanism 
for possible noise impacts. The existing Conditional Use Permit for the property does not allow outdoor events to employ 



  www.greenwoodmn.com

	
	
amplified music, and the applicant does not propose to have amplified music on the dining patio. As mentioned above, the 
City Council may restrict the outdoor service hours if they feel there is a need to mitigate any potential noise impacts. 
 

Odor: Possible impacts from odor include cooking, and smoke from the proposed fireplace. Staff recommends that no 
cooking be allowed take place outdoors. To eliminate the possible impacts of fireplace smoke, staff recommends that the 
proposed fireplace burn only natural gas. 
 

Light: Ambient glare from additional lighting is another potential impact on the surrounding residential neighborhood. The 
patio plan submitted to the city calls for “dual cantilever umbrella lights.” No specifics are given as to the proposed fixtures. 
Staff recommends that patio lighting fixtures be downcast (preferably full cutoff fixtures) in an effort to reduce additional 
glare. 
 

Traffic: Traffic impacts from the patio expansion are expected to be minimal. The frequency of delivery trucks is not 
expected to increase as a result of the patio expansion. Those events that lead to traffic impacts at the business are 
caused by theater-related special performances, and not by the restaurant. Also, theater attendance peaks during the 
colder months of the year, while the patio would be busiest during the warmer months.  
 

Impervious Surface Impacts: As proposed, the hardcover remains below the maximum 30% impervious surface coverage 
limitation. The patio expansion is the only proposed expansion of hardcover at this time, bringing total hardcover to 25.4%. 
Parking requirements will be met via overflow parking areas and no expanded impervious surfaces for parking are 
proposed at this time. The submitted survey includes hardcover calculations for proposed parking areas if they were to be 
paved in the future. 
 
Parking Requirements: The applicant has demonstrated that there is available space to accommodate the 4 required 
additional parking spaces to meet zoning code requirements. The parking will be located within existing overflow areas. 
 

Section 1140.45, Subd. 11 of the Zoning Ordinance states that theater parking shall include 1 parking space for each 4 
seats plus 1 space for each 2 employees, and that restaurant parking shall include 1 parking space for each 75 square 
feet of gross customer floor area. 
 

According the applicant, the theater has 560 theater seats and 6 full time equivalent employees, while the restaurant, 
including the expansion, has a total of 4,354 square feet of gross customer floor area. Required parking would equal 143 
parking spaces for the theater portion of the business, plus 58 parking spaces for the restaurant potion of the business for 
a total of 201 required parking spaces. Current on-site parking can accommodate 197 parking spaces and the submitted 
site plan demonstrates how the property will accommodate the four additional spaces. 
 
Staff Recommendation: Based upon the requirements listed in Section 1150.20 of the Zoning Code staff recommends 
approval based upon the following findings of fact. The approval recommendation addresses only the proposed 
expansion of the property, and not the entirety of the existing, ongoing uses for the property: 
 

(a) The proposed use complies with the regulations specified in the ordinance for the district in which the proposed 
use is to be located. 

(b) The use is one of the conditional uses permitted for the district in which it is to be located. 
(c) The use will not be detrimental to or endanger the public health, safety, comfort, convenience or general welfare 

of the neighborhood or city. The potential impacts of the expansion are expected to be minimal, and conditions 
placed on the permit will attempt to mitigate those potential impacts as much as is practicable. 

(d) The use will be harmonious with the objectives of the comp plan. The Land Use Element/Goal and Policies 
section of the City’s Comprehensive Plan states as one of its three goals is to “manage commercial areas to be 
free of encroachments or undue impacts on adjacent residential areas.” As proposed, the outdoor dining patio 
would not encroach or have undue impacts on adjacent residential areas. 

(e) The use will not be hazardous or disturbing to existing or future neighboring uses. The current use of the property 
has been in place since the 1940’s, and the proposal expands one of the primary uses of that property. While the 
use is an intensification of the existing restaurant use, it is not of a magnitude or nature that would be more 
hazardous or disturbing to the neighborhood than the ongoing approved uses for the property. 

(f) The use will be served adequately by essential public facilities and services, including streets, police and fire 
protection, drainage structures, refuse disposal, sewer, schools, or will be served adequately by such facilities 
and services provided by the persons or agencies responsible for the establishment of the proposed use. 

(g) The use will not create excessive additional requirements at public cost for public facilities and services and will 
not be detrimental to the economic welfare of the community. 

(h) The use will not involve uses, activities, processes, materials, equipment, and conditions of operation that will be 
detrimental to any persons, property or the general welfare because of excessive production of traffic, noise, 
smoke, fumes, glare or odors. While the dining activities of the building will be expanded to the outdoor patio area, 
the dining activity is of a quiet, fine dining nature and is not the type of activity that would generate a notable 



  www.greenwoodmn.com

	
	

increase in noise levels. Further, there will not be amplified music in the patio dining area. Cooking will not be 
conducted outside, limiting any additional odors. The fireplace will be required to be gas, eliminating impacts from 
smoke. Glare will be limited by requiring downcast light fixtures. Traffic would not be impacted. 

(i) The use will have vehicular approaches to the property that do not create traffic congestion or interfere with traffic 
on surrounding public thoroughfares. City code requires the addition of four additional parking spaces which have 
been addressed as part of this proposal. 

(j) The use will not result in the destruction, loss or damage of a natural, scenic or historic feature of major 
importance. 

(k) The use will not depreciate surrounding property values. The values those properties located near or adjacent to 
a theater with an attached restaurant will not be impacted by this minor expansion of an existing commercial 
operation. 

 
Recommended Conditions: In addition to the conditions related to public health, safety, and welfare that the council may 
impose on conditional uses under section 1150, the council may impose conditions related to the use of the buildings and 
structures and operation of any the business operated upon the property including, but not limited to those listed in 
Section 1123.40 of the Zoning Code.  
 

Staff recommends the following conditions: 
A. Amplified music shall not be permitted in the patio area. 
B. Parking shall be expanded to meet the requirements of Section 1140.45 of the Zoning Code. 
C. Cooking shall not take place on the patio area. 
D. Light fixtures for the patio area shall be downcast fixtures, with a preference for full cutoff fixtures. 
E. The proposed fireplace shall burn only natural gas. 
F. The proposed lounge chair seating beyond the patio area shall not have access to food and drink service. 
G. Authorization of the Conditional Use Permit will expire after one year if the proposed patio expansion is not 

completed according to the submitted plans. 
 
Planning Commission Action: The Planning Commission discussion was focused primarily around the existing traffic 
and safety impacts on Covington Street. The Planning Commission also wanted to call to the attention of the City Council 
Section 1140.70 of the City Code since the standards meant to be addressed in that section most closely mirror the 
current situation between the Old Log Theater and the surrounding neighborhood. Chairman Lucking quoted the text from 
Section 1140.70, Subd. 2: “Vehicular traffic generated by a commercial use shall be channeled and controlled in a manner 
that will avoid congestion on the public street, traffic hazards, and excessive traffic through residential areas, particularly 
truck traffic.” 
 

Commissioner Reeder made a motion to recommend that the City Council deny the application on the grounds that the 
property does not currently have enough required parking to expand the business, and that the proposed additional 
required parking accessing the business via Covington Street would impact the health, safety, and welfare of the 
neighborhood. Commissioner Bechtell seconded the motion. Motion carried 5-0. 
 
Key Dates: 
Application complete:  November 19, 2015 
Notice of Public Hearing published:  December 3, 2015 
Planning Commission Public Hearing:  December 16, 2015 
City Council Consideration:  January 6, 2016 
60 Day Deadline:  January 18, 2016 
120 Day Deadline (if necessary):  March 18, 2016 
 
City Council Action: Action required by January 18, 2016. Suggested motions: 
 

1. I move the city council (1) exercises the city's right to take up to 60 additional days as provided by MN statute 15.99 to 
process the application of Excelsior Entertainment, LLC, extending the deadline to March 18, 2016 to give staff time to 
draft findings for denial; (2) directs staff to send written notification of the extension to the applicant as soon as 
possible; (3) directs staff to draft findings for denial for consideration at the February 3, 2016 city council meeting; and 
(4) directs the findings to include the following: 

  

A. ________________________________ 
B.  ________________________________ 
C.  ________________________________ 

 
2. I move the city council (1) approves the application of the Old Log Theatre for the issuance of a conditional use permit 

to expand the restaurant to include 670 square foot outdoor dining patio; (2) directs staff to draft findings for approval 



  www.greenwoodmn.com

	
	

for consideration at the February 3, 2016 city council meeting; (3) directs the findings to include the staff's 
recommendations regarding the requirements listed in section 1150.20 of the zoning code; (4) directs the findings to 
include staff's recommended conditions as follows: 
 
A. Amplified music shall not be permitted in the patio area. 
B. Parking shall be expanded to meet the requirements of Section 1140.45 of the Zoning Code. 
C. Cooking shall not take place on the patio area. 
D. Light fixtures for the patio area shall be downcast fixtures, with a preference for full cutoff fixtures. 
E. The proposed fireplace shall burn only natural gas. 
F. The proposed lounge chair seating beyond the patio area shall not have access to food and drink service. 
G. Authorization of the Conditional Use Permit will expire after one year if the proposed patio expansion is not 

completed according to the submitted plans. 
 
(5)  Directs the findings to include the following additional conditions: 
 
H. ________________________________ 
I. ________________________________ 
J. ________________________________ 

 
3. Motion for Additional Time: I move the city council (1) exercises the city's right to take up to 60 additional days as 

provided by MN statute 15.99 to process the application of Excelsior Entertainment, LLC, extending the deadline to 
March 18, 2016 for the following reason(s): _________________; and (2) directs staff to send written notification to 
the applicant as soon as possible. 

 
Note: MN statue 15.99 requires a council decision within 60 days. The council may approve or modify a request based on verbal findings of fact and the 
applicant may proceed with their project. However, if the council denies the request, the council must state in writing the reasons for denial at the time 
that it denies the request. The council may extend the 60-day time limit by providing written notice to the applicant including the reason for the extension 
and its anticipated length (may not exceed 60 additional days unless approved by the applicant in writing). 
 
  













From: Barbara Dunlay barbara@siegfrieddunlay.com
Subject: Old Log Theater Outdoor Patio Request

Date: December 15, 2015 at 10:03 PM
To: Debra Kind dkind100@gmail.com

Hi	Deb,
	
I	am	asking	you	to	share	this	le6er	with	your	fellow	Greenwood	Council	Members	and	Planning
Commi6ee	Members	regarding	the	proposed	pa@o	and	outdoor	sea@ng	request	at	the	Old	Log
Theater.
	
I	strongly	support	the	expansion	proposal,	and	hope	(for	the	benefit	of	Greenwood)	you	will	support
it	as	well.
	
Having	this	iconic	venue	–	Old	Log	Theater	–	in	our	beau@ful	community	is	a	giL	to	all	of	us	and	I	am
fully	in	support	of	making	it	even	be6er.		For	nearly	20	years	I	have	lived	within	walking	distance	of
this	treasure	and	have	personally	enjoyed	all	the	improvements	to	date.	I	have	regularly	dined	at
Cast	and	Cru	throughout	the	Summer	and	the	only	thing	missing	is	the	opportunity	to	sit	outside	and
enjoy	our	short	but	lovely	Summer.		We	are	so	fortunate	that	Don	Stoltz	did	not	sell	it	to	a	developer
who	could	have	forever	changed	the	landscape	of	Greenwood.	Let’s	support	this	type	of	growth	in
Greenwood	and	let	people	who	are	willing	to	invest	in	our	future	con@nue	to	do	so.
	
I	received	a	le6er	from	people	in	the	neighborhood	opposing	the	pa@o	and	I	think	it’s	short	sited	and
misinformed.	The	typical	customers	at	Cast	and	Cru	are	not	the	rowdy,	noisemaking	crowd	found	at
Maynard’s	and	it’s	selfish	for	a	small	con@ngent	of	lakeshore	residents	to	be	so	exclusive	–	trying	to
protect	their	small	street	from	extra	traffic.		Having	lived	in	Greenwood	for	two	decades	and	easily
navigated	the	few	minutes	of	traffic	conges@on	following	a	theater	show	closing	has	never	been	an
issue.		And	to	presume	traffic	from	a	few	extra	seats	in	a	restaurant,	along	with	extra	parking	and
food	deliveries	will	disrupt	our	bucolic	community	and		reduce	property	values	is	ridiculous.
	
I	would	hope	that	the	leaders	of	Greenwood	would	con@nue	to	look	at	opportuni@es	to	bring	more
tax	revenue	into	our	community	and	support	the	con@nued	enhancements	made	by	the	new	owners
of	the	Old	Log	Theater.	We	can’t	let	a	small	group	of	people	with	eli@st	aWtudes	prevent	our	small
community	from	benefiWng	from	making	a	great	venue	even	be6er.
	
Thanks	for	considering	this	proposal.
	
Barbara	Dunlay
O	952.474.8546
M	612.581.5777
barbara@siegfrieddunlay.com
siegfrieddunlay.com								
	

mailto:Dunlaybarbara@siegfrieddunlay.com
mailto:Dunlaybarbara@siegfrieddunlay.com
mailto:Kinddkind100@gmail.com
mailto:Kinddkind100@gmail.com
mailto:janell@siegfrieddunlay.com
http://www.siegfrieddunlay.com/






























































































  www.greenwoodmn.com

	

	

Agenda Number: 6C  

Agenda Date: 01-06-16 
Prepared by Deb Kind 

 
 
 
 
Agenda Item: 2nd Reading: Ord 245, Accessory Structures and Uses and Res 03-16, Summary of Ord 245 for Publication 
 
Summary: The 1st reading of the ordinance was approved with revisions at the 10-07-15 city council meeting.  
At the 11-04-15 meeting, the city council continued the 2nd reading of the ordinance in order to allow time to schedule a 
worksession to discuss the city attorney's recommendations. The city council held a worksession on 11-10-15 to discuss 
the city attorney's recommendations. The city council discussed the revised ordinance and additional revisions at a 
worksession held on 12-02-15. At the regular meeting on 12-02-15, the city council approved a motion to continue the 2nd 
reading to allow time for the ordinance to be revised. The updated 12-05-15 draft of the ordinance is attached. Also 
attached is resolution 03-16, a summary of ordinance 245 for publication.  
 
Timeline: 
 

09-09-15  Deadline for the draft of the ordinance for inclusion in the planning commission packet. 
09-16-15  Planning commission holds public hearing and makes a recommendation to the city council. 
10-07-15  City council considers 1st reading of the ordinance (may make revisions). 
11-04-15  City council continued 2nd reading of the ordinance. 
11-10-15 City council held a worksession to discuss city attorney's recommendations. 
01-06-16 City council considers 2nd reading of the ordinance (may make revisions). 
01-07-16  The ordinance is submitted to the Sun-Sailor for publication. 
01-14-16  The ordinance is published in the Sun-Sailor (goes into effect on this date). 
 
Council Action: No action required. Suggested motions ... 
 

1. I move the city council approves the 2nd reading of ordinance 245 regarding accessory structures and uses dated 
12-05-15 (with the following revisions: ____________________). 

 
2. I move the city council approves resolution 03-16, a summary of ordinance 245 for publication. 
 
3. Do nothing or other motion? 

 
 
Greenwood code section 1215 requires 2 readings of all ordinances prior to adoption. The 2nd reading shall be within 3 months of the 1st reading. There 
may be changes between the 1st and 2nd readings. Ordinances go into effect once they are published in the city’s official newspaper. The planning 
commission must review and make a recommendation to the city council regarding any changes to the zoning code chapter 11. A public hearing, 
typically held by the planning commission, also is required for changes to chapter 11. 
 



12-05-15 Greenwood Ordinance 245   |   Page 1 of 10 
  

ORDINANCE NO. 245 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF GREENWOOD, MINNESOTA 
AMENDING GREENWOOD ORDINANCE CODE CHAPTER 11 REGARDING  

SETBACKS AND GENERAL REGULATIONS FOR ACCESSORY STRUCTURES AND USES  
 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GREENWOOD, MINNESOTA DOES ORDAIN: 
 

SECTION 1. 
Greenwood ordinance code section 1102.00 Definitions is hereby amended to add the following new and amended 
definitions:   
 

“Air Conditioner means a device that lowers the air temperature by compressor, refrigeration cycle, evaporation, or free 
cooling.” 
 

“Arbor means an open a structure of vertical posts or lattice that supports cross-beams or an archway, often serving as a 
gate or entrance, and typically covered with trained climbing or trailing plants.” 
 

“Awning means a sheet of canvas or other material attached to a principal or accessory structure that is used to keep the 
sun or rain off a window, doorway, deck, or patio.” 
 

“Building Line means a line parallel to a lot line at the applicable zone building setback, or the foundation line of the 
principal building on the lot, whichever is greater.” 
 

“Deck means an unenclosed roofless horizontal surface constructed of any material (including class 5 gravel) greater than 
2 square feet in area or greater than 10 square feet in a 50 square foot area of a lot. (THIS DEFINITION APPEARS UNDER 
“PATIO, SLAB” AND “DECK”)” 
 

“Driveway means a horizontal surface constructed of any material greater than 10 square feet in area within any 100 
square foot area of a lot that is used for driving or parking vehicles thereon. (THIS DEFINITION APPEARS UNDER “DRIVEWAY” 
AND “PARKING PAD”)” 
 

“Driveway Monument Post means a an upright shaft or structure of stone, brick, or other material, relatively slender in 
proportion to its height used as a monument to define the entrance to a driveway. Frequently has a light or fineal on top.” 
 

“Fire Pit means a hole dug into the ground or a freestanding metal vessel location in which a contained outdoor fire is 
made.” 
 

“Generator means a machine or engine that can produce electrical energy.” 
 

“Monument Sign means any freestanding sign mounted on the ground or mounted on a base that is attached to the 
ground. (SIGNS 1140) ” 
 

“Outdoor Fireplace means a brick, stone, or metal-lined structure with a chimney where fuel is burned and is located 
outdoors. Outdoor fireplaces may be built-in (secured to a foundation or slab), or a freestanding item of movable personal 
property.” 
 

“Outdoor Kitchen means a counter with a grill, range, or other heating source located outdoors. Outdoor kitchens may be 
built-in (secured to a foundation or slab), or a freestanding item of movable personal property.” 
 

“Parking Pad means a horizontal surface constructed of any material greater than 10 square feet in area within any 100 
square foot area of a lot that is used for driving or parking vehicles thereon. (THIS DEFINITION APPEARS UNDER “DRIVEWAY” 
AND “PARKING PAD”) ” 
 

“Patio, Slab means an unenclosed roofless horizontal surface constructed of any material greater than 2 square feet in 
area or greater than 10 square feet in a 50 square foot area of a lot. (THIS DEFINITION APPEARS UNDER “PATIO, SLAB” AND 
“DECK”)”  
 

“Pergola means an open a structure of vertical posts or lattice that supports cross-beams, typically covered with trained 
climbing or trailing plants.” 
 

“Play Structure means a frame for children to play on, typically including one or more swings and a slide. (THIS DEFINITION 
APPEARS UNDER “SWING SET” AND “PLAY STRUCTURE”) ” 
 

“Sidewalk, Path, Walkway, Trail (hereinafter “sidewalk”) means a horizontal surface constructed of any building or 
surfacing material greater than 2 square feet in area or greater than 10 square feet in a 50 square foot area of a lot used 
for pedestrian traffic including walking, biking, etc." 
 

“Sport Court means a horizontal surface area made of any material on which tennis or other sports are played. (THIS 
DEFINITION APPEARS UNDER “SPORT COURT” AND “TENNIS COURT”)” 
 



12-05-15 Greenwood Ordinance 245   |   Page 2 of 10 
  

"Structure means anything constructed or erected, the use of which requires a location on the ground or attachment to 
something having a location on the ground. The word “structure” includes the word “building” as defined in this section.”  
 

“Structure (Floodplain) When used in the context of the floodplain ordinance section 1174, structure means anything 
constructed or erected on the ground or attached to the ground or on-site utilities, including, but not limited to, buildings, 
factories, sheds, detached garages, cabins, manufactured homes, travel trailers / vehicles not meeting the exemption 
criteria specified in section 1174 and other similar items.” 
 

“Structure (Primary Accessory) means an uninhabited subordinate building or other subordinate structure that has a 
footprint that is greater than 36 square feet, is located on the same lot as a principal structure, and the use is clearly 
subordinate to the use of the principal structure. Examples of accessory structures / uses include, but are not limited to, 
detached garages, sheds, and storage buildings.” 
 

“Structure (Principal) means the structure or building which represents the primary building or use of a given lot as 
permitted under the zoning code.” 
 

Structure (Secondary Accessory) means an uninhabited subordinate structure, equipment, or personal property that is 
located on the same lot as a principal structure whose use or enjoyment is supplementary to the use of a principal 
structure or a primary accessory structure. Examples of secondary accessory structures / uses include, but are not limited 
to, patios, decks, slabs, driveways, parking pads, sidewalks, air conditioners, generators, fire pits, outdoor fireplaces, 
outdoor kitchens, swimming pools, hot tubs, spas, tennis courts, sport courts, play structures, swing sets, monument signs 
(commercial properties), pergolas, arbors, trellises. (SEE THE ALPHABETICAL LISTINGS IN THIS SECTION 1102 FOR DEFINITIONS OF 
EACH OF THESE ITEMS)”  
 

“Structure (Water-Oriented Accessory) Pursuant to Minnesota state rule 6120.2500, water-oriented accessory structure 
means a small, above ground building or other improvement, except stairways, fences, docks, and retaining walls, which, 
because of the relationship of its use to a surface water feature, reasonably needs to be located closer to public waters 
than the normal structure setback. Examples of such structures include, but are not limited to, boathouses, gazebos, 
screen houses, fish houses, pump houses, and detached decks.” 
 

“Swimming Pool, Hot Tub, Spa means a structure made of any material that is filled with water and used for swimming, 
soaking, or bathing. Such may be built into the ground or freestanding.” 
 

“Swing Set means a frame for children to play on, typically including one or more swings and a slide. (THIS DEFINITION 
APPEARS UNDER “SWING SET” AND “PLAY STRUCTURE”) ” 
 

“Tennis Court means a horizontal surface area made of any material on which tennis or other sports are played. (THIS 
DEFINITION APPEARS UNDER “SPORT COURT” AND “TENNIS COURT”)” 
 

“Trellis means a vertical structure made from an open framework or lattice of intersecting pieces of any material typically 
covered with trained climbing or trailing plants.”  
 

“Yard means unobstructed space, subject only to lawfully permitted accessory structures and uses (both primary and 
secondary) on the same lot with a building, lying between the foundation wall of the principal structure and the lot lines.  
 

The following illustrations show examples of yard locations: 
 

"       
 

D
ri
v
e

w
a

y

Principal

Structure 

(House)

Front Yard

Lakeside Yard
S

id
e

 Y
a

rd S
id

e
 Y

a
rd

Lake

Street

Front Yard

S
id

e 
Ya

rd

D
riv

ew
ay

Side Yard

Principal
Structure
(house)

Lakeside Yard

Lake

Street

Driveway

Side Yard

F
ro

n
t Y

a
rd

R
e

a
r 

Y
a

rd

Lakeside Yard

Lake

S
tr

e
e

t

Principal

Structure 

(House)



12-05-15 Greenwood Ordinance 245   |   Page 3 of 10 
  

   " 
 
 

“Yard (Front) means the space extending across the full width of the lot and lying between the edge of the public right-of-
way open and actually used for travel and the nearest building line of the principal structure. The front property line, not 
the street pavement, shall be used for measuring the front yard setback. For principal structure or primary accessory 
structures, the foundation wall shall be used for measuring the setback. For secondary accessory structures, the closest 
edge of the structure shall be used for measuring the setback.” 
 

“Yard (Exterior Side) means the space extending across the full width of the lot and lying between the edge of a second 
public right-of-way open and used for travel and the nearest building line of the principal structure. The property line, not 
the street pavement, shall be used for measuring the setback. For principal structure or primary accessory structures, the 
foundation wall shall be used for measuring the setback. For secondary accessory structures, the closest edge of the 
structure shall be used for measuring the setback. Properties with an exterior side yard(s) are referred to in this code as 
“corner lots.” 
 

“Yard (Lake or Lakeside) means the space extending the full width of the lot and lying between the ordinary high water 
level of the lake and the nearest building line of the principal structure. In no event shall the lakeside yard be interpreted to 
coincide with definition of front yard contained herein. For principal structure or primary accessory structures, the 
foundation wall shall be used for measuring the setback. For secondary accessory structures, the closest edge of the 
structure shall be used for measuring the setback.” 
 

“Yard (Rear) means the space between the rear property line and the nearest building line of the principal structure, for 
the full width of the lot. The rear yard typically is located opposite that of the front yard. For lots that front on 2 or more 
streets, the zoning administrator shall determine the location of the rear yard. For principal structure or primary accessory 
structures, the foundation wall shall be used for measuring the setback. For secondary accessory structures, the closest 
edge of the structure shall be used for measuring the setback.” 
 

“Yard (Side) means the space between the side property line of the lot and the nearest building line of the principal 
structure extending the full length of the property. For principal structure or primary accessory structures, the foundation 
wall shall be used for measuring the setback. For secondary accessory structures, the closest edge of the structure shall 
be used for measuring the setback.”  
 
SECTION 2. 
Greenwood ordinance code section 1120.05 R-1A Permitted Uses is amended to read as follows: 
 

“Section 1120.05. R-1A Permitted Uses.  
 

No building shall be used or shall hereafter be erected, altered or converted in any manner, except as provided in section 
1120 et seq. Permitted uses shall be: 
 

Subd. 1. Principal Uses. 
 

 (a) Single-family detached dwellings (excluding the leasing or renting of rooms). 
 (b) Open area, parks and playgrounds owned and operated by a public agency, or by a home association for a 

subdivision or neighborhood. 
 (c) Residential subdivisions, including streets, lighting, sanitary sewer service, and water service. 
 (d) Uses mandated in state statutes as permitted uses. 
 

Subd. 2. Primary Accessory Uses. 
 

(a) Private detached garages. 

D
ri
v
e

w
a

y

Front Yard

Rear Yard

S
id

e
 Y

a
rd

S
id

e
 Y

a
rd

Street

Principal

Structure 

(House)

Front Yard

E
x
te

rio
r S

id
e

Y
a

rd

Rear Yard

S
id

e
 Y

a
rd

D
ri
v
e

w
a

y

Street

Principal

Structure 

(House)

S
tr

e
e

t



12-05-15 Greenwood Ordinance 245   |   Page 4 of 10 
  

(b) Tool house, sheds, and similar storage areas for domestic supplies. 
(c) Commonly accepted municipal playground equipment, and park shelter buildings. 
(d) Swimming beaches. 
(d) Boat docks. 
(e) Home occupations as regulated by section 480. 
(f) Signs as regulated in section 1140 et seq. 

 

Subd. 3. Secondary Accessory Uses. 
 

(a) Off-street parking, driveways, parking pads. 
(b) Play structures, swing sets. 
(c) Patios, decks, slabs, sidewalks. 
(d) Air conditioners, generators. 
(e) Fire pits, outdoor fireplaces, outdoor kitchens for the use and convenience of the resident and their guests. 
(f) Freestanding swimming pools, hot tubs, spas for the use and convenience of the resident and their guests. 
(g) Pergolas, arbors, trellises. 

 

Subd. 4. Conditional Uses. 
 

(a) Public utilities including such items as electrical distribution station or any such similar structure located above 
ground. 

(b) Permanent in-ground swimming pools and spas for the use and convenience of the resident and their guests. 
(c) Tennis courts, sport courts. 
(d) Signs as regulated in section 1140 et seq. 
(e) Churches, chapels, synagogues, temples, and similar religious buildings.” 
(f) Uses mandated in state statutes as conditional uses.” 

 
SECTION 3. 
Greenwood ordinance code section 1122.05 R-1B Permitted Uses is amended to read as follows: 
 

“Section 1122.05. R-1B Permitted Uses.  
 

No building shall be used or shall hereafter be erected, altered or converted in any manner, except as provided in section 
1122 et seq. Permitted uses shall be: 
 

Subd. 1. Principal Uses. 
 

(a) Uses as permitted in the R-1A district. 
 

Subd. 2. Primary Accessory Uses. 
 

(a) Uses as permitted in the R-1A district. 
 

Subd. 3. Secondary Accessory Uses. 
 

(a) Uses as permitted in the R-1A district. 
 

Subd. 4. Conditional Uses. 
 

(a) Uses as permitted in the R-1A district.” 
 
SECTION 4. 
Greenwood ordinance code section 1123.05 R-1C Permitted Uses is amended to read as follows: 
 

“Section 1123.05. R-1C Permitted Uses.  
 

No building shall be used or shall hereafter be erected, altered or converted in any manner, except as provided in section 
1123 et seq. Permitted uses shall be: 
 

Subd. 1. Principal Uses. 
 

(a) Uses as permitted in the R-1A district. 
 

Subd. 2. Primary Accessory Uses. 
 

(a) Uses as permitted in the R-1A district. 
 

Subd. 3. Secondary Accessory Uses. 
 

(a) Uses as permitted in the R-1A district. 
 

Subd. 4. Conditional Uses. 



12-05-15 Greenwood Ordinance 245   |   Page 5 of 10 
  

 

(a) Uses as permitted in the R-1A district. 
(b) Theater with Attached Restaurant.” 

 
SECTION 5. 
Greenwood ordinance code section 1125.05 R-2 Permitted Uses is amended to read as follows: 
 

“Section 1125.05. R-2 Permitted Uses.  
 

No building shall be used or shall hereafter be erected, altered or converted in any manner, except as provided in section 
1125 et seq. Permitted uses shall be: 
 

Subd. 1. Principal Uses. 
 

(a) Uses as permitted in the R-1A district. 
 

Subd. 2. Primary Accessory Uses. 
 

(a) Uses as permitted in the R-1A district. 
 

Subd. 3. Secondary Accessory Uses. 
 

(a) Uses as permitted in the R-1A district. 
 

Subd. 4. Conditional Uses. 
 

(a) Uses as permitted in the R-1A district.” 
 
SECTION 6. 
Greenwood ordinance code section 1120.15 R-1A Setbacks is amended to read as follows: 
 

"Section 1120.15. R-1A Setbacks.  
 

Subject to the provisions of section 1176 et seq., the following front, side, rear, and lake yard setbacks shall be 
considered as minimum standards for buildings: 
 

Land Use 
Front             
Yard Side Yard  

Exterior 
Side  
Yard  

(Corner 
Lot) 

Rear             
Yard  

Lake  
Yard  

Single-Family Principal Structure 30 feet 15 feet 30 feet 35 feet 50 feet 
Municipal Park Equipment & 
Buildings 50 feet 50 feet 50 feet 50 feet Not Allowed 

Public & Private Utilities 50 feet 100 feet 50 feet 100 feet 100 feet 

Accessory Structures See section 1140.10 for Accessory Structures and Uses (primary and 
secondary) Setbacks and General Regulations 

 
SECTION 7. 
Greenwood ordinance code section 1122.15 R-1B Setbacks is amended to read as follows: 

“Section 1122.15. R-1B Setbacks.  
 

Subject to the provisions of section 1176 et seq., the following front, side, rear, and lake yard setbacks shall be 
considered as minimum standards for buildings: 
 

Land Use 
Front             
Yard Side Yard  

Exterior 
Side  
Yard  

(Corner 
Lot) 

Rear             
Yard  

Lake  
Yard  

Single-Family Principal Structure 35 15 35 60 50 
Municipal Park Equipment & 
Buildings 

Same as  
R-1A 

Same as  
R-1A 

Same as  
R-1A 

Same as  
R-1A 

Same as  
R-1A 

Public & Private Utilities Same as  
R-1A 

Same as  
R-1A 

Same as  
R-1A 

Same as  
R-1A 

Same as  
R-1A 

Accessory Structures See section 1140.10 for Accessory Structures and Uses (primary and 
secondary) Setbacks and General Regulations 

 
SECTION 8. 
Greenwood ordinance code section 1123.15 R-1C Setbacks is amended to read as follows: 



12-05-15 Greenwood Ordinance 245   |   Page 6 of 10 
  

“Section 1123.15. R-1C Setbacks.  
 

Subject to the provisions of section 1176 et seq., the following front, side, rear, and lake yard setbacks shall be 
considered as minimum standards for buildings: 
 

Land Use Front             
Yard Side Yard  

Exterior Side  
Yard (Corner 

Lot) 
Rear             
Yard  

Single-Family Principal Structure Same as  
R-1A 

Same as  
R-1A 

Same as  
R-1A 

Same as  
R-1A 

Municipal Park Equipment & 
Buildings 

Same as  
R-1A 

Same as  
R-1A 

Same as  
R-1A 

Same as  
R-1A 

Public & Private Utilities Same as  
R-1A 

Same as  
R-1A 

Same as  
R-1A 

Same as  
R-1A 

Accessory Structures See section 1140.10 for Accessory Structures and Uses (primary 
and secondary) Setbacks and General Regulations 

     

Land Use 
Front Yard 
(Southerly 

Yard - Parking 
Lot) 

Side Yard 
(Easterly Yard 

- Trail) 

Exterior Side 
Yard 

(Westerly 
Yard) 

Rear Yard 
(Northerly 

Yard - Pond) 

Theater with Attached Restaurant  180 feet 15 feet 50 feet 
Per 

Watershed 
Rules 

Theater with Attached Restaurant 
Primary Accessory Structures 

Not Allowed 
180 feet 10 feet 35 feet 

Per 
Watershed 

Rules 

Theater with Attached Restaurant 
Secondary Accessory Structures 

See section 1140.10 subd. 2C for Setbacks and General 
Regulations for Secondary Accessory Structures and Uses  

 
SECTION 9. 
Greenwood ordinance code section 1125.15 and R-2 Setbacks is amended to read as follows: 

“Section 1125.15. R-2 Setbacks.  
 

Subject to the provisions of section 1176 et seq., the following front, side, rear, and lake yard setbacks shall be 
considered as minimum standards for buildings: 
 

Land Use 
Front             
Yard Side Yard  

Exterior 
Side  
Yard  

(Corner 
Lot) 

Rear             
Yard  

Lake  
Yard  

Single-Family Principal Structure 30 feet 10 feet 30 feet 35 feet 50 feet 

Municipal Park Equipment Same as  
R-1A 

Same as  
R-1A 

Same as  
R-1A 

Same as  
R-1A 

Same as  
R-1A 

Public & Private Utilities Same as  
R-1A 

Same as  
R-1A 

Same as  
R-1A 

Same as  
R-1A 

Same as  
R-1A 

Accessory Structures See section 1140.10 for Accessory Structures and Uses (primary and 
secondary) Setbacks and General Regulations 

 
SECTION 10. 
Greenwood ordinance code section 1120.20 and R-1A Building Minimum Requirements is amended to read as follows: 
 

“Section 1120.20. R-1A Building Minimum Requirements. 
 

Subd. 1. Principal structures in the district shall: 

 (a) not exceed 28 feet in building height and 42 feet in structure height, 
 (b) be of a minimum width of 25 feet, 
 (c) have a minimum floor space of 800 square feet, 
 (d) be supported by foundation walls and frost footings of 42 inches in depth or current state building code, 

requirements whichever is greater, 
 (e) meet all current standards of city building codes and appendices, 
 (f) be served with a private garage and hard-surfaced (see section 1140.46) driveway to the public street.  

Subd. 2. Primary accessory structures in the district shall: 

 (a) be limited to 1 private garage, and 1 tool house shed or similar storage building per principal structure, 



12-05-15 Greenwood Ordinance 245   |   Page 7 of 10 
  

 (b) not exceed 15 feet in building height, 
 (c) have a maximum combined floor space of all primary accessory structures on the lot of 1,000 square feet and in 

no event shall the accessory structures of private garage, tool house shed, and similar storage buildings 
combined exceed 60% of the total at-grade, main floor square footage of the principal structure, 

 (d)  meet all current standards of city building codes and appendices.” 
 
SECTION 11. 
Greenwood ordinance code section 1122.20 and R-1B Building Minimum Requirements is amended to read as follows: 
 

“Section 1122.20. R-1B Permitted Uses.  
 

Subd. 1. Principal structures in the district shall: 
 

(a) Minimum requirements as listed in the R-1A district. 
 

Subd. 2. Primary accessory structures in the district shall: 
 

(a) Minimum requirements as listed in the R-1A district. 
 
SECTION 12. 
Greenwood ordinance code section 1123.20 and R-1C Building Minimum Requirements is amended to read as follows: 
 

“Section 1123.20. R-1C Permitted Uses.  
 

Subd. 1. Principal structures in the district shall: 
 

(a) Minimum requirements as listed in the R-1A district. 
 

Subd. 2. Primary accessory structures in the district shall: 
 

(a) Minimum requirements as listed in the R-1A district. 
 
SECTION 13. 
Greenwood ordinance code section 1125.20 and R-2 Building Minimum Requirements is amended to read as follows: 
 

“Section 1125.20. R-2 Permitted Uses.  
 

Subd. 1. Principal structures in the district shall: 
 

(a) Minimum requirements as listed in the R-1A district. 
 

Subd. 2. Primary accessory structures in the district shall: 
 

(a) Minimum requirements as listed in the R-1A district. 
 
SECTION 14. 
Greenwood ordinance code section 1140.10 is amended to read as follows: 
 

“Section 1140.10. Setbacks and General Regulations for Accessory Structures and Uses (Primary and 
Secondary).  
 

Subd. 1. Purpose. To preserve (1) the public safety and welfare, (2) the enjoyment of property, (3) property values, and 
(4) to prevent adverse impacts arising from overcrowding or competing uses associated with the placement of accessory 
structures and uses, the city has determined that the below setbacks and regulations are necessary to protect the public 
welfare of the city.  
 

Subd. 2. Setback Standards for Accessory Structures and Uses (Primary and Secondary).  
 

A. Unobstructed Green Space Perimeter Requirement. All lots shall establish and maintain a 2-foot wide green space 
perimeter of open yard space along all lot lines (boundary lines) free of all accessory structures and uses (primary and 
secondary), subject only to (a) the right angle traversing of same by driveway, parking pad, or sidewalk, (b) code 
compliant authorized fences, and (c) code compliant authorized lakeside improvements.  

 

B. Primary Accessory Structures and Uses Setback Minimums - Residential Zones. Subject to the Unobstructed Green 
Space Perimeter Requirement (subd. 2A above), the minimum yard setback for all primary accessory structures / 
uses in residential zones R-1A, R-1B, R-1C, and R-2, inclusive, (as same are defined in this code including sections 
1120, 1122, 1123, and 1125), are as follows: 

 
 
 
 
 
 



12-05-15 Greenwood Ordinance 245   |   Page 8 of 10 
  

 

Front  
Yard  

Setback 

Side  
Yard  

Setback 

Exterior  
Side Yard 
Setback 

(Corner Lot) 

Rear  
Yard  

Setback 

Lakeside  
Yard  

Setback 

Primary Accessory Structures - Residential Zones  
(see sections 1120.20, 1122.20, 1123.20, 1125.20 for more regulations) 100 feet 10 feet 30 feet 10 feet 50 feet 

 
C. Secondary Accessory Structures and Uses Setback Minimums. Subject to the Unobstructed Green Space Perimeter 

Requirement (subd. 2A above), for each of the specific secondary accessory structures / uses identified in the table 
below, the minimum yard setbacks stated therein shall control and supersede the setback minimums for primary 
accessory structures stated in subd. 2B above. See section 1102 for definitions. 

 

 

Front  
Yard  

Setback 

Side  
Yard  

Setback 

Exterior  
Side Yard 
Setback 

(Corner Lot) 

Rear  
Yard  

Setback 

Lakeside  
Yard  

Setback 
Driveways, Parking Pads (see section 1140.46) 0 feet  5 feet 0 feet 10 feet 50 feet 
Driveway Monument Posts (see subd. 8 below) 2 feet 5 feet 2 feet Not allowed Not allowed 
Fire Pits (built-in or freestanding) 50 feet 5 feet 30 feet 10 feet 10 feet 
Monument Signs (for commercially-regulated properties only, see 
section 1140.40 subd 8(d) for more regulations) 2 feet 10 feet 2 feet Not allowed Not allowed 

Outdoor Fireplaces, Outdoor Kitchens (built-in or freestanding) 50 feet 5 feet 30 feet 10 feet 35 feet 
Patio, Deck, Slabs – less than 30 inches in height at all 
points, excluding railing, pergola, etc. 50 feet 5 feet 30 feet 10 feet 35 feet 

Patio, Deck, Slabs – 30+ inches in height at any point, 
excluding railing, pergola, etc. 50 feet 10 feet 30 feet 10 feet 50 feet  

Pergolas, Arbors, Trellises (see subd 4 below) 20 feet  5 feet 30 feet 10 feet 35 feet 
Sidewalks (see subd. 5 below) 0 feet  5 feet 0 feet 10 feet 0 feet 
Sport Courts, Tennis Courts (see subd. 6 below) 50 feet 10 feet 30 feet 10 feet 50 feet 
Swimming Pools, Hot Tubs – freestanding 50 feet 5 10 feet 30 feet 10 feet 35 feet 
Swimming Pools, Spas – in-ground (see subd. 7 below) 50 feet 10 feet 30 feet 10 feet 50 feet 
Miscellaneous Secondary Accessory Structures Not Listed 
Above – 2 square feet footprint or greater (see subd. 9 below) Setbacks determined as part of conditional use permit process 

 
Subd. 3. Proximity and Attachment of Primary Accessory Structures to Principal Structures. If a primary accessory 
structure is attached or physically connected to the main principal structure by any means, utility connections excepted, it 
shall be deemed a part of the main principal structure and shall comply in all respects with the requirements of the zoning 
ordinance applicable to the principal structure. No primary accessory structure shall be closer than 5 feet to the principal 
structure. No primary accessory structure may be attached to and / or made a part of the principal structure, if so doing 
would cause the principal structure to become noncompliant with the setbacks applicable to the principal structure. 
 

Subd. 4. Pergolas, Arbors, and Trellises. Must meet the setback requirements in subd. 2C above. The maximum height 
for a pergola or arbor is 10 12 feet. The maximum total combined square feet footprint per property for pergolas or arbors 
located in a garden, in a grassy area, or over a sidewalk is 100 square feet. The maximum total combined square foot per 
property for pergolas located over decks or patios that are compliant with the setbacks in subd. 2C above is 400 square 
feet. The maximum total combined linear feet per property for trellises located in a garden or grassy area is 50 feet. 
Trellises up to 2 additional feet in height may be added as a decorative element to a code compliant fence so long as the 
combined length of the trellises do not exceed 10% of the total length of the property line. In no case shall a Trellis exceed 
8 feet in height unless it is attached to the principal structure or primary accessory structure.  
 

Subd. 5. Sidewalks. Must meet the setback requirements in subd. 2C above. Sidewalks may exceed 4 feet in only one 
direction. If adjacent to lakeshore, sidewalks must be perpendicular (not parallel) to the shoreline. 
 

Subd. 6. Sport Courts and Tennis Courts. Must meet the setback requirements in subd. 2C above. A conditional use 
permit is required for all sport courts and tennis courts subject to reasonable conditions for the protection of public safety, 
health, and welfare. 
 

Subd. 7. In-Ground Swimming Pools and In-Ground Spas. Must meet the setback requirements in subd. 2C above.  
All equipment related to operation or maintenance of an in-ground pool or in-ground spa must comply with the setbacks.  
A conditional use permit is required for all in-ground pools and in-ground spas subject to reasonable conditions for the 
protection of public safety, health, and welfare. 
 



12-05-15 Greenwood Ordinance 245   |   Page 9 of 10 
  

Subd. 8. Driveway Monument Posts. Must meet the setback requirements in subd. 2C above. A maximum of 2 posts are 
allowed per driveway entrance (1 post on each side of the driveway). The maximum dimensions for each driveway 
monument post is 3 feet wide, 3 feet deep, 7 feet tall including a light or fineal. 
 

Subd. 9. Miscellaneous Secondary Accessory Structures. A conditional use permit is required for secondary accessory 
structures that have a 2 square feet footprint or greater and are not listed on the table in subd. 2C above. Miscellaneous 
secondary accessory structures are subject to reasonable conditions for the protection of public safety, health, and 
welfare.” 
 
SECTION 15. 
Greenwood ordinance code section 1140.11 “Swimming Pool Standards” repealed in its entirety. 
 
SECTION 16. 
Greenwood ordinance code section 1140.20 is amended to read as follows: 
 

"Section 1140.20. Yard Regulations.  
 

The following requirements qualify or supplement, as the case may be, the district regulations appearing elsewhere in this 
ordinance. Measurements shall be taken from the nearest point of the structure (foundation wall of a building) to the lot 
line in question, subject to the following qualifications: 

Subd. 1. Determination of Yard Locations. For lots that front on 2 or more public right-of-ways (corner lots), the zoning 
administrator shall determine the location of the front yard, exterior side yard, and rear yard.  

Subd. 2. Limit on Front Yard and Exterior Side Yards. No lot shall be required to provide more than 1 front yard or more 
than 1 exterior side yard setback.  
Subd. 3. Buildable Width of Lots. The front yard setback requirements shall be observed on each street side of a corner 
lot; provided, however, that the buildable width of a lot shall not be reduced to less than 30 feet. 
 

Subd. 4. Yards for Open Land Uses. Where a lot is to be occupied for permitted use without buildings of structures 
thereon, the side yards and front yards required herein for the zone within which such lot is located, shall be provided and 
maintained between such use and the respective lot lines; provided that side and rear yards shall not be required on lots 
without buildings of structures, used for garden purposes or public playgrounds. 
 

Subd. 5. Regulations of Obstructions in Required Yards.  
 

A. Obstructions in Front or Exterior Side Yards. The required front yard or exterior side yard (corner lots) shall not 
contain any wall, fence, structure, tree, shrub, or other growth that may cause danger to traffic on a public street by 
obscuring the view. 

 

B. Air Conditioners and Generators. Must be located within 5 feet of the wall of a principal structure or accessory 
structure. May encroach into a required yard setback as long as there is a minimum of a 5-foot setback from the 
property line. Generators over 20kw require a conditional use permit subject to reasonable conditions for the 
protection of public safety, health, and welfare. 

 

C. Awnings. Must extend no more than 4 feet from the wall of a principal structure or accessory structure. May encroach 
into a required yard setback as long as there is a minimum of a 5-foot setback from the property line. 

 

D. Eaves and Gutters. Must extend no more than 30 inches from the wall of a principal structure or accessory structure. 
May encroach into a required yard setback as long as there is a minimum of a 5 7.5-foot setback from the property 
line. Eaves and gutters encroaching into a required yard setback may extend no more than 30 inches from the wall of 
a principal structure or accessory structure. Eaves and gutters may encroach into a required yard setback as long as 
there is a minimum of a 7.5-foot setback from the property line. Gutter downspouts may encroach up to 5 feet into a 
yard setback.  

 

E. Fire Escapes. Open or lattice enclosed fire escapes or fireproof outside stairways may project into a required yard 
setback up to 2 feet as long as there is a minimum of a 5 8-foot setback from the property line." 

 
SECTION 17. 
Greenwood ordinance code section 1140.46 “Driveways” is amended to read as follows: 
 

“Section 1140.46. Driveways and Parking Pads.   
 

Subd. 1. Purpose. The city finds that sand, gravel, and dirt from driveways and parking pads are a source of uncontrolled 
eroded sediment and outwash upon the streets and roads of the community. Furthermore, that such uncontrolled material 
is a hazard to pedestrians, vehicles, and the public welfare in general by creating an uncertain and varied surface on the 
traveled portion of the community streets and roads; that the material is carried by surface waters and deposited upon 



12-05-15 Greenwood Ordinance 245   |   Page 10 of 10 
 

lowlands, wetlands and lakes of the community, thereby adding unnecessary sediment and deleterious material to the 
community water sources. Wherefore the lowlands, wetlands, and lakes of the city and the safety of travelers upon the 
community streets and roads must be protected in the interest of the public health, safety and welfare. Therefore, the city 
has determined that the standards set forth below are necessary to protect the health, safety, and welfare of the city. 
 

Subd. 2. Standards for Driveways and Parking Pads. Each residential lot shall be limited to one 24-foot curb cut for a 
driveway. If curb cuts are a minimum of 48 feet apart, an additional 24-foot curb cut for a driveway or parking pad shall 
may be allowed with a conditional use permit subject to reasonable conditions for the protection of public safety, health, 
and welfare. 
 

Subd. 3. Surface Materials for Driveways and Parking Pads. All driveways and parking pads that abut public streets shall 
be constructed with bituminous blacktop, cement, brick pavers, or similar material in such a manner as to eliminate areas 
of open sand, gravel, or dirt.” 
 

Subd. 4. Proscriptions. 
 

A. Inspections. All driveways shall be subject to inspection by the city building inspector. The city building inspector 
shall issue a warning to any property owner who fails to comply with the provisions of this ordinance. The warning 
shall notify the owner of the provisions of this ordinance and direct that the property owner bring their property into 
compliance or face a fine. Upon the issuance of a warning to the property owner, all driveways on their property 
shall be brought into compliance within 30 days or a day certain set by the city building inspector not to be less 
than 30 days from the date of the warning. A violation of this section is a misdemeanor. 

 

B. Fines shall be waived upon presentation to the city clerk of a contract or other suitable evidence of intent to 
comply on a day certain. Such extension shall not exceed 30 days beyond the termination of the warning period. 

 

C. Variances. Upon the recommendation of the city building inspector the city council may grant a variance where 
compliance would cause an undue hardship or it is determined that a driveway may be partially paved and 
achieve the purposes of this ordinance. Variances shall be subject to periodic review and revocation where an 
abuse of the granted variance is found or financial circumstances of the owner change. 

 
SECTION 18. 
Effective Date. This ordinance shall be effective upon publication according to law. 
 
Enacted by the city council of Greenwood, Minnesota this ___ day of _____________, 2015. 
 
____ AYES ____ NAYS 
 
CITY OF GREENWOOD 
 
By: _____________________________________  
Debra J. Kind, Mayor  
 
Attest: __________________________________ 
Dana Young, City Clerk 
 
First reading: October 7, 2015 
Second reading: _____, 2016 
Publication: _____, 2016 
 



RESOLUTION 03-16 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING PUBLICATION  
OF ORDINANCE NUMBER 245 BY TITLE AND SUMMARY 

 
WHEREAS, on January 6, 2016, the city council of the city of Greenwood adopted “Ordinance 245 amending Greenwood 

ordinance code chapter 11 Regarding Setbacks and General Regulations for Accessory Structures and Uses” 
 
WHEREAS, the city council has prepared a summary of ordinance 245 as follows: 

1. The purpose of this ordinance is to add new definitions, clarify old definitions, establish setbacks, and establish 
general regulations regarding primary and secondary accessory structures / uses to preserve (1) the public safety 
and welfare, (2) the enjoyment of property, (3) property values, and (4) to prevent adverse impacts arising from 
overcrowding or competing uses associated with the placement of accessory structures and uses. 

2. The ordinance includes a new Unobstructed Green Space Perimeter Requirement that states: “All lots shall 
establish and maintain a 2-foot wide green space perimeter of open yard space along all lot lines (boundary lines) 
free of all accessory structures and uses (primary and secondary), subject only to (a) the right angle traversing of 
same by driveway, parking pad, or sidewalk, (b) code compliant authorized fences, and (c) code compliant 
authorized lakeside improvements.” 

3. The ordinance includes a new table that lists setback standards for the following: Primary Accessory Structures - 
Residential Zones; Driveways, Parking Pads; Driveway Monument Posts, Fire Pits; Monument Signs; Outdoor 
Fireplaces, Outdoor Kitchens; Pato, Deck, Slabs; Pergolas, Arbors, Trellises; Sidewalks; Sport Courts, Tennis 
Courts; Swimming Pools, Hot Tubs, Spas; and Miscellaneous Secondary Accessory Structures.  

4. The ordinances includes general regulations for Pergolas, Arbors, and Trellises; Sidewalks; Sport Courts and 
Tennis Courts; In-Ground Swimming Pools and In-Ground Spas; Driveway Monument Posts; Miscellaneous 
Secondary Accessory Structures; and Driveways and Parking Pads. 

5. The ordinance includes regulations of obstructions in required yards for Air Conditioners and Generators; 
Awnings; Eaves and Gutters; Fire Escapes. 

NOW THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GREENWOOD: 
1. The city council finds that the above title and summary of ordinance 245 clearly informs the public of intent and 

effect of the ordinance. 

2. The city clerk is directed to publish ordinance 245 by title and summary, pursuant to Minnesota statutes, section 
412.191, subdivision 4. 

3. A full copy of the ordinance is available at the Greenwood city office, 20225 Cottagewood Road, Deephaven, MN 
55331. 

ADOPTED by the city council of the city of Greenwood, Minnesota this ___ day of _____________, 2016. 
 
____ AYES   ____ NAYS  
 
CITY OF GREENWOOD 
Debra J. Kind, Mayor 
Attest: Dana Young, City Clerk 
First reading: October 7, 2015 
Second reading: ________, 2016 
Publication: ________, 2016 
 



  www.greenwoodmn.com

	

	

Agenda Number: 6D 

Agenda Date: 01-06-16 
Prepared by Dale Cooney 

 
 
 
 
Agenda Item: Ordinance 249, Amending Greenwood Ordinance Sections 510, 1140.60, 1150.20, and 1155 Regarding 
Security Deposits / Agreements for Landscaping and for Conditions of Approved Variances and Conditional Use Permits 
 
Summary: In October, the city council approved the 2nd reading of the updated fee schedule which increased the 
Landscaping Security Deposit amount to 2% of the building permit value and also added language to allow the property 
owner to sign a Landscaping Security Agreement as an alternative to a Deposit. The city attorney advises that body of the 
city code also needs to be revised. 
 
Planning Commission Action: On 12-16-15, the Planning Commission held a public hearing and made the following 
recommendation to the city council:  

Commissioner Bechtell motioned that the Planning Commission recommend adopting Ordinance No. 249: An Ordinance 
of the City Of Greenwood, Minnesota Amending Greenwood Ordinance Greenwood Code Chapter 1100 Regarding 
Security Deposits / Agreements for Landscaping and for Conditions of Approved Variances and Conditional Use Permits, 
as written. Motion seconded by Commissioner Conrad. Motion carried 5-0. 

Timeline: 
11-04-15  City council discusses the ordinance (may make revisions). 
12-16-15 Planning commission reviews and makes a recommendation regarding the ordinance. 
01-06-16 City council considers 1st reading of the ordinance (may make revisions, may waive 2nd reading). 
01-07-16 The ordinance is submitted to the Sun-Sailor for publication. 
01-14-16 The ordinance is published in the Sun-Sailor (goes into effect on this date). 
02-03-16 If 2nd reading is not waived, the city council considers 2nd reading. 
02-04-16 The ordinance is submitted to the Sun-Sailor for publication. 
02-11-16 The ordinance is published in the Sun-Sailor (goes into effect on this date). 
 
Council Action: None required. Suggested motions … 
 

1. I move the city council approves the 1st reading of ordinance 249 regarding security deposits and agreements 
(with the following changes: ________________). 

 
2. I move the city council waives the 2nd reading of ordinance 249 and directs the city clerk to submit the ordinance 

to the Sun-Sailor for publication on 01-14-16. 
 
3. Do nothing or other motion? 

 
Greenwood code section 1215 requires 2 readings of all ordinances prior to adoption. The 2nd reading shall be within 3 months of the 1st reading. There 
may be changes between the 1st and 2nd readings. Ordinances go into effect once they are published in the city’s official newspaper. The planning 
commission must review and make a recommendation to the city council regarding any changes to the zoning code chapter 11. A public hearing, 
typically held by the planning commission, also is required for changes to chapter 11. 
 



12-23-15 Greenwood Ordinance 249   |   Page 1 of 3 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 249 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF GREENWOOD, MINNESOTA 
AMENDING GREENWOOD ORDINANCE SECTIONS 510, 1140.60, 1150.20, AND 1155 REGARDING SECURITY 
DEPOSITS / AGREEMENTS FOR LANDSCAPING AND FOR CONDITIONS OF APPROVED VARIANCES AND 

CONDITIONAL USE PERMITS 
 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GREENWOOD, MINNESOTA DOES ORDAIN: 
 

SECTION 1. 
 

Greenwood ordinance code section 1140.60, subd. 2 is amended to read as follows:  
 

"Subd. 2. Landscaping.  
 

A) Landscaping Required. Within all zoning districts, exposed ground areas surrounding a principal or accessory use, 
including street boulevards, which are not devoted to drives, sidewalks, patios, or other such uses shall be 
landscaped with grass, shrubs, trees, or other ornamental landscaping material deemed adequate by the zoning 
administrator to secure the top soils and prevent accelerated or undue runoff. The property owner shall maintain all 
landscaped areas to be compatible with the neighborhood. No landscaped area in the C-1 and C-2 districts shall be 
used for the parking of vehicles or the storage or display of materials, supplies, or merchandise. 

 

B) Landscaping Security Deposit. No “occupancy permit” (new construction) or “final inspection” (remodeling) shall be 
issued unless landscaping required hereunder is completed or the property owner first submits to the city clerk a 
Landscaping Security Deposit by cashier’s check or certified check in the amount of set forth in chapter 5 payable to 
the city as security for the completion of the required landscaping within 12 months from the date of the occupancy 
permit / final inspection to be then issued. The deposit is refundable if the required landscaping is completed within 12 
months. 

 

C) Landscaping Security Agreement. As an alternative to a Landscaping Security Deposit as provided in paragraph B 
above, the property owner may enter into a Landscaping Security Agreement in form as provided by the city. By 
entering into Security Agreement the property owner agrees that if the landscaping is not completed within 12 months 
of the issuance of the occupancy permit (new construction) or final inspection (remodeling projects), whichever is 
applicable, then all applicable fees and fines may be certified to the county to be collected with property taxes. No 
fees or fines will be certified to the county if the required landscaping is completed within 12 months. 

 

D) Non-Performance. In the event a property owner fails to complete the required landscaping within 12 months of the 
date of the Landscaping Security Deposit or Landscaping Security Agreement, a portion of said deposit / security 
amount shall be deemed forfeited to the city as a fine in the amount set forth in chapter 5 and shall be duly 
imposed and due and payable to the city for lack of timely performance. For each month thereafter (or part thereof) 
during which the required landscaping remains uncompleted in a manner satisfactory to the city zoning administrator, 
the city may impose a like fine and forfeit same to the city. The property owner shall, within 10 days of written demand 
directed to the property owner's last known address of record, pay said amount to the city. In the event the property 
owner fails to timely pay, the fine amount shall be certified to the county for assessment and collection with the 
property taxes due on the subject property. In that event, the city may add thereto an administrative processing fee as 
provided in chapter 5. The annual public hearing held prior to certification of unpaid assessments and service fees 
shall be the due process hearing at which the property owner may object to the fine / forfeiture / assessment 
hereunder in whole or part. 

 

E) Prosecution, Civil Enforcement, and Injunctive Relief for Non-Performance. Non-performance of the required 
landscaping is hereby deemed a violation of the zoning code and is subject to prosecution. No term or condition of a 
Security Deposit or Security Agreement shall bar the city from prosecuting individuals for non-performance of the 
terms and conditions of the required landscaping. The city may take such enforcement action as it deems necessary 
and appropriate to prosecute violations of same and also may seek civil injunctive relief, including an order for specific 
performance, for failure to complete the required landscaping as the city may deem necessary. The fact that a 
property owner has entered into a Security Deposit or Security Agreement shall not be a defense to, nor bar or 
prevent municipal prosecution or civil court action against same in the event of a property owner's non-performance of 
required landscaping.” 

 
SECTION 2. 
 

Greenwood ordinance code section 1150.20 in the Conditional Use Permits section of the code is amended to add the 
following subdivisions:  
 

“Subd. 4. Completion of Conditions Required. Timely completion and performance of conditions, including but not limited 
to landscaping and lighting plans, required and / or imposed as a condition of the grant of a conditional use permit are 
necessary to (1) preserve and protect the public health, safety, and welfare of the city, and (2) for the protection of the 



12-23-15 Greenwood Ordinance 249   |   Page 2 of 3 
 

neighboring property owners and the public in general from the adverse affects, physical and / or visual impacts of 
conditionally authorized improvements if required / imposed conditions are allowed to be left unfinished or incomplete.  
 

Subd. 5. Security Deposit. The city is not obligated to issue an occupancy permit (new construction) or final inspection 
(remodeling) for a property prior to satisfactory completion of all conditions which may have been imposed upon an 
approved conditional use permit. Prior to the issuance of an occupancy permit / final inspection, the property owner shall 
complete all required conditions or submit a Security Deposit in the form of cashier's check or certified check in the 
amount set forth in chapter 5 payable to the city as security to assure timely performance and full implementation of any 
and all conditions of an approved conditional use permit within 12 months from the date the occupancy permit / final 
inspection to be then issued. The deposit is refundable if the required conditions are completed within 12 months. 
 

Subd. 6. Security Agreement. As an alternative to a Security Deposit as provided in subdivision 5 above, the property 
owner may enter into a Security Agreement in form as provided by the city. By entering into Security Agreement the 
property owner agrees that if the conditions are not completed within 12 months of the issuance of the occupancy permit 
(new construction) or final inspection (remodeling projects), whichever is applicable, then all applicable fees and fines may 
be certified to the county to be collected with property taxes. No fees or fines will be certified to the county if the required 
conditions are completed within 12 months. 
 

Subd. 7. Non-Performance. In the event a property owner fails to complete the required conditions within 12 months of the 
date of the Security Deposit or Security Agreement, a portion of said deposit / security amount shall be deemed forfeited 
to the city as a fine in the amount set forth in chapter 5 and shall be duly imposed and due and payable to the city for lack 
of timely performance. For each month thereafter (or part thereof) during which the required conditions remain 
uncompleted in a manner satisfactory to the city zoning administrator, the city may impose a like fine and forfeit same to 
the city. The property owner shall, within 10 days of written demand directed to the property owner's last known address 
of record, pay said amount to the city. In the event the property owner fails to timely pay, the fine amount shall be certified 
to the county for assessment and collection with the property taxes due on the subject property. In that event, the city may 
add thereto an administrative processing fee as provided in chapter 5. The annual public hearing held prior to certification 
of unpaid assessments and service fees shall be the due process hearing at which the property owner may object to the 
fine / forfeiture / assessment hereunder in whole or part. 
 

Subd. 8. Prosecution, Civil Enforcement, and Injunctive Relief for Non-Performance. Non-performance of the terms and 
conditions of a conditional use permit are hereby deemed violations of the zoning code and are subject to prosecution. No 
term or condition of a Security Deposit or Security Agreement shall bar the city from prosecuting individuals for non-
performance of the terms and conditions of a conditional use permit. The city may take such enforcement action as 
it deems necessary and appropriate to prosecute violations of same and also may seek civil injunctive relief, including an 
order for specific performance, for failure to comply with or perform the terms and conditions of a conditional use permit as 
the city may deem necessary. The fact that a property owner has entered into a Security Deposit or Security Agreement 
shall not be a defense to, nor bar or prevent municipal prosecution or civil court action against same in the event of a 
property owner’s non-performance of the underlying terms and conditions of a conditional use permit.” 
 
SECTION 3. 
 

Greenwood ordinance code section 1155 regarding Variances is amended to add the following section:  
 

“1155.17. Completion of Conditions, Security Deposit, and Security Agreement. 
 

Subd. 1. Completion of Conditions Required. Timely completion and performance of conditions, including but not limited to 
landscaping and lighting plans, required and / or imposed as a condition of the grant of a variance are necessary to (1) 
preserve and protect the public health, safety, and welfare of the city, and (2) for the protection of the neighboring property 
owners and the public in general from the adverse affects, physical and / or visual impacts of conditionally authorized 
improvements if required / imposed conditions are allowed to be left unfinished or incomplete.  
 

Subd. 2. Security Deposit. The city is not obligated to issue an occupancy permit (new construction) or final inspection 
(remodeling) for a property prior to satisfactory completion of all conditions which may have been imposed upon an 
approved variance. Prior to the issuance of an occupancy permit / final inspection, the property owner shall complete all 
required conditions or submit a Security Deposit in the form of cashier's check or certified check in the amount set forth in 
chapter 5 payable to the city as security to assure timely performance and full implementation of any and all conditions of 
an approved variance within 12 months from the date the occupancy permit / final inspection to be then issued. The 
deposit is refundable if the required conditions are completed within 12 months. 
 

Subd. 3. Security Agreement. As an alternative to a Security Deposit as provided in subdivision 2 above, the property 
owner may enter into a Security Agreement in form as provided by the city. By entering into Security Agreement the 
property owner agrees that if the conditions are not completed within 12 months of the issuance of the occupancy permit 
(new construction) or final inspection (remodeling projects), whichever is applicable, then all applicable fees and fines may 
be certified to the county to be collected with property taxes. No fees or fines will be certified to the county if the required 
conditions are completed within 12 months. 



12-23-15 Greenwood Ordinance 249   |   Page 3 of 3 
 

 

Subd. 4. Non-Performance. In the event a property owner fails to complete the required conditions within 12 months of the 
date of the Security Deposit or Security Agreement, a portion of said deposit / security amount shall be deemed forfeited 
to the city as a fine in the amount set forth in chapter 5 and shall be duly imposed and due and payable to the city for lack 
of timely performance. For each month thereafter (or part thereof) during which the required conditions remain 
uncompleted in a manner satisfactory to the city zoning administrator, the city may impose a like fine and forfeit same to 
the city. The property owner shall, within 10 days of written demand directed to the property owner's last known address 
of record, pay said amount to the city. In the event the property owner fails to timely pay, the fine amount shall be certified 
to the county for assessment and collection with the property taxes due on the subject property. In that event, the city may 
add thereto an administrative processing fee as provided in chapter 5. The annual public hearing held prior to certification 
of unpaid assessments and service fees shall be the due process hearing at which the property owner may object to the 
fine / forfeiture / assessment hereunder in whole or part. 
 

Subd. 5. Prosecution, Civil Enforcement, and Injunctive Relief for Non-Performance. Non-performance of the terms and 
conditions of a variance grant are hereby deemed violations of the zoning code and are subject to prosecution. No term or 
condition of a Security Deposit or Security Agreement shall bar the city from prosecuting individuals for non-performance 
of the terms and conditions of a variance grant. The city may take such enforcement action as it deems necessary and 
appropriate to prosecute violations of same and also may seek civil injunctive relief, including an order for specific 
performance, for failure to comply with or perform the terms and conditions of a variance grant as the city may deem 
necessary. The fact that a property owner has entered into a Security Deposit or Security Agreement shall not be a 
defense to, nor bar or prevent municipal prosecution or civil court action against same in the event of a property owner's 
non-performance of the underlying terms and conditions of a variance grant.” 
 
SECTION 4. 
 

Greenwood ordinance code section 510 table is amended to revise the Landscaping Security Deposit section to read as 
follows:  
 
“ 

Type of License, Permit, or Fee  Section Fee Conditions & Terms 

Security Deposit / Security Agreement  
for Landscaping  

1140.60 
 

The greater of $1500 or 2% of  
the building value submitted on the  

building permit application.  
The fine is $1000 for each month (or 

part therof) after 12 months the 
landscaping or conditions remain 

uncompleted. 

See section 1140.60 
 for more information (including details 
about the security agreement option). 

Security Deposit / Security Agreement  
for Performance of Conditions of a Variance  
or Conditional Use Permit Grant 

1140.60 
1150.20 
1155.17 

Security Deposits / Agreements must 
be approved by the city council.  

If approved, the city council shall set the 
fee amount. 

See sections 1150.20 (conditional use 
permits) or 1155.17 (variances) for 
more information (including details 

about the security agreement option). 

” 
 
SECTION 5. 
 

Effective Date. This ordinance shall be effective upon publication according to law. 
 

Enacted by the city council of Greenwood, Minnesota this ___ day of _____________, 2016. 
 
____ AYES ____ NAYS 
 
CITY OF GREENWOOD 
 
By: _____________________________________  
Debra J. Kind, Mayor  
 
Attest: __________________________________ 
Dana Young, City Clerk 
 
First reading: _____, 2016 
Second reading: _____, 2016 
Publication: _____, 2016 



  www.greenwoodmn.com

	

	

Agenda Number: 6E  

Agenda Date: 01-06-16 
Prepared by Dale Cooney 

 
 
 
Agenda Item: 1st Reading of Ordinance 251 Amending Chapter 11 Regarding City Forester, Hazard Trees, Variance 
Standards for Impervious Surface Regulations and Application Procedure for Mailing Lists 

Summary: This ordinance addresses items that need to be “cleaned up” in our code, based on a list of items compiled by 
former zoning administrator Gus Karpas and new zoning administrator Dale Cooney. The ordinance addresses the following: 
 

1. Moves the establishment of City Forester and Certified Tree inspector out of the Diseased Trees section of the 
code because the city forester’s authority is broader than just for diseased trees. 

 

2. Defines Hazard Tree: a definition that is used in the new Dead, Dying, and Hazard Tree section. 
 

3. Adds a section regarding Dead, Dying, and Hazard Trees in the Tree Ordinance where people will look for it.  
In the past, the city zoning administrator and city forester have relied on the public nuisance section of the code 
which does not specify common sense exceptions for dead, dying, or hazard trees (e.g. should not require a 
conditional use permit for removal, should not count towards annual permitted harvest, should not be subject to 
enforcement of Harvesting Without a Permit). 

 

4. Clarifies the impervious surface variance standards apply to legal and illegal nonconforming landscape-related 
impervious surfaces. Adds the new 30+ inch standard for decks and patios. Deletes retaining walls from the 
variance landscape-related impervious surface list, because the city historically has not required retaining walls to 
be included in impervious hardcover calculations. Note: Deephaven and Woodland also do not count retaining 
walls as hardcover. 

 

5. Deletes the requirement for variance applicants to provide mailing lists to the city. Mailings still are required by 
another section of the ordinance, but staff takes care of securing the mailing list.  

Planning Commission Action: On 12-16-15, the Planning Commission held a public hearing and made the following 
recommendation to the city council:  

Motion by Commissioner Bechtell that the Planning Commission recommended adopting Ordinance No. 251: An 
Ordinance of the City of Greenwood, Minnesota Amending Greenwood Ordinance Greenwood Code Chapter 1100 
Regarding City Forester, Hazard Trees, Variance Standards for Impervious Surface Regulations and Application 
Procedure for Mailing Lists, as amended to include driveways as structural-related impervious surfaces within ordinance 
code section 1176.07.05, Subd. 4. Motion Seconded by Commissioner Sayer. Motion Carried 5-0. 

Timeline: 
12-02-15 City council discusses ordinance. 
12-03-15 Public Hearing notice published in Sun-Sailor. 
12-16-15 Planning commission holds public hearing, reviews ordinance, and makes recommendation 
01-06-16 City council considers 1st reading of the ordinance (may make revisions). 
01-07-16  If 2nd reading is waived, ordinance is submitted to the Sun-Sailor for publication. 
01-14-16  If 2nd reading is waived, the ordinance is published in the Sun-Sailor (goes into effect on this date). 
02-03-16 City council considers 2nd reading of the ordinance (may make revisions). 
02-04-16 If 2nd reading is not waived, ordinance is submitted to the Sun-Sailor for publication. 
02-11-16 If 2nd reading is not waived, the ordinance is published in the Sun-Sailor (goes into effect on this date). 
 
Council Action: No action required. Potential motions ... 
 

1. I move the city council approves the 1st reading of ordinance 251 as written (with the following revisions: ___). 
2. I move the city council waives the 2nd reading of ordinance 251 and directs the city clerk to submit to the Sun-

Sailor for publication. 
3. Do nothing or other motion? 

 
Greenwood code section 1215 requires 2 readings of all ordinances prior to adoption. The 2nd reading shall be within 3 months of the 1st reading. There 
may be changes between the 1st and 2nd readings. Ordinances go into effect once they are published in the city’s official newspaper. The planning 
commission must review and make a recommendation to the city council regarding any changes to the zoning code chapter 11. A public hearing, 
typically held by the planning commission, also is required for changes to chapter 11. 
 
 



12-26-15 Greenwood Ordinance 251   |   Page 1 of 2 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 251 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF GREENWOOD, MINNESOTA AMENDING GREENWOOD ORDINANCE ZONING 
CODE CHAPTER 11 REGARDING CITY FORESTER, HAZARD TREES, VARIANCE STANDARDS FOR IMPERVIOUS 

SURFACE REGULATIONS, AND VARIANCE APPLICATION PROCEDURE FOR MAILING LISTS 
 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GREENWOOD, MINNESOTA DOES ORDAIN: 
 

SECTION 1. 
Greenwood ordinance code section 1140 is amended to move 1140.85 Diseased Trees subdivisions 10 and 11 to new 
section 1140.79 and amend to read as follows:  
 

“Section 1140.79. City Forester and Certified Tree Inspector.  
 

Subd. 10 1. Position of City Forester. The position of city forester is hereby created. The city council shall designate from 
time to time the person who shall perform the duties of city forester.  
 

Subd. 11 2. Certified Tree Inspector. The city council or city clerk may designate one or more persons who are certified by 
the commissioner of agriculture of the state of Minnesota to serve as certified tree inspector(s) for the city.” 
 
SECTION 2. 
Greenwood ordinance code section 1102 is amended to add the following definition:  
 

“Hazard Tree means a dead or dying tree, dead parts of a live tree, or an unstable live tree (due to structural defects or 
other factors) that is within striking distance of people or property (a target). Hazard trees have the potential to cause 
property damage, personal injury, or fatality in the event of a failure.” 
 
SECTION 3. 
Greenwood ordinance code section 1140 is amended to add the following section:  
 

“Section 1140.86. Dead, Dying, and Hazard Trees.  
 

Subd. 1. Hazard Trees. The city forester shall perform inspections to determine whether trees are “hazard trees” (see 
section 1102 for definition) that need to be trimmed or removed. If the hazard tree is located on private property, the 
property owner is not required to secure a conditional use permit for removal within the shore impact zone or bluff impact 
zone (section 1140.80 subd 3A), the tree removal does not count towards the property's annual permitted harvest (section 
1140.80 subd 3B), and the property owner is not subject to enforcement of “Harvesting Without a Permit” (section 1140.80 
subd. 12B).” 
 

Subd. 2. Dead or Dying Trees. If the city forester confirms or the property owner claims in a notarized signed statement 
that a tree was dead or dying prior to removal from private property, the property owner is not required to secure a 
conditional use permit for removal within the shore impact zone or bluff impact zone (section 1140.80 subd 3A), the tree 
removal does not count towards the property's annual permitted harvest (section 1140.80 subd 3B), and the property 
owner is not subject to enforcement of “Harvesting Without a Permit” (section 1140.80 subd. 12B).” 
 
SECTION 4. 
Greenwood ordinance code section 1176.07.05 subd 4 Impervious Surface Policies and Conditions paragraph 2 is 
amended to read as follows:  
 

“2. Variance applicants shall provide a certified survey showing separate calculations for the items listed below for 
structural-related impervious surfaces and landscape-related impervious surfaces. 

• Structural-related impervious surfaces include buildings, driveways, decks and patios 30+ inches in height, 
staircases, etc. 

• Landscape-related impervious surfaces include sidewalks, steps, plastic landscaping sheets, patios or decks 
less than 30 inches in height, etc.  

 

 Legal and illegal nonconforming landscape-related impervious surfaces cannot be exchanged for an increase in 
structural-related impervious surfaces to obtain a variance from impervious surface requirements.”  

 
SECTION 5. 
Greenwood ordinance code section 1155.15 Variance Application Procedure subd 1(g) is amended to read as follows:  

“(g) The application shall include verification that there are no delinquent property taxes, special assessments, interest or 
city utility fees due and owing upon the subject parcel.” 



12-26-15 Greenwood Ordinance 251   |   Page 2 of 2 
 

 

 
SECTION 6. 
Effective Date. This ordinance shall be effective upon publication according to law. 
 
Enacted by the city council of Greenwood, Minnesota this ___ day of _____________, 2016. 
 
____ AYES ____ NAYS 
 
 
CITY OF GREENWOOD 
 
By: _____________________________________  
Debra J. Kind, Mayor  
 
 
Attest: __________________________________ 
Dana Young, City Clerk 
 
First reading: _____, 2016 
Second reading: _____, 2016 
Publication: _____, 2016 
 
 
 
 
 



  www.greenwoodmn.com

	

	

Agenda Number: 6F  

Agenda Date: 01-06-16 
Prepared by Tom Fletcher 

 
 
 
 
Agenda Item: Discuss Variance Practical Difficulty Standards 
 
Summary: What is a “Practical Difficulty”? Recently the City Council has had several variance requests, which involved 
substantial additions to preexisting building structures and entrances. In each case the request was based on the fact that 
the preexisting configuration of the structure and / or entrance was not suitable for the new owner’s intended use and they 
were therefore requesting a significant variance. In every case below the property already had a substantial preexisting 
home: 

• 21795 Minnetonka Boulevard – Addition of 702 sf garage to 1,825 sf footprint of existing 2 story home. 
• 5025 Covington Street – Addition of front driveway for 3,820 sf footprint home with existing 1,390 sf driveway. 
• St Albans Bay Island Property – Addition of substantial parking structure to entrance of home. 

Based on the above, it is possible that an end-run around the intent of the Greenwood Zoning code is occurring with 
purchasers of existing homes. Deficiencies are cited with the lot when in fact it is adequately sized and configured to 
support a comfortable home as evidenced by the current structure on the lot.   

While it is understandable that minor changes in existing homes should be given strong consideration from a variance 
standpoint, whether every property owner request for substantial expansion of homes to meet their specific needs 
qualifies as a “practical difficulty” would appear to merit a Council discussion.  

For the council's reference, below are the Practical Difficulties Standard and Findings sections of the city code: 

Subd. 4. Practical Difficulties Standard. “Practical difficulties,” as used in connection with the granting of a variance, 
means: 
(a) that the property owner proposes to use the property in a reasonable manner not permitted by the zoning 

ordinance; 
(b) the plight of the landowner is due to circumstances unique to the property and not created by the landowner; 
(c) and the variance, if granted, will not alter the essential character of the locality. 
 
Economic considerations alone shall not constitute practical difficulties.  
 
Subd. 5. Findings. The board, in considering all requests for a variance, shall adopt findings addressing the following 
questions: 
(a) Is the variance in harmony with the purposes and intent of the ordinance? 
(b) Is the variance consistent with the comprehensive plan? 
(c) Does the proposal put property to use in a reasonable manner? 
(d) Are there unique circumstances to the property not created by the landowner? 
(e) Will the variance, if granted, alter the essential character of the locality? 

 

Council Action: No action required.  
 



  www.greenwoodmn.com

	

	

Agenda Number: 8A  

Agenda Date: 01-06-16 
Prepared by Deb Kind 

 
 
 
 
Agenda Item: Discuss Drafts of Drainage & Utilities Easement Agreements 
 
Summary: The city council directed the city attorney to draft a generic drainage and utilities easement agreement with an eye 
towards implementing the agreement for the area between the Newman and Larson properties. The draft of the generic 
agreement, along with the agreements for the Newman and Larson properties are attached. The city attorney advises:  
 

1. A legal description of the Larson property is needed (available through Excelsior Title).  
2. Legal descriptions of the actual easement for both properties are also need. However, a draft of a proposed legal 

description for Newman easement has been inserted.   
3. A legal description of the Larson property easement must await a copy of their deed of record. 

 
Council Action: No action required. Potential motions ... 
 

1. I move the city council approves the drafts of the Newman and Larson drainage and utilities easement 
agreements with the appropriate legal descriptions inserted and authorizes the mayor and city clerk to sign the 
documents on behalf of the city. 
 

2. I move the city council (1) approves the drafts of the Newman and Larson drainage and utilities easement 
agreements with the appropriate legal descriptions inserted; (2) directs the following additional revisions:  

 
A. ___________________________ 
B. ___________________________ 
 
(3) authorizes the mayor and city clerk to sign the documents on behalf of the city. 
 

3. Do nothing or other motion? 
 
 



 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

[The space above is reserved for recording data] 

 

DRAINAGE AND UTILITIES EASEMENT AGREEMENT 
 

THIS DRAINAGE AND UTILITIES EASEMENT AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”) 

is entered into this ____ day of ______________________, 20___, by and among 

The City of Greenwood, Minnesota, a public body corporate and politic under 

the laws of the State of Minnesota (the “City”), and the Laura L. Larson 

Revocable Trust u/t/d (______________________), Laura L. Larson, Trustee 

(hereinafter the “Grantee”).  The City and the Grantee shall be referred to 

herein each as a “party” and collectively as the “Parties”. 

 

RECITALS: 

 

1. The City holds a public right of way interest in the public street 

commonly known and dedicated as Meadville Street in Auditor’s 

Subdivision No. ____, Hennepin County, Minnesota (the “City Property”). 

 

2. The Grantee is the fee owner of property commonly known as 5220 

Meadville Street, Greenwood, Minnesota 55331, legally described in 

Exhibit A attached hereto and made a party hereof (the “Grantee’s 



 2 

Property”). 

 
3. The Grantee’s Property is subject to a natural flowage of water emanating 

from property lying to the north and east which flows over and across the 

Grantee’s property to the waters of Lake Minnetonka, (hereinafter “the 

Lake”).  It is the common experience of the Parties that due to the lack of 

adequate slope, after significant rain events and during snow melt water 

accumulates in the City Property and does not efficiently drain to the 

Lake.  The grade differential between the elevation of the City Property 

and the Grantee’s Property is nominal for the natural flowage to Lake 

Minnetonka to be effective.  For efficient drainage, a valley gutter needs 

to be installed and thereafter maintained. 

 

4. The City and the Grantee wish by this Agreement to establish a drainage 

and utility easement over and across the Grantee’s Easement Area, 

legally described in Exhibit B, including related temporary construction 

and maintenance easements; to memorialize the responsibilities of 

construction, maintenance, repair, access, and replacement as 

necessary, of the drainage and utility easement, and planned physical 

improvements thereto otherwise illustrated and described on Exhibit C; 

and define responsibility for costs incurred. 

 

AGREEMENTS: 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing Recitals, which are 

incorporated herein and adopted as if set forth hereat in full, and for good and 

valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby 

acknowledged, the Parties hereby agree as follows: 

 

 

 



 3 

1. Consideration.  The Grantee hereby acknowledges receipt of One Dollar 

($1.00) and other good and valuable consideration to them in hand paid 

by the City as and for the Agreements herein. 

 

2. Grant of Easement from the Grantee to the City.  The Grantee hereby 

grants to the City, its successors and assigns, a continuing easement to 

enter on, over, and across the Grantee’s Easement Area, legally described 

in Exhibit B, for the purposes of construction, maintenance, repair, and 

reconstruction of drainage and utility improvements, including, but not 

limited to, a drainage swale or valley gutter necessary and adequate to 

drain, manage and direct storm water and snow melt from the City 

Property to the Lake across the Grantee’s Easement Area, and for 

placement of drainage and utility easement related signage, and such 

other public utilities (both existing and future municipal utility needs as 

the City may determine necessary from time to time), and other public 

purposes as the City may from time to time determine necessary in the 

interests of public health, safety or welfare (“City Easement”).  The City 

Easement is for the benefit of the City and general public. 

 

3. Prohibition Against Unreasonable Interference and Obstructions.  Each 

Party’s use of the Grantee’s Easement Area shall not unreasonably 

interfere with the other Party’s use of the Grantee’s Easement Area.  

Except as permitted hereunder, no fence, obstruction, structure, 

improvement or other barrier shall be erected, permitted or maintained 

within or across the City Easement Area, which would prevent or 

obstruct the flow of water over, across or through same said Easement or 

which would interfere with construction, installation, repair and 

maintenance, or restoration of City Easement, including the 

improvements thereto, now or in the future.  The foregoing shall not 

prohibit the temporary erection of barricades in the Grantee’s Easement  

 



 4 

Area by the City, which are reasonably necessary for security, and/or 

safety purposes in connection with the construction, reconstruction, 

repair, maintenance, or operation of the drainage and utility 

improvements, or other improvements in and about the Grantee’s 

Easement Area.  The foregoing shall not prohibit the placement by the 

Grantee of movable personal property in the Grantee’s Easement Area on 

a temporary basis in conjunction with the use and enjoyment of the 

Grantee’s property, all of which property Grantee agrees to remove within 

three days on written demand from the City, if same is deemed an 

obstruction to flowage or repair and/or maintenance. 

 

4. Construction of Drainage and Utility Improvements.  The City agrees to 

construct the planned drainage and utility improvements and related 

planned improvements within the Grantee’s Easement Area as illustrated 

in Exhibit C and/or described in this Agreement. 

 

5. Maintenance of Drainage and Utility Improvements.  The Grantee agrees 

to keep City Easement in a safe, clean and good state of repair and 

condition, reasonably free of personal property, debris, and 

accumulations of leaves, or other obstructions which may impact or 

obstruct the free flow of storm water or snow melt to be managed by the 

City’s improvements made within the Grantee’s Easement Area. 

 

6. Payment of Costs of Construction and Maintenance.  The costs of 

construction and maintenance of the drainage and utility improvements, 

and related planned improvements, made within the Grantee’s Easement 

Area shall be paid by the City. 

 
7. Notice of Construction and Maintenance Activities.  After construction of 

the drainage and utility improvements, and related planned  

 



 5 

 
improvements, the City shall provide reasonable advance notice in 

writing to the Grantees, except in the event of an emergency, in which 

case notice shall be given as soon as reasonably practical, of any 

construction, inspection, maintenance, repair, alteration, replacement, or 

reconstruction activities it plans to conduct in the Grantee’s Easement 

Area that will temporarily impair use of the Grantee’s Easement Area. 

 

8. Future Temporary Construction Easement for Drainage, Utility and 

Other Improvements.  The Grantee hereby agrees from time to time to 

grant to the City a temporary construction easement (the “Construction 

Easement”) within the Grantee’s Easement Area and extending an 

additional ten feet southeasterly and parallel thereto, to perform 

activities related to the repair, maintenance, alteration, replacement or 

reconstruction of the drainage and utility improvements, and related 

planned improvements, illustrated and described in Exhibit B effective 

upon ten (10) days written demand upon the Grantee by the City.   As 

consideration for the Temporary Construction Easement, the City shall 

restore any land, landscaping, and vegetation disturbed to pre-

construction condition within 90 days of completion of construction by 

City or its agents.  Any such Temporary Construction Easement shall 

automatically terminate sixty (60) days after said written demand by 

City.  

 
9. Amendment and Termination.  This Agreement may not be amended or 

terminated, except by an instrument in writing, signed by the Parties, 

and duly recorded in the real estate records of Hennepin County, 

Minnesota, and any such attempted amendment or termination without 

all such signatures shall be of no force or effect, provided, that in the 

event of exigent circumstances, the City may terminate this Agreement 

for cause in the interest of the public health, safety or welfare, including 



 6 

public travel, and/or public utilities. 

 
10. Notices.  Notices or demands required or permitted given 

hereunder shall be given by certified mail, return receipt requested, 

addressed as follows: 

If to the Grantee:  Laura L. Larson 

   5220 Meadville Street 

   Greenwood, MN  55331 

 

If to the City: City of Greenwood 

   20225 Cottagewood Road 

   Greenwood, MN  55331 

   Attention:  City Clerk 

Or such other address as specified in writing by the Parties to one 

another. 

 

11. Easement Runs With and Benefits Land.  The easement granted in 

this Agreement shall be perpetual and shall run with the land and shall 

bind the Parties hereto and their successors and assigns as owners of 

the Properties. 

 

12. Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, 

each of which shall be deemed an original but all of which together shall 

constitute one single instrument. 

 
13. Entirety.  This Agreement states in full the entirety of the 

Agreement of the parties and there are no other understandings, or other 

written or oral agreements.   

 
14. Captions.  The captions or paragraphs of this Agreement are for 

convenience only and are not intended to affect the interpretation or 

construction of the provisions herein contained. 



 7 

 
15. Singular and Plural.  Whenever required by the context of this 

Agreement, the singular shall include the plural, and vice versa, and the 

masculine shall include the feminine and neuter genders, and vice versa. 

 
16. Severability.  If any term, provision or condition contained in this 

Agreement shall to any extent be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder 

of this Agreement or the application of such term, provision or condition 

to persons or circumstances other than those in respect of which it is 

invalid or unenforceable, shall not be affected thereby and each term, 

provision or condition of this Agreement shall be valid and enforceable to 

the fullest extent permitted by law. 

 
17. Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by and 

construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Minnesota. 

 

[Balance of this page intentionally left blank] 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 8 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the 

day and year first above written. 

      GRANTEE 

      The Laura L. Larson 

      Revocable Trust (u/t/d ___________) 
 
 

      ___________________________________ 
      Laura L. Larson, Trustee 

 

       
   

STATE OF MINNESOTA  ) 
     )SS. 

COUNTY OF HENNEPIN  ) 
 

 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ____ day of 

________________________, 2016, by Laura L. Larson, Trustee of the Laura L. 

Larson Revocable Trust (u/t/d _________________), on behalf of the Laura L. 

Larson Revocable Trust (u/t/d __________________). 

  (Seal)      
____________________________________ 

      Notary Public 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 9 

      CITY OF GREENWOOD, MINNESOTA 

       
      By ___________________________________ 

       Debra J. Kind, 
       Mayor of City of Greenwood, 

       Minnesota 
 

 
      By ___________________________________ 

       Dana Young, City Clerk of  
       City of Greenwood, Minnesota 

 

STATE OF MINNESOTA  ) 
     )SS. 
COUNTY OF HENNEPIN  ) 

 

 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ____ day of 

________________________, 2016, by Debra J. Kind, the Mayor and Dana Young, 

the Clerk of the City of Greenwood, a public body corporate and politic under 

the laws of the State of Minnesota, on behalf of the public body. 

  (Seal)      
____________________________________ 

       Notary Public 
 

 
THIS INSTRUMENT DRAFTED BY: 
Kelly Law Offices 

7975 Stone Creek Drive, Suite 120 
Chanhassen, Minnesota  55317 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
1\Drainage and Utility Easement LARSON 

 



 10 

EXHIBIT A 
 

Legal Description of Grantee’s Property: 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 



 11 

EXHIBIT B 
 

Legal description of the “Grantee’s Easement Area” 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 



 12 

EXHIBIT C 
 

A Description and Depiction of the Planned Improvements and Uses within 
Grantee’s Easement Area 

 
SEE ATTACHED EXHIBIT 

 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 



  
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

[The space above is reserved for recording data] 

 

DRAINAGE AND UTILITIES EASEMENT AGREEMENT 
 

THIS DRAINAGE AND UTILITIES EASEMENT AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”) 

is entered into this ____ day of ______________________, 20___, by and among 

The City of Greenwood, Minnesota, a public body corporate and politic under 

the laws of the State of Minnesota (the “City”), and ___________________________, 

and __________________________, husband and wife, (hereinafter the Grantees”).  

The City and the Grantees shall be referred to herein each as a “party” and 

collectively as the “Parties”. 

 

RECITALS: 

 

1. The City holds a public right of way interest in the public street  

commonly known and dedicated as __________________________, in 
         (Name of Street) 

____________________, Hennepin County, Minnesota (the “City Property”). 
              (Name of Plat) 

2. The Grantees are the fee owners of property commonly known as 

___________________________, Greenwood, Minnesota 55331, legally  
       (Name of Street) 

described in Exhibit A attached hereto and made a party hereof (the 

“Grantee’s Property”). 



 2 

3. The Grantee’s Property is subject to a natural flowage of water emanating  
 

from property lying _____________________  which flows over and across  
                                (Describe Flowage) 

the Grantee’s property to the waters of Lake Minnetonka, (hereinafter 

“the Lake”).  The following is a description of the flowage/drainage 

problem: 

______________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________ 

 

4. The City and the Grantees wish by this Agreement to establish a 

drainage and utility easement over and across the Grantee’s Easement 

Area, legally described in Exhibit B, including related temporary 

construction and maintenance easements; to memorialize the 

responsibilities of construction, maintenance, repair, access, and 

replacement as necessary, of the drainage and utility easement, and 

planned physical improvements thereto otherwise illustrated and 

described on Exhibit C; and define responsibility for costs incurred. 

 

AGREEMENTS: 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing Recitals, which are 

incorporated herein and adopted as if set forth hereat in full, and for good and 

valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby 

acknowledged, the Parties hereby agree as follows: 

 

1. Consideration.  The Grantees hereby acknowledge receipt of One Dollar 

($1.00) and other good and valuable consideration to them in hand paid 

by the City as and for the Agreements herein. 

 



 3 

 

2. Grant of Easement from the Grantees to the City.  The Grantees hereby  

grant to the City, its successors and assigns, a continuing easement to 

enter on, over, and across the Grantee’s Easement Area, legally described 

in Exhibit B, for the purposes of construction, maintenance, repair, and 

reconstruction of drainage and utility improvements, including, but not 

limited to, a drainage swale or valley gutter necessary and adequate to 

drain, manage and direct storm water and snow melt from the City 

Property to ___________________________________ across the Grantees’  

                            (Description of Problem) 

Easement Area, and for placement of drainage and utility easement 

related signage, and such other public utilities (both existing and future 

municipal utility needs as the City may determine necessary from time to 

time), and other public purposes as the City may from time to time 

determine necessary in the interests of public health, safety or welfare 

(“City Easement”).  The City Easement is for the benefit of the City and 

general public. 

 
3. Prohibition Against Unreasonable Interference and Obstructions.  Each 

Party’s use of the Grantee’s Easement Area shall not unreasonably 

interfere with the other Party’s use of the Grantee’s Easement Area.  

Except as permitted hereunder, no fence, obstruction, structure, 

improvement or other barrier shall be erected, permitted or maintained 

within or across the City Easement Area, which would prevent or 

obstruct the flow of water over, across or through same said Easement or 

which would interfere with construction, installation, repair and 

maintenance, or restoration of City Easement, including the 

improvements thereto, now or in the future.  The foregoing shall not 

prohibit the temporary erection of barricades in the Grantee’s Easement 

Area by the City, which are reasonably necessary for security, and/or 

safety purposes in connection with the construction, reconstruction, 



 4 

repair, maintenance, or operation of the drainage and utility 

improvements, or other improvements in and about the Grantee’s 

Easement Area.  The foregoing shall not prohibit the placement by the 

Grantees of movable personal property in the Grantee’s Easement Area 

on a temporary basis in conjunction with the use and enjoyment of the 

Grantee’s property, all of which property Grantees agree to remove within 

three days on written demand from the City, if same is deemed an 

obstruction to flowage or repair and/or maintenance. 

 

4. Construction of Drainage and Utility Improvements.  The City agrees to 

construct the planned drainage and utility improvements and related 

planned improvements within the Grantee’s Easement Area as illustrated 

in Exhibit C and/or described in this Agreement. 

 

5. Maintenance of Drainage and Utility Improvements.  The Grantee agrees 

to keep City Easement in a safe, clean and good state of repair and 

condition, reasonably free of personal property, debris, and 

accumulations of leaves, or other obstructions which may impact or 

obstruct the free flow of storm water or snow melt to be managed by the 

City’s improvements made within the Grantee’s Easement Area. 

 

6. Payment of Costs of Construction and Maintenance.  The costs of 

construction and maintenance of the drainage and utility improvements, 

and related planned improvements, made within the Grantee’s Easement 

Area shall be paid by the City. 

 
7. Notice of Construction and Maintenance Activities.  After construction of 

the drainage and utility improvements, and related planned 

improvements, the City shall provide reasonable advance notice in 

writing to the Grantees, except in the event of an emergency, in which 

case notice shall be given as soon as reasonably practical, of any 



 5 

construction, inspection, maintenance, repair, alteration, replacement, or 

reconstruction activities it plans to conduct in the Grantee Easement 

Area that will temporarily impair use of the Grantee’s Easement Area. 

 

8. Temporary Construction for Drainage, Utility and Other Improvements.  

The Grantee’s hereby grant to the City a temporary construction 

easement (the “Construction Easement”) within the Grantee’s Easement 

Area and extending an additional ______ (  ) feet ____________________ and 

parallel thereto, to perform activities related to the construction of the 

drainage and utility improvements, and related planned improvements, 

illustrated and described in Exhibit B effective upon the execution of this 

Agreement by The Grantees.  As consideration for the Construction 

Easement, the City shall restore any land, landscaping, and vegetation to 

pre-construction condition within 90 days of completion of construction 

by City or its agents.  The Construction Easement shall automatically 

terminate upon completion of the initial construction activities, 

or_________________________, whichever is earlier, provided that in the 

event maintenance, repair, alteration, replacement or reconstruction of 

said improvements becomes necessary, Grantees hereby grant a like 

construction easement for a term of Ninety (90) days from date of written 

demand by City. 

 
9. Amendment and Termination.  This Agreement may not be amended or 

terminated, except by an instrument in writing, signed by the Parties, 

and duly recorded in the real estate records of Hennepin County, 

Minnesota, and any such attempted amendment or termination without 

all such signatures shall be of no force or effect, provided, that in the 

event of exigent circumstances, the City may terminate this Agreement 

for cause in the interest of the public health, safety or welfare, including 

public travel, and/or public utilities. 

 



 6 

10. Notices.  Notices or demands required or permitted given 

hereunder shall be given by certified mail, return receipt requested, 

addressed as follows: 

 

 

If to the Grantee:  _____________________________ 
     (Name) 

   _____________________________ 
            (Address) 
 

   Greenwood, MN  55331 

 

If to the City: City of Greenwood 

   20225 Cottagewood Road 

   Greenwood, MN  55331 

   Attention:  City Clerk 

Or such other address as specified in writing by the Parties to one 

another. 

 

11. Easement Runs With and Benefits Land.  The easement granted in 

this Agreement shall be perpetual and shall run with the land and shall 

bind the Parties hereto and their successors and assigns as owners of 

the Properties. 

 

12. Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, 

each of which shall be deemed an original but all of which together shall 

constitute one single instrument. 

 

13. Entirety.  This Agreement states in full the entirety of the 

Agreement of the parties and there are no other understandings, or other 

written or oral agreements.   

 
14. Captions.  The captions or paragraphs of this Agreement are for 

convenience only and are not intended to affect the interpretation or 



 7 

construction of the provisions herein contained. 

 
15. Singular and Plural.  Whenever required by the context of this 

Agreement, the singular shall include the plural, and vice versa, and the 

masculine shall include the feminine and neuter genders, and vice versa. 

 
16. Severability.  If any term, provision or condition contained in this 

Agreement shall to any extent be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder 

of this Agreement or the application of such term, provision or condition 

to persons or circumstances other than those in respect of which it is 

invalid or unenforceable, shall not be affected thereby and each term, 

provision or condition of this Agreement shall be valid and enforceable to 

the fullest extent permitted by law. 

 
17. Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by and 

construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Minnesota. 

 

 [Balance of this page intentionally left blank] 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 8 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the 

day and year first above written. 

      GRANTEES 

      ___________________________________   

 
      ___________________________________ 
      ___________________________________ 

 

      ___________________________________ 
      ___________________________________ 

   

STATE OF MINNESOTA  ) 
     )SS. 
COUNTY OF HENNEPIN  ) 

 

 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ____ day of 

________________________, 2015, by _________________________________ and 

________________________________, husband and wife. 

  (Seal)      
____________________________________ 

      Notary Public 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 9 

      CITY OF GREENWOOD, MINNESOTA 

       
      By ___________________________________ 

       Debra J. Kind, 
       Mayor of City of Greenwood, 

       Minnesota 
 

 
      By ___________________________________ 

       Dana Young, City Clerk of  
       City of Greenwood, Minnesota 

 

STATE OF MINNESOTA  ) 
     SS. 
COUNTY OF HENNEPIN  ) 

 

 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ____ day of 

________________________, 2015, by Debra J. Kind, the Mayor and Dana Young, 

the Clerk of the City of Greenwood, a public body corporate and politic under 

the laws of the State of Minnesota, on behalf of the public body. 

  (Seal)      
____________________________________ 

       Notary Public 
 

 
THIS INSTRUMENT DRAFTED BY: 
Kelly Law Offices 

7975 Stone Creek Drive, Suite 120 
Chanhassen, Minnesota  55317 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
1\Drainage and Utility Easement Model 

 



 10 

EXHIBIT A 
 

Legal Description of Grantee’s Property: 
 

  
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 



 11 

EXHIBIT B 
 

Legal description of the “Grantee’s Easement Area” 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
EXHIBIT C 



 12 

 
A Description and Depiction of the Planned Improvements and Uses within 

Grantee’s Easement Area 
 

SEE ATTACHED EXHIBIT 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 



  
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

[The space above is reserved for recording data] 

 

DRAINAGE AND UTILITIES EASEMENT AGREEMENT 
 

THIS DRAINAGE AND UTILITIES EASEMENT AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”) 

is entered into this ____ day of ______________________, 20___, by and among 

The City of Greenwood, Minnesota, a public body corporate and politic under 

the laws of the State of Minnesota (the “City”), and the Robert C. Newman 

Revocable Trust u/t/d (______________________), Robert C. Newman and Mary 

Jo Newman, Trustees (hereinafter the “Grantees”).  The City and the Grantees 

shall be referred to herein each as a “party” and collectively as the “Parties”. 

 

RECITALS: 

 

1. The City holds a public right of way interest in the public street 

commonly known and dedicated as Meadville Street in Auditor’s 

Subdivision No. ____, Hennepin County, Minnesota (the “City Property”). 

 

2. The Grantees are the fee owners of property commonly known as 5230 

Meadville Street, Greenwood, Minnesota 55331, legally described in 

Exhibit A attached hereto and made a party hereof (the “Grantees’ 



 2 

Property”). 

 
3. The Grantee’s Property is subject to a natural flowage of water emanating 

from property lying to the north and east which flows over and across the 

Grantee’s property to the waters of Lake Minnetonka, (hereinafter “the 

Lake”).  It is the common experience of the Parties that due to the lack of 

adequate slope, after significant rain events and during snow melt water 

accumulates in the City Property and does not efficiently drain to the 

Lake.  The grade differential between the elevation of the City Property 

and the Grantees’ Property is nominal for the natural flowage to Lake 

Minnetonka to be effective.  For efficient drainage, a valley gutter needs 

to be installed and thereafter maintained. 

 

4. The City and the Grantees wish by this Agreement to establish a 

drainage and utility easement over and across the Grantees’ Easement 

Area, legally described in Exhibit B, including related temporary 

construction and maintenance easements; to memorialize the 

responsibilities of construction, maintenance, repair, access, and 

replacement as necessary, of the drainage and utility easement, and 

planned physical improvements thereto otherwise illustrated and 

described on Exhibit C; and define responsibility for costs incurred. 

 

AGREEMENTS: 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing Recitals, which are 

incorporated herein and adopted as if set forth hereat in full, and for good and 

valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby 

acknowledged, the Parties hereby agree as follows: 

 

 

 



 3 

1. Consideration.  The Grantees hereby acknowledge receipt of One Dollar 

($1.00) and other good and valuable consideration to them in hand paid 

by the City as and for the Agreements herein. 

 

2. Grant of Easement from the Grantees to the City.  The Grantees hereby 

grant to the City, its successors and assigns, a continuing easement to 

enter on, over, and across the Grantees’ Easement Area, legally described 

in Exhibit B, for the purposes of construction, maintenance, repair, and 

reconstruction of drainage and utility improvements, including, but not 

limited to, a drainage swale or valley gutter necessary and adequate to 

drain, manage and direct storm water and snow melt from the City 

Property to the Lake across the Grantees’ Easement Area, and for 

placement of drainage and utility easement related signage, and such 

other public utilities (both existing and future municipal utility needs as 

the City may determine necessary from time to time), and other public 

purposes as the City may from time to time determine necessary in the 

interests of public health, safety or welfare (“City Easement”).  The City 

Easement is for the benefit of the City and general public. 

 

3. Prohibition Against Unreasonable Interference and Obstructions.  Each 

Party’s use of the Grantee’s Easement Area shall not unreasonably 

interfere with the other Party’s use of the Grantees’ Easement Area.  

Except as permitted hereunder, no fence, obstruction, structure, 

improvement or other barrier shall be erected, permitted or maintained 

within or across the City Easement Area, which would prevent or 

obstruct the flow of water over, across or through same said Easement or 

which would interfere with construction, installation, repair and 

maintenance, or restoration of City Easement, including the 

improvements thereto, now or in the future.  The foregoing shall not 

prohibit the temporary erection of barricades in the Grantees’ Easement  

 



 4 

Area by the City, which are reasonably necessary for security, and/or 

safety purposes in connection with the construction, reconstruction, 

repair, maintenance, or operation of the drainage and utility 

improvements, or other improvements in and about the Grantees’ 

Easement Area.  The foregoing shall not prohibit the placement by the 

Grantees of movable personal property in the Grantees’ Easement Area 

on a temporary basis in conjunction with the use and enjoyment of the 

Grantees’ property, all of which property Grantees agree to remove within 

three days on written demand from the City, if same is deemed an 

obstruction to flowage or repair and/or maintenance. 

 

4. Construction of Drainage and Utility Improvements.  The City agrees to 

construct the planned drainage and utility improvements and related 

planned improvements within the Grantees’ Easement Area as illustrated 

in Exhibit C and/or described in this Agreement. 

 

5. Maintenance of Drainage and Utility Improvements.  The Grantee agrees 

to keep City Easement in a safe, clean and good state of repair and 

condition, reasonably free of personal property, debris, and 

accumulations of leaves, or other obstructions which may impact or 

obstruct the free flow of storm water or snow melt to be managed by the 

City’s improvements made within the Grantees’ Easement Area. 

 

6. Payment of Costs of Construction and Maintenance.  The costs of 

construction and maintenance of the drainage and utility improvements, 

and related planned improvements, made within the Grantees’ Easement 

Area shall be paid by the City. 

 
7. Notice of Construction and Maintenance Activities.  After construction of 

the drainage and utility improvements, and related planned  

 



 5 

 
improvements, the City shall provide reasonable advance notice in 

writing to the Grantees, except in the event of an emergency, in which 

case notice shall be given as soon as reasonably practical, of any 

construction, inspection, maintenance, repair, alteration, replacement, or 

reconstruction activities it plans to conduct in the Grantees’ Easement 

Area that will temporarily impair use of the Grantees’ Easement Area. 

 

8. Future Temporary Construction Easement for Drainage, Utility and 

Other Improvements.  The Grantee hereby agrees from time to time to 

grant to the City a temporary construction easement (the “Construction 

Easement”) within the Grantee’s Easement Area and extending an 

additional ten feet ________________________ and parallel thereto, to 

perform activities related to the repair, maintenance, alteration, 

replacement or reconstruction of the drainage and utility improvements, 

and related planned improvements, illustrated and described in Exhibit 

B effective upon ten (10) days written demand upon the Grantee by the 

City.   As consideration for the Temporary Construction Easement, the 

City shall restore any land, landscaping, and vegetation disturbed to pre-

construction condition within 90 days of completion of construction by 

City or its agents.  Any such Temporary Construction Easement shall 

automatically terminate sixty (60) days after said written demand by 

City.  

 

9. Amendment and Termination.  This Agreement may not be amended or 

terminated, except by an instrument in writing, signed by the Parties, 

and duly recorded in the real estate records of Hennepin County, 

Minnesota, and any such attempted amendment or termination without 

all such signatures shall be of no force or effect, provided, that in the 

event of exigent circumstances, the City may terminate this Agreement 

for cause in the interest of the public health, safety or welfare, including 



 6 

public travel, and/or public utilities. 

 
10. Notices.  Notices or demands required or permitted given 

hereunder shall be given by certified mail, return receipt requested, 

addressed as follows: 

If to the Grantee:  Robert C. Newman and Mary Jo Newman 

   5230 Meadville Street 

   Greenwood, MN  55331 

 

If to the City: City of Greenwood 

   20225 Cottagewood Road 

   Greenwood, MN  55331 

   Attention:  City Clerk 

Or such other address as specified in writing by the Parties to one 

another. 

 

11. Easement Runs With and Benefits Land.  The easement granted in 

this Agreement shall be perpetual and shall run with the land and shall 

bind the Parties hereto and their successors and assigns as owners of 

the Properties. 

 

12. Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, 

each of which shall be deemed an original but all of which together shall 

constitute one single instrument. 

 
13. Entirety.  This Agreement states in full the entirety of the 

Agreement of the parties and there are no other understandings, or other 

written or oral agreements.   

 
14. Captions.  The captions or paragraphs of this Agreement are for 

convenience only and are not intended to affect the interpretation or 

construction of the provisions herein contained. 



 7 

 
15. Singular and Plural.  Whenever required by the context of this 

Agreement, the singular shall include the plural, and vice versa, and the 

masculine shall include the feminine and neuter genders, and vice versa. 

 
16. Severability.  If any term, provision or condition contained in this 

Agreement shall to any extent be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder 

of this Agreement or the application of such term, provision or condition 

to persons or circumstances other than those in respect of which it is 

invalid or unenforceable, shall not be affected thereby and each term, 

provision or condition of this Agreement shall be valid and enforceable to 

the fullest extent permitted by law. 

 
17. Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by and 

construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Minnesota. 

 

[Balance of this page intentionally left blank] 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 8 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the 

day and year first above written. 

      GRANTEES 

      The Robert C. Newman 

      Revocable Trust (u/t/d ___________) 
 
 

      ___________________________________ 
      Robert C. Newman, Trustee 

 

      ___________________________________ 
      Mary Jo Newman, Trustee 
   

STATE OF MINNESOTA  ) 

     )SS. 
COUNTY OF HENNEPIN  ) 

 

 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ____ day of 

________________________, 2016, by Robert C. Newman and Mary Jo Newman, 

Trustees of the Robert C. Newman Revocable Trust (u/t/d _________________), 

on behalf of the Robert C. Newman Revocable Trust (u/t/d __________________). 

  (Seal)      
____________________________________ 

      Notary Public 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 9 

      CITY OF GREENWOOD, MINNESOTA 

       
      By ___________________________________ 

       Debra J. Kind, 
       Mayor of City of Greenwood, 

       Minnesota 
 

 
      By ___________________________________ 

       Dana Young, City Clerk of  
       City of Greenwood, Minnesota 

 

STATE OF MINNESOTA  ) 
     )SS. 
COUNTY OF HENNEPIN  ) 

 

 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ____ day of 

________________________, 2016, by Debra J. Kind, the Mayor and Dana Young, 

the Clerk of the City of Greenwood, a public body corporate and politic under 

the laws of the State of Minnesota, on behalf of the public body. 

  (Seal)      
____________________________________ 

       Notary Public 
 

 
THIS INSTRUMENT DRAFTED BY: 
Kelly Law Offices 

7975 Stone Creek Drive, Suite 120 
Chanhassen, Minnesota  55317 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
1\Drainage and Utility Easement NEWMAN 

 



 10 

EXHIBIT A 
 

Legal Description of Grantee’s Property: 
 

 Lot 189, Auditor’s Subdivision No. ____, Hennepin County, Minnesota. 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
EXHIBIT B 



 11 

 
Legal description of the “Grantee’s Easement Area” 

 
That portion of Lot 189, Auditor’s Subdivision No. ___, Hennepin County 

Minnesota lying northwesterly of a line commencing at a point on the 
northeasterly line thereof ten (10) feet southeasterly of the most northerly 
corner of said lot; thence southwesterly parallel to the northwesterly line of 

said lot to the waters of Lake Minnetonka and there terminating. 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
EXHIBIT C 



 12 

 
A Description and Depiction of the Planned Improvements and Uses within 

Grantee’s Easement Area 
 

SEE ATTACHED EXHIBIT 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 



  www.greenwoodmn.com

	

	

Agenda Number: 8B  

Agenda Date: 01-06-16 
Prepared by Deb Kind 

 
 
 
 
Agenda Item: Consider Res 04-16 Approving Sale of the Southshore Center to Shorewood 
 
Summary: George Hoff, the attorney representing Deephaven, Excelsior, Greenwood, and Tonka Bay in the partition action 
lawsuit initiated by Shorewood is recommending that the 4 cities adopt the attached resolution. If the council wishes to discuss 
further, a closed session will be convened for attorney-client privilege. 
 
Council Action: Action recommended. Suggested motion ... 
 

1. I move the city council adopts resolution 04-16 approving the sale of the Southshore Center to Shorewood. 
 

 
13D.05 Subd. 3(a) is for closed meetings to evaluate the performance of an individual who is subject to the city council’s authority. The 
city council shall identify the individual to be evaluated prior to closing a meeting. At its next open meeting, the city council shall 
summarize its conclusions regarding the evaluation. A meeting must be open at the request of the individual who is the subject of the 
meeting. 13D.05 Subd. 1(d) The meeting must be electronically recorded. The recordings	must be preserved for at least 3 years after 
the date of the meeting. 
 
13D.05 Subd. 3(b) is for closed meetings for attorney-client privilege. 13D.05 Subd. 1(d) All closed meetings, except those closed as 
permitted by the attorney-client privilege, must be electronically recorded.  
 
13D.05 Subd. 3(c) is for closed meetings to (1) determine the asking price for real or personal property to be sold by the city, (2) review 
confidential or protected nonpublic appraisal data, (3) develop or consider offers or counteroffers for the purchase or sale of real or 
personal property. Before holding a closed meeting to under this paragraph, the city council must identify on the record the particular 
real or personal property that is the subject of the closed meeting. The proceedings of a meeting closed under this paragraph must be 
tape recorded. The recording must be preserved for 8 years after the date of the meeting and made available to the public after all real 
or personal property discussed at the meeting has been purchased or sold or the city council has abandoned the purchase or sale. The 
real or personal property that is the subject of the closed meeting must be specifically identified on the tape. A list of members and all 
other persons present at the closed meeting must be made available to the public after the closed meeting. An agreement reached that 
is based on an offer considered at a closed meeting is contingent on approval of the city council at an open meeting. The actual 
purchase or sale must be approved at an open meeting after the notice period required by statute or city council’s internal procedures, 
and the purchase price or sale price is public data. 
 
 



  www.greenwoodmn.com

 

 

 
 
 
 
City of Greenwood  
Resolution 04-16 
 
A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE SALE OF THE SOUTHSHORE SENIOR / COMMUNITY 
CENTER TO THE CITY OF SHOREWOOD UNDER THE “SHOREWOOD OPTION”  
 
WHEREAS, the City of Greenwood is a party to the Cooperative Agreement (“Agreement”) for the Southshore Senior / 
Community Center (“Property), dated March 4, 1996. The Cities of Deephaven, Excelsior, Shorewood, and Tonka Bay are 
also parties to the Agreement.  
 
WHEREAS, the City of Shorewood initiated a lawsuit against the City of Greenwood and the other Cities that are parties 
to the Agreement, titled City of Shorewood, a municipal corporation, v. City of Deephaven, a municipal corporation, City of 
Excelsior, a municipal corporation, City of Greenwood, a municipal corporation, City of Tonka Bay, a municipal 
corporation, and all other persons unknown having or claiming an interest in the property in the complaint herein, 
Hennepin County District Court File No. 27-CV-15-15681 (“Lawsuit”). In the Lawsuit, the City of Shorewood asked for 
partition and conveyance of the Property to the City of Shorewood.  
 
WHEREAS, the City of Greenwood filed an Answer to the Lawsuit and agreed that conveyance of the Property should be 
made to the City of Shorewood consistent with the Shorewood Option in paragraph 6(a) of the Agreement.  
 
WHEREAS, the relief sought by the City of Shorewood in the Lawsuit is an action to terminate the Agreement and a 
request for sale of the Property to the City of Shorewood. By its Answer to the Lawsuit, the City of Greenwood consented 
to the relief sought by the City of Shorewood contingent upon the satisfaction of the terms of the Agreement, specifically 
those terms in paragraph 6(a) of the Agreement, which require the City of Shorewood to make repayment to the other 
Cities in the Agreement in the amount equal to their original capital contribution.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GREENWOOD THAT: 
Based on the foregoing, the Greenwood City Council hereby confirms that it has consented to the sale of the Property to 
the City of Shorewood under the Shorewood Option in paragraph 6(a) of the Agreement.   
 
ADOPTED by the City Council of Greenwood, Minnesota this __ day of _____________, 2016. 
 
____ AYES ____ NAYS  
 
CITY OF GREENWOOD 
 
 
 
By: _____________________________________  
Debra J. Kind, Mayor  
 
 
 
Attest: __________________________________ 
Dana Young, City Clerk 
 
 



  www.greenwoodmn.com

	

	

Agenda Number: 8C 

Agenda Date: 01-06-16 
Prepared by Deb Kind 

 
 
 

Agenda Item: Resolution 01-16, Setting Dates for 2016 
 
Summary: This is a routine resolution that the council approves in each year. No changes have been made to the 
resolution other than updating the dates to follow the same pattern as the past year.  

Council Action: Required. Potential motions … 
 

1. I move the council approves resolution 01-16 to set key dates for 2016. 
 

2. I move the council approves resolution 01-16 to set key dates for 2016, with the following revisions: _________. 
 



 

 Resolution 01-16 
City of Greenwood Dates for 2016 

 
Be it resolved that the city council of the city of Greenwood, Minnesota 

approves the following dates for planning commission meetings, city council meetings,  
and variance / conditional use permit / subdivision applications: 

 
 

  Publish Date Planning Commission   
Application Date Sun Sailor Public Hearing Council Meeting 
3rd Wednesday  1st Thursday 7pm, 3rd Wednesday 7pm, 1st Wednesday 

November 18, 2015 December 3, 2015 December 16, 2015 January 6, 2016 
December 16, 2015 January 7, 2016 January 20, 2016 February 3, 2016 
January 20, 2016 February 4, 2016 February 17, 2016 March 2, 2016 
February 17, 2016 March 3, 2016 March 16, 2016 April 6, 2016 

March 16, 2016 April 7, 2016 April 20, 2016 May 4, 2016 
April 20, 2016 May 5, 2016 May 18, 2016 June 1, 2016 
May 18, 2016 June 2, 2016 June 15, 2016 July 6, 2016 
June 15, 2016 July 7, 2016 July 20, 2016 August 3, 2016 
July 20, 2016 August 4, 2016 August 17, 2016 September 7, 2016 

August 17, 2016 September 1, 2016 September 21, 2016 October 5, 2016 
September 21, 2016 October 6, 2016 October 19, 2016 November 2, 2016 

October 19, 2016 November 3, 2016 November 16, 2016 December 7, 2016 
November 16, 2016 December 1, 2016 December 21, 2016 January 4, 2017 

 
Planning commission and city council meetings are held in the Deephaven council chambers, 20225 Cottagewood Road, Deephaven, MN 55331.  

Meetings may be changed due to lack of quorums. 
 

Be it resolved that the city council of the city of Greenwood, Minnesota approves the following additional dates: 
 

  Date Time Notes 
Pre-Board Worksession with Assessors April 6, 2016 6pm Before April council meeting 
Local Board of Appeal & Equalization Meeting April 13, 2016 6pm 2nd Wednesday in April 
Subsequent Local Board of Appeal & Equalization Meeting April 28, 2016 6pm 4th Thursday in April 
Spring Clean-Up Day May 21, 2016 8am 3rd Saturday in May 
City Council & Planning Commission Joint Worksession May 18, 2016 8pm 3rd Wednesday in May, following PC meeting 
Worksession: Budget & Fees August 3, 2016 6pm Before August council meeting 
Worksession: Budget & Fees September 7, 2016 6pm Before September council meeting 
Fall Sales Ratio Meeting with Assessors October 27, 2016 4pm 4th Thursday in October 
Budget Public Comment Opportunity December 7, 2016 7pm December council meeting 

 
 

ADOPTED by the city council of the city of Greenwood, Minnesota, this 6th day of January, 2016. 
 
 
 
CITY OF GREENWOOD 
 
By: __________________________ 
Debra J. Kind, Mayor                                                
 
 
Attest: _______________________________  
Dana H. Young, City Clerk   
 



  www.greenwoodmn.com

	

	

Agenda Number: 8D 

Agenda Date: 01-06-16 
Prepared by Deb Kind 

 
 
 

Agenda Item: Resolution 02-16 Appointments and Assignments for 2016 
 
Summary: This is a routine resolution that the council approves in January each year.  
For the council's reference, attached is research regarding potential legal newspapers. Even though the Sun-Sailor is 
more expensive than the Lakeshore Weekly, the Administrative Committee (Mayor Kind and Councilman Fletcher) 
recommend staying with the Sun-Sailor since it is delivered via mail to Greenwood properties. The Administrative 
Committee also recommends adding Finance & Commerce as the 1st Alternate Newspaper. No other changes are 
recommended.  
 
Note: The Planning Commissioners listed on the resolution will be updated when new appointments are made in March. 

Council Action: Required. Potential motions … 
 

1. I move the council approves resolution 02-16 designating appointments and assignments for 2016. 
 

2. I move the council approves resolution 02-16 designating appointments and assignments for 2016, with the 
following revision(s): ___________. 

 
3. Other motion ??? 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Quotes on the cost of advertising legal notices 
 
Compiled December 2015 
 
 
Sun Sailor   - $11.50 per column inch for the 1st week 
     $  6.25 per column inch of the 2nd week 
 
Lakeshore Weekly News - $9.50 per column inch each week 
 
Finance & Commerce - $1.41 per line for the 1st insertion 
     $0.77 per line for the 2nd insertion 
 
Star Tribune   - $5.60 per line 
 
  
 



 

Resolution 02-16 
City of Greenwood Appointments & Assignments for 2016 

 
Be it resolved that the city council of Greenwood, Minnesota approves the following appointments for 01-06-16 through 01-04-17. 

 

OFFICE & DESIGNATIONS 2015 HOLDER 2016 HOLDER 
Mayor Pro-Tem Bob Quam Bob Quam 
Administrative Committee Tom Fletcher, Deb Kind Tom Fletcher, Deb Kind 
Animal Enforcement Officer South Lake Police Department South Lake Police Department 
Assessor Hennepin County Hennepin County 
Attorney Mark Kelly Mark Kelly 
Auditor CliftonLarsonAllen CliftonLarsonAllen 
Bank Signatures Kind, Quam, Courtney Kind, Quam, Courtney 
Building Official Bob Manor Bob Manor 
Clerk Dana Young Dana Young 
Depositories Bridgewater Bank, Beacon Bank Bridgewater Bank, Beacon Bank 
Engineer Bolton & Menk (Dave Martini) Bolton & Menk (Dave Martini) 

Fire Board Representative – 4th Wed (Jan, Mar, May, Jul, Sep, Nov) Tom Fletcher, Bob Quam (alt.), 
Bill Cook (2nd alt.) 

Tom Fletcher, Bob Quam (alt.), 
Bill Cook (2nd alt.) 

Forester / Certified Tree Inspector Manuel Jordan  Manuel Jordan  
Lake Minnetonka Communications Commission (LMCC) Representative 
2 reps (1 elected official), meets 2nd Thurs (Feb, Apr, May, Jul, Aug, Oct, Dec) 

Tom Fletcher, Deb Kind, 
Rob Roy (alternate) 

Tom Fletcher, Deb Kind, 
Rob Roy (alternate) 

Lake Minnetonka Conservation District (LMCD) Rep – 2nd and 4th Wed Rob Roy (1/31/17)  Rob Roy (1/31/17)  
Marina Clerk Dana Young Dana Young 
Minnetonka Community Education (MCE) Representative – 4th Mon  Bob Quam Bob Quam 

Newspapers Sun-Sailor, Star Tribune (alternate) 
Sun-Sailor, Finance & 
Commerce (alternate), Star 
Tribune (alternate) 

Planning Commissioners – 3rd Wed  
 

A-1 Douglas Reeder (8/11-3/16) A-1 Douglas Reeder (8/11-3/16) 
A-2 Lake Bechtell (5/14-3/16) A-2 Lake Bechtell (5/14-3/16) 
A-3 Dave Paeper (3/07-3/16) A-3 Dave Paeper (3/07-3/16) 
B-1 Pat Lucking (2/01-3/17) B-1 Pat Lucking (2/01-3/17) 
B-2 Kristi Conrad (10/11-3/17) B-2 Kristi Conrad (10/11-3/17) 
Alt-1 Rick Sundberg (7/14-3/16) Alt-1 Rick Sundberg (7/14-3/16) 
Alt-2 Fiona Sayer (8/14-3/17) Alt-2 Fiona Sayer (8/14-3/17) 
Alt-3 Bill Cook (city council liaison) Alt-3 Bill Cook (city council liaison) 

Planning Commission Liaison – 3rd Wed Bill Cook Bill Cook 
Public Safety City Administrator Representative (police and fire) Dana Young Dana Young 
Prosecutor Greg Keller Greg Keller 
Responsible Authority (Govt. Data Practices Act) Dana Young Dana Young 
Road and Sewer Liaison Bob Quam Bob Quam 
South Lake Minnetonka Police Department (SLMPD) Coordinating 
Committee Representative (must be mayor, meets quarterly) Deb Kind, Bob Quam (alternate) Deb Kind, Bob Quam (alternate) 

Treasurer Mary Courtney Mary Courtney 
Utility Billing Clerk Deborah Hicks Deborah Hicks 
Weed Inspector (must be mayor), Assistant Weed Inspector Deb Kind, Assistant John Menzel Deb Kind, Assistant John Menzel 
Zoning Administrator Dale Cooney Dale Cooney 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF GREENWOOD, MINNESOTA that any and all commissioners, appointees, 
representatives, delegates, or other non-elected officials of the city shall hold their official status or membership on a basis subject to resolution, 
subject to reconsideration, and / or removal at the insistence of the city council. This resolution is enacted pursuant to the codes of the city. 
 

ADOPTED by the city council of the city of Greenwood, Minnesota this ___ day of __________ 2016. 
 

There were ___ AYES and ___ NAYS 
 

By: _____________________________________    Attest: _____________________________________ 
Debra J. Kind, Mayor, City of Greenwood  Dana Young, City Clerk, City of Greenwood 



  www.greenwoodmn.com

	  

	  

Agenda Number: 9A-E 

 

 
 
 

Agenda Item: Council Reports 
 
Summary: This is an opportunity for each council member to present updates and get input regarding various council 
assignments and projects. Related documents may be attached to this cover memo. 
 
Council Action: None required.  

 



Variance with Variance with Bulk Email
Month 2014 2015 Prior Month Prior Year List
January 3,876 4,123 337 247 166
February 3,943 3,928 -196 -16 166
March 4,057 3,732 -196 -325 166
April 4,170 5,058 1,326 888 165
May 4,468 5,753 695 1,285 165
June 5,291 6,448 695 1,157 158
July 5,579 5,481 -967 -98 160
August 4,922 5,249 -232 327 160
September 4,723 9,532 4,283 4,809 160
October 3,969 6,969 -2,563 3,000 160
November 3,878 6,362 -607 2,485 156
December 3,786 6,742 380 2,956 157

AVERAGE 4,388 5,781

Gray indicates estimated numbers (average of month prior and month after)

POPULATION: 693
EMAIL ADDRESSES % OF POPULATION: 22.66%

Population source: www.metrocouncil.org, Data & Maps, Download Data, Population and Household Estimates
Population figure updated: 04.23.15

0 

2,000 

4,000 

6,000 

8,000 

10,000 

12,000 

City	of	Greenwood	
Website	Total	Hits	

2014 

2015 



Content Tools Data Center Site Management Security

Welcome, Debra Kind | Hide QuickTips | Help | Logout

Live Site

Get Report

Site Statistics
Use this reporting tool to see your site statistics for your public site for this month or the
previous month. Statistics for the Administration (or "admin") side of your site are not
included in this report. Additionally, visits you make to your own site while administering it
are not included in these statistics. All data collected before the previous month has been
purged from our system and is not available for use; therefore, we recommend printing
this report each month for your records.

The first report - Page Views by Section - shows total page views for each section. The
second report - Unique Visitors by Section - shows the total page views for each section
without the return visitors (showing only views from unique IP addresses). For example, if
you browse to a page today, and then browse to that same page tomorrow, your viewing
of that page would only be counted once in the unique (second) report. 

Each report lists sections in page view order (highest number of page views first) and only
lists sections that have had traffic within the reporting period. It does not list those
sections without traffic.

Begin Date 11/15/2015

End Date 12/15/2015

Report Name Page Views (Default)

Page Views by Section

Section Page Views Percent of Total
Default Home Page 3780 56.07%

Agendas, Etc. 441 6.54%

City Departments 203 3.01%

Planning Commission 201 2.98%

Mayor & City Council 191 2.83%

Code Book 136 2.02%

Forms & Permits 135 2%

Assessments & Taxes 124 1.84%

Welcome to Greenwood 100 1.48%

Budget & Finances 98 1.45%

Garbage & Recycling 93 1.38%

Photo Gallery 93 1.38%

Lake Minnetonka 86 1.28%

Comp Plan & Maps 80 1.19%

What's New? 68 1.01%

Spring Clean-Up Day 67 0.99%

RFPs & Bids 60 0.89%

Links 60 0.89%

Crime Alerts 59 0.88%

Meetings 58 0.86%

Public Safety 47 0.7%

Watercraft Spaces 47 0.7%

Meetings on TV 47 0.7%

Elections 45 0.67%

Old Log Events 43 0.64%

The reports offered in
your Site Statistics tool
only track activity on
the public side of your
site.

In each report, a section
named "Default" and a
section named "Home"
may appear.

A page view gets
attributed to "Default"
when a visitor to your
site types your URL into
his or her Web browser. 
In most cases, the
"Default" section is your
Home Page.

A page view gets
attributed to "Home"
each time a visitor clicks
the "Home" button on
your Web site.

In the Page View
(Default) report, only
sections with Web traffic
are reported and they
are listed in page view
order.

In the Page View by
Section report, sections
are listed in the order
they appear in the
navigation menu and
are reported regardless
of their traffic level.

In the Referrers report,
it is important to
remember that your
own site acts like a
referrer.  So, don't be
surprised if you see your
own Web address(es)
listed -- this tracks the
number of times people
went from one part of
your site to another.

Quick Tips

https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=ContentTools
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=DataCenter
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteManagement
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=Security
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&BeginDate=11%2F15%2F2015&EndDate=12%2F15%2F2015&report=0
http://help.avenet.net/
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=Login&action=logout
http://www.greenwoodmn.com/?persistdesign=none
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=&BeginDate=11/15/2015&EndDate=12/15/2015&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B8F3A3A9D-5458-4CB6-BB1F-AC94BB9B09DF%7D&BeginDate=11/15/2015&EndDate=12/15/2015&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B030CFE4C-5016-4145-982B-BC20CF1CE9B0%7D&BeginDate=11/15/2015&EndDate=12/15/2015&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B05D0F828-E762-44A3-BC47-B094E012C13F%7D&BeginDate=11/15/2015&EndDate=12/15/2015&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BFF4DABAE-9793-4C75-9595-89E365126209%7D&BeginDate=11/15/2015&EndDate=12/15/2015&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B41336A06-DF03-426F-BAC8-B478696E7ABE%7D&BeginDate=11/15/2015&EndDate=12/15/2015&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BC446C0E6-C85B-4D6B-9F2A-45390CDE8A69%7D&BeginDate=11/15/2015&EndDate=12/15/2015&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B937BBE21-87E7-4815-95EF-9E4DBD883B56%7D&BeginDate=11/15/2015&EndDate=12/15/2015&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BE8F16C03-E9EC-40F7-A931-F5A45B19576E%7D&BeginDate=11/15/2015&EndDate=12/15/2015&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BC4ED0441-B19F-4C17-8FAB-B27178681446%7D&BeginDate=11/15/2015&EndDate=12/15/2015&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BF7C1F295-9D1A-47F1-B520-906AEA4C1EF7%7D&BeginDate=11/15/2015&EndDate=12/15/2015&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B5AF5BE04-E22D-498B-8DF0-E4E97E512089%7D&BeginDate=11/15/2015&EndDate=12/15/2015&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BE04A1A51-136D-44C1-BD41-8FC4E61A774B%7D&BeginDate=11/15/2015&EndDate=12/15/2015&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BEC7D78ED-9B90-469C-87DA-F45E8296634D%7D&BeginDate=11/15/2015&EndDate=12/15/2015&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B09C69529-46DA-45C3-9D5A-F642FC7ACBC9%7D&BeginDate=11/15/2015&EndDate=12/15/2015&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BC0861CA3-9AD6-44B8-83A0-3830DDD789F7%7D&BeginDate=11/15/2015&EndDate=12/15/2015&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BB2F86E65-BD20-40B7-8A26-1B4DC4FF837A%7D&BeginDate=11/15/2015&EndDate=12/15/2015&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B86561FCE-AB6E-4655-9D85-28D89FDF4185%7D&BeginDate=11/15/2015&EndDate=12/15/2015&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B7D523E15-7556-4375-B814-673BCF885086%7D&BeginDate=11/15/2015&EndDate=12/15/2015&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B12A653D6-4378-49A7-A3FC-97A7073E27C9%7D&BeginDate=11/15/2015&EndDate=12/15/2015&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B2EE6F67F-9BE4-4076-8A33-F589B91B72C4%7D&BeginDate=11/15/2015&EndDate=12/15/2015&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B08153459-A93B-48DE-A049-7A47AB3B7C7D%7D&BeginDate=11/15/2015&EndDate=12/15/2015&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BF458B3B5-588F-49DF-ACE1-F64600152C67%7D&BeginDate=11/15/2015&EndDate=12/15/2015&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B5FD2DB20-C5E6-4466-BB1F-5137A3A383FA%7D&BeginDate=11/15/2015&EndDate=12/15/2015&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BB4737361-6BA3-43DC-893C-D8AE06A935AA%7D&BeginDate=11/15/2015&EndDate=12/15/2015&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&BeginDate=11%2F15%2F2015&EndDate=12%2F15%2F2015&report=0#


Search Results 42 0.62%

Parks & Trails 41 0.61%

Email List 40 0.59%

Community Surveys 37 0.55%

St. Alban's Bay Lake Improvement District 36 0.53%

Swiffers NOT Flushable 36 0.53%

Trees 33 0.49%

Animal Services 31 0.46%

Well Water 28 0.42%

Southshore Center 26 0.39%

Smoke Testing 20 0.3%

--- 7 0.1%

Unsubscribe 3 0.04%

TOTAL 6742 100%

Unique IPs by Section

Section Unique IPs Percent of Total IPs
Default Home Page 723 29.25%

Agendas, Etc. 169 6.84%

City Departments 123 4.98%

Mayor & City Council 94 3.8%

Planning Commission 91 3.68%

Code Book 73 2.95%

Welcome to Greenwood 72 2.91%

Forms & Permits 72 2.91%

Assessments & Taxes 66 2.67%

Comp Plan & Maps 57 2.31%

Photo Gallery 56 2.27%

Garbage & Recycling 52 2.1%

What's New? 52 2.1%

Lake Minnetonka 50 2.02%

Budget & Finances 49 1.98%

Crime Alerts 47 1.9%

Links 46 1.86%

Elections 40 1.62%

Meetings 39 1.58%

Email List 36 1.46%

Meetings on TV 36 1.46%

Spring Clean-Up Day 35 1.42%

Old Log Events 35 1.42%

Public Safety 33 1.33%

St. Alban's Bay Lake Improvement District 32 1.29%

Swiffers NOT Flushable 31 1.25%

Parks & Trails 30 1.21%

RFPs & Bids 30 1.21%

Community Surveys 30 1.21%

Animal Services 28 1.13%

Trees 27 1.09%

Watercraft Spaces 27 1.09%

Well Water 23 0.93%

Southshore Center 21 0.85%

Smoke Testing 20 0.81%

Search Results 19 0.77%

--- 5 0.2%

Unsubscribe 3 0.12%

TOTAL 2472 100%

https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B6428E068-96A6-40C7-9082-13636C643E44%7D&BeginDate=11/15/2015&EndDate=12/15/2015&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B184AC25F-91BE-4826-A9F5-B388A80DC23E%7D&BeginDate=11/15/2015&EndDate=12/15/2015&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B45BFFFAD-A74F-4A5C-881D-1DDEB689390B%7D&BeginDate=11/15/2015&EndDate=12/15/2015&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B5EFC3CE3-C0E6-4AFE-BC8B-FD662DC0B6DE%7D&BeginDate=11/15/2015&EndDate=12/15/2015&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B29DBC80E-711D-420C-8E7E-88949C90F651%7D&BeginDate=11/15/2015&EndDate=12/15/2015&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BA06C3108-5700-4A55-A324-1E2C07C9DC78%7D&BeginDate=11/15/2015&EndDate=12/15/2015&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B03D16CDF-8EB7-45AC-B972-E463B037CF8B%7D&BeginDate=11/15/2015&EndDate=12/15/2015&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BE2CCCFEF-5547-4416-81A6-0ACBB34571E6%7D&BeginDate=11/15/2015&EndDate=12/15/2015&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B8A0FD9DB-EF26-4B80-AB4F-C79C6F905931%7D&BeginDate=11/15/2015&EndDate=12/15/2015&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BE4E6E072-F7DA-4CB1-A638-8915989F8078%7D&BeginDate=11/15/2015&EndDate=12/15/2015&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7B92C503B2-495E-4AB9-88DC-2432B12AC82B%7D&BeginDate=11/15/2015&EndDate=12/15/2015&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BFBA50B9F-9AF7-4CC6-9D2D-09D56A461712%7D&BeginDate=11/15/2015&EndDate=12/15/2015&report=1
https://greenwoodmn.govoffice2.com/admin/index.asp?ADMINSEC=SiteStatistics&SEC=%7BA8FAE50E-D745-414D-8707-F9F9AAD99E95%7D&BeginDate=11/15/2015&EndDate=12/15/2015&report=1














GREENWOOD PLANNING COMMISSION 
WEDNESDAY, DECEMBER 16, 2015 

7:00 P.M. 

 1 

  
1. CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 
 
Chairman Lucking called the meeting to order at 7:04 p.m. 
 
Members Present: Chairman Pat Lucking, Commissioners Lake Bechtell, Kristi Conrad, 

Douglas Reeder, and Fiona Sayer 
 
Absent: Commissioners David Paeper and Rick Sundberg 
 
Others Present: Council Liaison Bill Cook, City Attorney Mark Kelly, and Zoning 

Administrator Dale Cooney. 
 
2. MINUTES – November 18, 2015 
 
Commissioner Bechtell moved to approve the minutes of November 18, 2015 as presented. 
Commissioner Conrad seconded the motion. Motion carried 5-0.  
 
3. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
3a. Consider Conditional Use Permit Request, Excelsior Entertainment, LLC, dba as The 
Old Log Theater, 5185 Meadville Street:  
 
Chairman Lucking introduced the agenda item. Lucking said that The Old Log Theater is 
proposing to add a 670 square foot patio to accommodate outdoor dining, and to add 4 additional 
parking spaces as required by city code. Lucking said that Section 1123.30, Subd. 1 of the 
Zoning Ordinance states that any one or more the following events requires that a conditional use 
permit be obtained:  

(A) Request for a building permit or zoning approval for physical expansion of any 
existing building or the addition of impervious surface to said property beyond what 
existed as of the adoption of this control. 

(B) Any change to the manner of use of said property as authorized in section 1123.25, 
subd. 2. 

 
Chairman Lucking opened the public hearing. 
 
John Ratliff of 5060 Covington Street said he wants to see the Old Log Theater be successful. He 
said since it is in a residential area, considerations are a little different. He said that the cars 
entering and leaving from Covington Street are often going at excessive speeds. Ratliff said that 
he has almost been hit by cars travelling on the road three times. He said that he is worried about 
traffic since his grandchildren sometimes play in the street. 
 
Commissioner Conrad said that she had heard that Mr. Ratliff had a proposed solution, and 
asked what that solution was. Ratliff said that he would recommend the truck traffic cut through 
from front to back along the side of the building that faces the trail. He said that employees use 
that same path to enter through the front and drive to the back of the building, cutting off 
employee traffic from Covington. 
 
Greg Frankenfield, owner of the Old Log Theater, said that the Old Log Theater Property abuts 
the railroad property, and that therefore he could not build a road between the building and the 
trail. 
 
T. White of 5290 Meadville Street said that he was worried about the lack of a shoulder along 
Covington and the drop-off of about three feet to a neighboring house. He said that he was 
concerned that a truck or a car could fall off the shoulder and damage the house and injure the 



GREENWOOD PLANNING COMMISSION 
WEDNESDAY, DECEMBER 16, 2015 

7:00 P.M. 

 2 

residents. He said that this was a huge safety issue that should not be ignored. He said that 
Meadville Street is suffering and cannot handle any more traffic. 
 
Bob Newman of 5230 Meadville Street said that the primary responsibility of the City is to protect 
the safety of the residents. He said that he counted 19 conflicts with the guiding documents of the 
city. He said that he has never seen residents so unified on one issue. Newman said that there 
were a number of concerns about the proposal, but primarily related to safety and traffic. He said 
the Old Log Theater has not been a good neighbor, and that safety issues have gotten worse. He 
said that neighbors do not feel safe. Newman said that the thirteen foot wide Covington Street 
was no place for big trucks and speeding cars. He said the residents are fed up. He said the 
residents expect support from the city and real action to address the issues. 
 
Teresa Pfister of 21580 Fairview Street said that she thought the issue was outdoor dining, but 
she was hearing about roads and safety. She said it is grossly unfair to blame all of that on the 
Old Log Theater. She said that there has been a tremendous amount of construction on the street 
that has nothing to do with the theater. She said that the Old Log Theater is a good neighbor, and 
that they also allow the venue to be used for public purposes. Ms. Pfister said that the outdoor 
dining would not attract young, noisy diners, but rather is would attract older, quieter diners. 
 
Maureen Quam, and employee of the Old Log Theater, said that she uses Covington Street every 
day. She said that traffic along Covington is nothing new. She said that the theater is very 
conscientious about the traffic issues. Ms. Quam says that they send out memorandums to the 
employees about the road regulations. She said that the theater wants to know about speeding 
trucks and traffic. She said that the theater cannot take deliveries through the front door when 
performances are going on. Ms. Quam said that the trucks are not semi-trucks and are not bigger 
than a garbage truck. She said that the outdoor dining is just an attempt to keep up with the 
competition. 
 
Keith Stuessi of 5000 Meadville Street said that he bikes ten hours a week and he walks his dog. 
He said that two years ago the people were concerned about the traffic, and said he didn’t know 
why that didn’t get included in the original agreement. He asked why those issues were not part 
of the original agreement since the communities concerns were very clear. He asked why 
additional paving was put in the back, since employee parking is adequate in the front. 
 
Greg Frankenfield, owner of the Old Log Theater, said that he never agreed that there would not 
be deliveries to the rear of the theater. He said that they tried to limit the deliveries. He said that 
he had requested that the city look at any fire issues due to the narrowness of the street. He said 
that the fire district said that, while it would be preferable to have parking on one side of the 
street, there is adequate space for a fire vehicle. Frankenfield said that, since a fire truck would 
be able to navigate Covington Street, smaller (non-semi) trucks are also reasonable on the street. 
 
Patty Loftus, owner of 5165 Meadville Street says that she was concerned about noise issues 
that might happen, particularly events. 
 
Marissa Frankenfield, owner of the Old Log Theater, said that the theater is very aware of the 
noise ordinance and that they have no plans to serve past 10 p.m. She said that they plan to 
plant trees to help reduce noise. 
 
Ted Hanna of 4960 Meadville Street said that his biggest concern was traffic, particularly from 
customers that you can’t control. He said he had concerns about the disturbance of the fireplace 
area which would tend to draw people outside more. 
 
Bob Newman of 5230 Meadville Street said that he has never had an issue with the patrons, but 
that the issue is people entering through the back of the theater. He said that the owners attempts 
to manage this have been ineffective. He said that he thought that there was an understanding 
that deliveries and parking would be in the front. 



GREENWOOD PLANNING COMMISSION 
WEDNESDAY, DECEMBER 16, 2015 

7:00 P.M. 

 3 

Mark Setterholm of 5250 Meadville Street said that he has lived on Meadville Street for 37 years. 
He said that this is a bedroom community. He said that the nature of the business has changed 
and continues to grow. He says that he does not want a busy neighborhood. He said that he feels 
that he is on the defensive all of the time. 
 
T. White of 5290 Meadville Street said that the owners and employees of the Old Log Theater do 
not live on Meadville Street. He said it is the residents who live in the neighborhood that feel the 
impacts of the business, not the owners or employees. 
 
John Ekelund of 5135 Meadville Street said that he is concerned about the noise from the patio. 
He said that from his back yard he currently can hear people talking at the Old Log Theater. He 
said the outdoor dining will wreck the feel of the neighborhood. 
 
Jan Gray of 5170 Meadville Street says that safety is paramount. She said that the 2010 
Comprehensive Plan says that nothing must conflict with the residential character of the 
neighborhood. She says that this has been overlooked. She says that the majority of the resident 
comments on the proposal were negative. She said that in the past, the vast majority of deliveries 
came to the front of the building. She said that employees parked in the front. She asked if the 
Old Log Theater could restrict delivery times as many other restaurants do. Ms. Gray said that 
there are a number of conditions that the Conditional Use Permit request does not meet 
according to those requirements listed in Section 1150. She said that the neighborhood has lost 
confidence that the Old Log Theater will be a good neighbor. Ms. Gray said that the petition 
opposing the project has 45 signatures on it, and that they have received more signatures since 
that point, representing a neighborhood consensus on the project. 
 
Joe Fronius of 5140 Meadville Street says that he doesn’t want to live next to a Bayview or a 
Maynard’s. He says the objections to the expansion are not exaggerated claims. He said that the 
impacts would be more noise and traffic, decreased property values, and damaged roads. He 
said that one of the long standing neighbors in the area is considering moving out of the 
neighborhood. 
 
Richard Spiegel of 5090 Meadville Street said that the expansion will cause more traffic. He said 
that the garden in the neighborhood was rotting which shows that the owners of the theater do 
not care about the neighborhood. He said the last thing the city needs is a fire pit that would 
cause more air pollution. 
 
Sandra Setterholm of 5250 Meadville Street said that she talked to a realtor who said that the 
property values in the neighborhood will go down because of the outdoor dining. 
 
Chairman Lucking closed the public hearing at this point.  
 
Lucking said that the patio was proposed in the original plans a couple of years ago, and stated 
this had always been a part of the plans for the new owners of the Old Log Theater. 
 
Commissioner Conrad read a statement. She said that as the only Planning Commission 
representative from the impacted neighborhood she said that it was important to make sure the 
other commissioners understood the area. She showed a picture of the bus stop in the 
neighborhood where the trucks have damaged the sign when they make left turns. She said that 
she is saddened that this is still an issue. She praised the quality of life in the city, but she said 
city officials have to have the best interests in the community in mind. She said that the Old Log 
Theater has not made any attempts to talk with the neighbors about these issues, and that 
therefore the city must protect the community with the Conditional Use Permit. She said that 
issues like traffic and safety that could be fixed with a compromise. She said that these issues 
shouldn’t need to be included in the Conditional Use Permit, but that is the only way residents feel 
that the city has to protect them. She said that she feels that these problems are solvable. Conrad 
said the comprehensive plan says that development and redevelopment should show respect for 



GREENWOOD PLANNING COMMISSION 
WEDNESDAY, DECEMBER 16, 2015 

7:00 P.M. 

 4 

the neighborhoods. She said that she could not see supporting a new CUP that adds to the 
existing business until the current traffic and safety issues are addressed. 
 
Commissioner Reeder asked what part of the existing legal use are they not currently 
addressing? Conrad said that the safety aspect of the use is not being addressed. Reeder said 
that there is no current prohibition on parking in the back or trucks using Covington Street. 
 
Conrad said that the neighbors believed that some type of limitation should have been placed on 
the Old Log Theater when the use was brought into the zoning ordinance a couple of years ago. 
She said that it is a sad situation since she thinks this could have been resolved up front. Conrad 
says that she goes to plays several times a year, and that she is supportive of the theater. She 
said she believes that the city has allowed the theater to succeed, but that does not mean that the 
theater should get everything it wants. She said under the current situation there are problems, so 
she does not see how the city can allow the use to expand without taking action on those 
problems. She said that she believes the problem is solvable. 
 
Lucking said that Section 1140.70. C-1 and C-2 Requirements for Vehicular and Pedestrian 
Circulation are informative and that based on that section of code Covington would not even 
qualify as a one-way street. He read from the ordinance: “Vehicular traffic generated by a 
commercial use shall be channeled and controlled in a manner that will avoid congestion on the 
public street, traffic hazards, and excessive traffic through residential areas, particularly truck 
traffic.” 
 
Lucking said that while this was not part of the current Old Log Theater requirements, it is part of 
the city code and could serve the city in an attempt to minimize some of the traffic issues. 
 
Commissioner Reeder asked if the city could put conditions on no parking in the back. Lucking 
said that the city could put those types of conditions on the Conditional Use Permit. 
 
Reeder said that he is not hearing much of an argument against the outdoor seating as much as 
he is hearing an argument against what is there now. He said that would be comfortable moving 
forward with the expansion if conditions were put into the Conditional Use Permit that greatly 
reduced traffic for trucks and cars. 
 
Conrad says that City Code requires more parking. Reeder said that they shouldn’t expand if they 
have to have more parking off of Covington Street. 
 
Chairman Lucking asked if these issues should be taken separately. Commissioner Bechtell said 
that they need to be taken together since the parking is a requirement of the expansion. 
 
Commissioner Bechtell said that this pains him to see everyone so upset. He said that he and his 
wife enjoy the current incarnation of the Old Log Theater, and that is upsets him that it has come 
to this. 
 
Lucking asked Bechtell his opinion on the expansion. Bechtell said that he did not feel that there 
was any way to approve the Conditional Use Permit. 
 
Commissioner Sayer said that there are a number of issues that need to get sorted out before the 
city should consider approving the Conditional Use Permit. She says that it is too dangerous and 
it would be irresponsible to approve the Conditional Use Permit. 
 
Lucking said that Resolution 31-13 only allows the Old Log Theater to serve box lunches on the 
grounds. He said that could be interpreted to only allow box lunches outdoors. 
 
Councilmember Cook said that he would be in favor of the application with a lot of conditions 
placed upon it. Those conditions would include no additional parking on Covington Street. He 



GREENWOOD PLANNING COMMISSION 
WEDNESDAY, DECEMBER 16, 2015 

7:00 P.M. 

 5 

said that the traffic on Covington needs to be reduced. He said that he would want to see visual 
and noise barriers for the neighbors for an outdoor patio. Cook said that there is more work to be 
done, neighborhood safety is an overriding issue, and he would need to see a lot of conditions 
about how to address some of those issues. 
 
Chairman Lucking said that some of the most difficult things to address are the speeding issues. 
 
Commissioner Reeder said that he would be interested in the applicant giving the city an 
extension, table the application, and working to solve the existing problems. 
 
Conrad asked City Attorney Mark Kelly if the extension was the only way to handle this. Kelly said 
that the business is a permitted legal use and has certain rights. Kelly said that he was not aware 
of any part of the business that was operating contrary to their permitted legal use. 
 
Conrad asked how the city regulates the situation. Kelly said that if both the Old Log Theater and 
the city are motivated to find a solution, then they will work toward a solution. Kelly said that he is 
hearing that Covington Street is an issue, but that no solutions are currently being proposed. He 
said that there are a number of creative things that can be done. He said, however, that he does 
not believe that the city can impose additional conditions on the Old Log Theater’s currently 
existing business out of impulse. He said there needs to be a business violation or find a 
compromise as part of this Conditional Use Permit application. 
 
Chairman Lucking asked if the city could ask for an additional 60 days. Kelly said that the city 
could ask for more time, or that the applicant could grant more time to review the issue to the city. 
Kelly said that, otherwise, the City Council will review this at their January meeting. 
 
Commissioner Reeder said that he would like to see the applicant make some kind of proposed 
solution to the issues. 
 
Chairman Lucking said that he was skeptical that a resolution would happen in 60 days. He said 
that it should go to a vote, or that the applicant could withdraw the application, but that 60 days to 
handle an issue that has evolved over time is not realistic. 
 
Commissioner Reeder said that he would like hear what the applicant would say about coming up 
with possible solutions. 
 
Greg Frankenfield said that he is not certain what the Planning Commission is asking and said he 
prefers not to comment. 
 
Commissioner Reeder made a motion to recommend that the City Council deny the application 
on the grounds that the property does not currently have enough parking to expand the business, 
and that additional parking via Covington Street would impact the health, safety, and welfare of 
the neighborhood. Commissioner Bechtell seconded the motion. Motion carried 5-0. 
 
Commissioner Bechtell asked that the City Council examine the situation along Covington Street. 
Commissioner Conrad made a motion to have the City Council examine the City Code section 
1140.70 as it relates to the Old Log Theater and the traffic and safety issues along Covington 
Street. (Note: This motion was not seconded or formally voted on.) 
 
3b. Public Hearing for Ordinance 249, Amending Greenwood Ordinance Sections 510, 
1140.60, 1150.20, and 1155 Regarding Security Deposits / Agreements for Landscaping 
and for Conditions of Approved Variances and Conditional Use Permits. 
 
Chairman Lucking introduced the agenda item and opened the public hearing. Hearing no public 
comments, Chairman Lucking closed the public hearing. 
 



GREENWOOD PLANNING COMMISSION 
WEDNESDAY, DECEMBER 16, 2015 

7:00 P.M. 

 6 

Commissioner Conrad asked what the motivation for the ordinance was. Comissioner Bechtell 
said that the Saint Alban’s Bay Road property was one of the motivations. Chairman Lucking said 
that the island property was a property that also motivated this ordinance. 
 
Commissioner Conrad asked how the 2 percent fee was chosen. Councilmember Cook said that 
the City Council talked about a various percentages and a reasonable fee. 
 
Chairman Lucking entertained a motion to recommend adoption of Ordinance 249 as written. 
Motion to recommend adoption by Commissioner Bechtell, seconded by Commissioner Conrad. 
Motion carried 5-0. 
 
3c. Public Hearing for Ordinance 251 Amending Chapter 11 Regarding City Forester, 
Hazard Trees, Variance Standards for Impervious Surface Regulations and Application 
Procedure for Mailing Lists 
 
Chairman Lucking introduced the agenda item and opened the public hearing. Hearing no public 
comments, Chairman Lucking closed the public hearing. 
 
Councilmember Cook said that he had a note from the city council meeting to add driveways to 
the structural-related impervious surfaces in section 1176.07.05, Subd. 4. 
 
Chairman Lucking entertained a motion to recommend adoption of Ordinance 251 as amended. 
Motion to recommend adoption by Commissioner Bechtell, seconded by Commissioner Sayer. 
Motion carried 5-0. 
 
4. LIAISON REPORT 
 
Council Liaison Cook said that the City Council considered a simple subdivision request at 21200 
Minnetonka Boulevard that proposed to use the city right-of-way to access the back lot. Cook said 
that the City Council denied the application. Cook said that the city ordinance is currently in the 
process of being amended so that similar lot splits would be required to go through the standard 
subdivision process. 
 
Cook said that the City Council passed the request for a side setback variance at 21795 
Minnetonka Boulevard. 
 
Councilmember Cook said that the City Council approved the impervious surface variance on 
5025 Covington Street on a 3 to 2 vote. Cook said that the applicant offered to expand the pond 
in the adjacent park so that it would be able to hold more stormwater. 
 
Cook said that he is working on an ordinance that would require stormwater mitigation for any 
expansion of hardcover. He said that a draft ordinance would be presented at the next Planning 
Commission meeting. 
 
5. ADJOURN 
 
Motion by Commissioner Reeder to adjourn the meeting. Commissioner Bechtell seconded the 
motion. Motion carried 5-0. The meeting was adjourned at 9:20 pm. 
 
Respectively Submitted, 
Dale Cooney - Zoning Administrator 


	2015 01-06 Agenda
	- MEMO Consent no date
	2015 12-02 Worksession Minutes
	2015 12-02 Minutes
	2015 12-02 Closed Session Minutes
	November Cash Summary
	November CD Report
	December Payables Check Register
	December Payables for Council Approval
	January Payroll Check Register
	Ord 250 Building Permits and Simple Subdivisions
	- Memo McQuinn
	Res 14-15 Variance 5025 Covington APPROVE
	Res 15-15 CUP 5025 Covington APPROVE
	- Memo OLT CUP
	2015 11-02 OLT Application
	OLT Parking
	OLT Site Plan 11.18.15
	OLT Survey 12.7.15
	OLT CUP Public Comments - Barbara Dunlay
	OLT CUP Public Comments
	- MEMO Accessory Structures Etc
	Ord 245 Accessory Structures 12-05-15
	Ord 245, Summary Res 03-16
	- MEMO Security Deposits and Security Agreements Ord
	Ord 249 Security Deposits and Security Agreements 12-23-15
	- MEMO Ord 251 Hazard Trees Variance Standards
	Ord 251 Misc Chapter 11 Updates 12-26-15 w PC change
	- MEMO Variance Standards
	- MEMO Easements
	Drainage and Utility Easement LARSON
	Drainage and Utility Easement Model
	Drainage and Utility Easement NEWMAN
	- MEMO SSC Sale
	Res 04-16 Approving Sale of SSC
	- MEMO Dates
	Res 01-16 2016 Dates
	- MEMO Appointments
	Quotes on the cost of Advertising Legal Notices
	Res 02-16 Appointments
	- MEMO Council Reports no date
	2015 12-15 Web Chart.xls
	2015 12-15 Web Report
	Greenwood - November 2015 without Part 1 & 2s
	December PC Minutes 2015

